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Report of the Board of Directors
Important: 116 EREWE
Report of the Supervisory Committee

The board of directors (“Board 118 Z@=1g
of Dil’eCtOl’S”) and the SUperViSOry |mpor‘tant |ssues
committee (“Supervisory 120 B 7k 4P A=
Committee”) and each of the FM‘%#&‘:IR
directors (“Directors”), the supervisors manga sport
(“Supervisors”) and the senior 356 EE
management (collectively, the Documents Available for Inspection

“Senior Officers”) of Shandong
Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company
Limited (the “Company”) hereby
confirm that there are no false
representations, material omissions
or misleading statements contained
in this report, and they, severally
and jointly, accept full responsibility
for the truthfulness, accuracy and
completeness of the contents of
this report.

The chairman (Mr. Zhang Daiming),
financial controller (Mr. Hou
Ning) and the chief of the finance
department (Mr. He Xiaohong) of
the Company hereby declare that
the financial report of the Company
for 2019 is true and complete.

This report has been prepared in
both Chinese and English. In the
event of any discrepancy between
the two versions, the Chinese
version shall prevail.
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COMPANY INFORMATION

LFIRXEE

Chinese Name of the Company

NCES S0
English Name of the Company

DFEERERA

Legal Representative

EEeuE

Company Secretary

BEEER

Telephone Number

HRERB

Facsimile Number

EWETIEE

E-mail Address of Company Secretary

AT REM 4k
Registered Address

NGIE TN S
Office Address

BRBIRTS
Postal Code

TR
Website of the Company

NFEFIEHE
E-mail Address of the Company

BEAEEHEHRE

PRC newspapers for information disclosure

EAE R EEAL

PRC website for information disclosure

WERFEREROER AR (2F)

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED

R

Mr. Zhang Daiming

BERK
Mr. Cao Changqiu

86-533-2166666

86-533-2287508

CQCAO@XHZY.COM

rrEE A RN ([ B DI RE S e il E XA ERC TR

Chemical Industry Area of Zibo Hi-tech Industry Development Zone,
Zibo City, Shandong Province, The People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”)

FELRESIEmSEERRAE IR
No. 1 Lutai Ave., Hi-tech Industry Development Zone, Zibo City,
Shandong Province, PRC

255086

http://www.xhzy.com

xhzy@xhzy.com

(BHER)

Securities Times

http://www.cninfo.com.cn
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Listing information

HB%
H Shares
s
Stock Short Name
K5
Stock Code

AB%
A Shares
&
Stock Short Name
K5
Stock Code

HREMBICEA

Date of First Registration

EHEEEICAY

Date of Latest Registration
s AT i B

Place of Registration
H—itEERARE

Unified Social Credit Code

RS
Auditors

i

PRC
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Company Information (continued)

ERBERHMARAR (EEBRPAI))

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK”)
SRR B

Shandong Xinhua

0719

FINEHFZ ST

Shenzhen Stock Exchange
Rl

Xinhua Pharm

000756

199349 A30H
30 September 1993

20188H1H
1 August 2018

IWREBEED TETHRERR
Zibo Municipal Administration of Industry and Commerce of
Shandong Province

91370300164103727C

Bk MG A=A R EREE)

ikl

B E T R R BARS P K AT85R B AN EARESE

4% : 100027

ShineWing Certified Public Accountants (special general partnership),
8/F., Block A, Fu Hua Mansion,

8 Chaoyangmen Beidajie,

Dongcheng District,

Beijing 100027, PRC

SE-NEER | URFERERHERAT
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Company Information (continued)

EEERN

Legal Advisers
- 7]

As to Hong Kong Law

i

As to PRC Law

FRERSBIT

Principal Banker

HERE R BR L E

Share Registrars of H Shares

LFEHERME

Corporate Information Available at

P EEA1T
B B(T2E NER43-505REF 218
Charltons

12/F, Dominion Centre
43-59 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong

IERBER AR ET A

LR EARG R BB R 7 7SR EE O35 IE34/E
B4R - 100025

Jingtian Gongcheng Associates

34th Floor, 3 Building, Huamao Center,

77 Jianguo Road, Chaoyang District,

Beijing 100025, PRC

P B TR TR AR A RS ERIE 4T

o B L R IR T R 5 (B A R R B 25%

The Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Co., LTD, Zibo
Zhangdian Branch

2 Renmin Dong Road, Zibo City, Shandong Province, PRC

BERELFELABRAT
BAEZRREFR183FEFIHLI7E
Hong Kong Registrars Limited

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong

WRERERNERAREFTEWER
Secretariat to the Board of Directors
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED / 2019 ANNUAL REPORT



S HBEMEBRIERE

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL AND OPERATING RESULT

MBIRE 1. Financial Summary
(1) B(PELREHENNRREE (1) Principal Financial Data (prepared in accordance with
MEREMMEERGEEH (A China Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
EB#%xT) (“CASBE”) (audited) (Renminbi (“RMB”))
M9E  018E(ERE)  AEREEEE 0UEGER)  016FHERE)  015F(EER)
Chenge as
2018 compared fo 2017 2016 2015
5 Item 2019 (afteradustment)  thatoflastyear  (afteradjustment)  (after adjustment)  (after acjustment)
RMB AUB AlB AUB AMB
BEHA Operating income 5,606,020,863.30  5244,643,562.09 6.89% 454196131944  4039,560,506.85  3,621,040,487.75
il Total profits 381,392,620.93 332,327,503.82 14.76% 272,684,697.51 162,020,123.77 119,908,155.58
FEHER Income tax expense 58,276,863.40 51,900,683.50 12.29% 48,174,826.45 26,921,218.34 23,720,864.46
FHE Net profits 323,115,757.53 280,426,820.32 15.22% 224,509,871.06 135,008,905.43 96,187,291.12
PERREE Minority interest income 23,149,491.82 25,112,365.46 (7.82%) 12,537,346.84 11,329,664.71 11,534,699.35
FEREMDARES  Net profts attibutable to
bl shareholders of listed
company 299,966,265.71 265,314,454.86 17.49% 211,972,524.22 123,769,240.72 84,652,591.77
SENETAARRE  Net profis atifbutable to
TBEEEEESE  shareholders of sted
fEHE company after deduction
of non-recurring profit or
loss 258,555,194.68 233,025,701.77 10.96% 168,348,978.97 100,986,664.19 40,944,834.40
GEEREERRLT Nt cash fow fom
EFR operating activities 348,271,406.17 323,907,100.38 7.52% 396,831,270.17 452,312,034.12 346,082,91044
EREHNE(T/R)  Basic eamings per share 048 041 17.07% 0.3 0.1 0.14
WESRUE(T/R)  Divted eamings per shere 048 041 1707% 0.35 021 0.14
EBSFEENEE  Ratio of welghted average RE0OSEESE
retun on net assets Increased by 0.68
10.58% 990%  percentage points 9.81% 6.38% 4.56%
ER
WI9EF  201BER(HER) LEERER  07EREEE)  016FREEE)  2015FR(ERE)
Asat Change as Asat Asat Asat
Asat31  31December2018  comparedtothat 31 December 2017 31 December 2016 31 December 2015
5 Item December 2019 (after adjustment) oflastyear (afteradjustment)  (after acjustment)  (after acjustment)
RMB AMB B AWB B
#2E Total assets 6,436,024,60048  5,952507,432.90 812% 530497348460 477073722561  4534,972,824.73
Bak Total liabilities 3,325,495,154.66  3,137,459,111.09 599% 273356840042  2,084,224,885.88  2,547,469,602.64
JEREER Minoriy interest 14150138401 119,588,899.77 1832% 10265906416 92,832928.12  100,749,401.46
FEREMRARES  Net assets atidoutable to
FEE shareholders of listed
company 2,969,028,070.81  2,695,459,422.04 10.15%  2,488,755,820.11  1993,679,411.61  1,886,753,820.63
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BN EBRBERE (&)

Summary of Financial and Operating Result (continued)

1.

MBIHE (R) 1.

]

1. DARHBRREERY LLEE
UMPE  BHBELEHERA
BTSRRI 038 -

2. RAAEERER—EHTLE
A 0F - AU AR EBURETIE
Wi -

3. BEPRERERBARIAR
ARFEERE o

Financial Summary (Continued)
Notes:

1. The changes in the accounting policies of the Company have
no impact on the above indicators. The changes in accounting
policies are reflected in paragraph 38 of Part IV. of Notes to the
Financial Statements.

2. The Company has made retrospective adjustments to the
previous financial year’'s data due to the merger of enterprises
under the common control this financial year.

3. There is no change in the share capital of the Company from the
end of the reporting period to the date of disclosure of the report.

201 9f39¥535§91ﬁ*§ﬁ(* (2) Principal Financial Data of 2019 (prepared in accordance
E#%T) with quarter) (RMB)
B—ZFE E-FE BEEE EMEE
The first The second The third The fourth
"E ltem quarter quarter quarter quarter
EERA Operating income 1,629,794,138.89 1,492,853,018.57 1,308,052,910.57 1,175,320,795.27
FER EMAFIRER Net profits
pevalbEd attributable to

shareholders of
listed company
FEN ETARRRERN Net profits
HBRIHCEIEIBRAF  attributable to
FE shareholders of
listed company
after deduction
of non-recurring
profit or loss
EEHEERMITEM Net cash flow from
255 operating activities

76,090,649.61 73,348,164.25 92,246,809.53 58,280,642.33

72,717,214.21 63,081,445.78 74,272,010.62 48,484,5624.07

43,136,914.38 89,272,422.89  129,436,326.17 86,425,742.73

o2

AEAAFEEER—FHTRESGH
AR FEEBEET TEPRE L
BB EEREMARERRERETE
WS FEERSHEEMBEREES
o

Note:

The Company has made retrospective adjustments to the previous financial
year’'s data due to the merger of enterprises under common control this
financial year. There are some significant variations in the financial indicators
of the above financial data or its aggregated amount and those of the relevant
disclosures in the quarterly reports and interim report.

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED / 2019 ANNUAL REPORT



S BENEBBERE (&)

Summary of Financial and Operating Result (continued)

BRE(PEL RS ER)FER 2. Extraordinary Items After Income Tax in
HIERERRENNREAR Accordance with CASBE (RMB):
SHFIENRE)WMT - (AR%

7T)

EH 20195 &8 20185 &% 20175 ©% A

Item Amount for 2019 Amount for 2018 ~ Amount for 2017 Explanation

INnBEERER (BHRHREEREER (707,420.67) (534,277.39) 30,398,503.77 REETEEERELE
HREER D) ERH

Profit or loss from disposal of non-current assets Disposal of fixed assets
(including written-off of provisions for assets and intangible asset
impairment)

AR HESNBFHE (R EEE R 40,952,545.11 21,995,213.23 19,111,669.75 W2 REHAEt A S HA
B RRERGIEETHELTEEZ TN BER BT
FE#BhBRAN)

Government subsidies recognised in current Received and
profit and loss, (excluding government grants amortized as
which are closely related to the Company’s government
business and conform with the amount and subsidies recognized
quantities at a national standard) into the current

period
—EHTEEAHEENFRRAIBTZEAH 5,672,855.48 5,226,366.81 3,292,800.70 BB LAHHANFE
EI B E B F R #=HI73%

Net profit or loss of subsidiaries acquired 73% of net profit and
through business combination under the loss before merger
same control from the beginning of the period of Wanbo Chemical
to the date of combination

BRRAREREEEBHERNERENRES 7,514,057.09 7,154,674.51 6,026,908.54 HfhiEs TERE DAL
%%’hﬁ@%ﬁ@ﬂﬁ? TEERE W

E RpUemas TEERREENRAR
BEEZ @EA*M&FE LHMEEMEE
ITEEREE  RHUEERBE  TEER
BNHEMEERERGRE RS

Except for the elective hedging related to normal
businesses, profits or losses generated from
changes in fair value for holding of trading
financial assets, derivative financial assets
and trading financial liabilities, and investment
income from derivative of trading financial
assets, deviate financial assets, trading
financial liabilities, derivative financial liabilities
and other creditor’s rights investments

Investment bonus and
revenue from other
equity interests
instruments

ZE-NFFER [ URFEREROGERAA
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RR(PELEFHENRR
HFEFHRZOHMNBREE R
W(FERE)WMT : (AR
T) (#8)

2. Extraordinary ltems After Income Tax in
Accordance with CASBE (RMB): (Continued)

HH 20195 &8 2018 25 20175 &% HH

Item Amount for 2019 Amount for 2018~ Amount for 2017 Explanation

BEETRENR N EKFUEREREED 58,420.75 BE%EHED

Reversal of the provision for receivables that The returns of
had been subject to individual impairment depreciation
assessment reserves

B LR IR 2 SNt B R IMEA RIS
Non-operating income and expenditure other
than the above items

B BT ER

Less: Income tax effect

PEERERT ERFIR)

Minority interests (after tax)

A
HnA

Total

(5,143,291.19) (8,602,611.01)

(4,461,495.02)

7,036,381.14 2,939,058.89 9,043,678.09
(158,706.35) 11,664.17 1,759,584.15
41,411,071.03 22,288,753.09 43,623,545.25

2 RRBREHTFEESRE(RARETE
FHARGERERBELEREE 1% —
FEFHER) TR  JBNIELTEE
BREERRAEAKEHBENER NI
Fi

RACARENENERA (3
(PELESTERER) (A
R#%T)

Note:

During the reporting period, the Company did not list the above items as

ordinary items as defined or listed in “Company information disclosure of
securities for public issuance explanatory announcement No. 1 — non-

recurring profit and loss”.

3. Items by Fair Value (Prepared in Accordance

with CASBE) (RMB)

TERnEE AR 1

BeH 29ER ZADrBEEY HEMA(E Hxed

Amount as at Change of Total change Provision  Amount as at 31

BH Item 1 January 2019 fair value of fair value impaiment  December 2019
SRAE: Financial assets:

EfblERTARA Other equity instruments Investment ~ 189,739,168.00 182,111,461.30 235,474,096.00

JEUFIERE Recelvables financing 139,118,405.40 145,924,204.55

At Tota 328,857,673.40 182,111,461.30 381,398,300.55

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED / 2019 ANNUAL REPORT



B2 B N IR RIE N

CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND INFORMATION ON HAREHOLDERS

1.

i EEERE 1. Changes in Share Capital Structure
HEEN K Count unit: share
2019128 31H 2018F12A31H
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
{EREF A
BRizEE LBl % Rz 1%
Number of % of the total Number of % of the total
shares  share capital shares share capital
BRI Class of shares (share) (%) (share) (%)
- BREFHD 1. Total number of conditional tradable
R A shares 27,364,370 4.400 27,364,370 4.400
EIERET State-owned shares
BREAGR Domestic legal person shares 27,352,768 4.398 27,352,768 4.398
ARERERERER Conditional tradable senior
management A shares 11,602 0.002 11,602 0.002
Hity Others
= EREEHD 2. Total number of unconditional tradable
R A shares 594,495,077 95.600 594,495,077 95.600
AR LA AR) Renminbi-denominated ordinary
shares (A shares) 399,495,077 64.242 399,495,077 64.242
AN EmANERR (HER) Non-RMB-denominated foreign listed
shares (H shares) 195,000,000 31.358 195,000,000 31.358
= KRy 3. Total number of shares 621,859,447 100.00 621,859,447 100.00
PRE R EENSR 2. Change in Shares with Selling Restrictions

2017%F 108 » ARRFERAFAELT
21,040,59108AR% - EFBEREEAE
BERAR - LURBEREEESAY
TtEERGEBE)((BERESDRBER
917,930,9050% » LI 5 37 5 B 22 (% {n
ERRAFR-F—HETHRE(E
THR%5T 8 ) REER% 153,109,686 % °
2018F NAIEMEARNNESHIL TR
(F10MREIBARASA) 12 - BmE L
f%23,310,1768% + B TR &K
4,042,592 o ZERMDHER2020F 10
BA138 2 EFf#R%E -

In October 2017, the Company issued 21,040,591 A shares through
non-public offering, of which Juneng Capital Management Co., Ltd.
subscribed 17,930,905 shares through Shandong Ju Ying Industrial
Fund Partnership (Limited Partnership)* (LEBHEXESAE
TEERAEE) (“Juying Fund”) and the phase 1 Employee Stock
Ownership Scheme of Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company
Limited (“Employee Stock Ownership Plan”) subscribed 3,109,686
shares. After implementing capital reserve conversion plan (issuance
of 3 new shares for every 10 existing shares) in 2018, Juying Fund
held 23,310,176 shares and Employee Stock Ownership Plan held
4,042,592 shares. All of those shares will be released from selling
restrictions on 13 October 2020.

ZE-NFFER [ URFEREROGERAA
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BRAZSBRRRER (&)

Changes in Share Capital Structure and Information on Shareholders (continued)

3.

BRIERN A

K2019F12A318 » A A%
RAAY E32149F » BIEHMRE
HA4TFE - AR E32,102F 1A
20202 A29H AN Al i SR 42
41,170F » BIEHRRARERA7F © A

(1)

BER%E 41,123 ©

R2019F 12 A31 BEHA AR TR

Shareholders Information

(1)  As at 31 December 2019, the Company had on record a total
of 32,149 shareholders, including 47 holders of H Shares
and 32,102 holders of A Shares. As at 29 February 2020, the
Company had a record a total of 41,170 shareholders, including
47 holders of H Shares and 41,123 holders of A Shares.

(2)  As at 31 December 2019, the top ten shareholders of the

DA TZREBERAT Company were as follows:
By R Count unit: share
HEHX HENR HRERE FHERE
BREH BREE fHIRLLH% HRBE HASHER  RENERRE REDRHHE
Number of
shares held at Change Number of
the end of over the conditional Number of
Nature of % of the total ~ the Reporting Reporting tradable unconditional
Name of shareholders shareholders share capital Period Period shares held tradable shares
EREREERRAR BEEA .94 204,864,092 204,864,092 204,864,092
(Hualu Holdings Co. Ltd.") i) (HHC")  State-owned
EATREGRBABRAR H& 31.04 193,053,227 (541,650) 193,053,227
HKSCC (Nominees) Limited H shares
EWAAEEERAR - LERRE £ 3.75 23,310,176 23,310,176
FHEEMOE(ERAY) Fund
(Ju Neng Capital Management
Company Limited — Shandong Ju
Ying Industrial Fund Partnership
(Limited Partnership)’)
BERSEE-REBM-EERE £ 1.39 8,649,758 8,649,758 8,649,758
PREREEEENE Fund

(Qilu Securities Asset Management
- Minsheng Bank - Qilu Minsheng
No.2 Collective Asset Management
Plan)

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED / 2019 ANNUAL REPORT
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RASE R RRER (B)

Changes in Share Capital Structure and Information on Shareholders (continued)

B SRAR R A 4R () 3. Shareholders Information (Continued)
(2 R2019F12A31 BEFEEARRK (2)  As at 31 December 2019, the top ten shareholders of the
DR+ RREERAT ¢ (8B) Company were as follows: (Continued)
EENX HEOR HRERE BHERE
BRER BRKE HHHRLLH% BRME  EEEDER  GHORARE GHEORNBE
Number of
shares held at Change Number of
the end of over the conditional Number of
Nature of % of the total  the Reporting Reporting tradable  unconditional
Name of shareholders shareholders share capital Period Period shares held tradable shares
B BREAA 1,37 8,541,187 3,924,281 8,541,187
(HUANG PEILING) Natural person in
the territory
FRIEE (LN SUIXIAN) BRERA 082 5,129,874 2,687,430 5,129,874
Natural person in
the territory
BRATALERR AR BINEA 0.70 4,367,137 3,222,295 4,367,137
(HKSCC Limited) Overseas Legal
Person
ERREERARLT Hualu BEEA 0.67 4,143,168 4,143,168 4,143,168
Investment Development Co. Ltd) ~ State-owned
WRHFERERDBERAR #iRarEl 0.65 4,042,592 4,042,592
- E-HEIRR:HE Share Qwnership
(Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Scheme
Company Limited —Phase |
Employee Share Ownership
Scheme?)
RER BREAA 0.21 1,330,000 180,000 1,330,000
(CHEN HUIFANG) Natural person in
the territory

“E-NEER | URFERERDERAT
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BRAZSBRRRER (&)

Changes in Share Capital Structure and Information on Shareholders (continued)

3. BREIERMNE ()

@

R2019F 12 A31 BEHA AR TR
DR+ RREERAT ¢ (8B)

AT10% MR & IR BRI E
P

Shareholders Information (Continued)

(2)  As at 31 December 2019, the top ten shareholders of the
Company were as follows: (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the ten largest shareholders of the
unconditional tradable shares of the Company were as follows:

BEWEXRER
BERESEFRNBE

Number of

Count unit: share

unconditional BHhER
tradable shares Nature of shares
BEREE at the end of the B BE
Name of shareholders Reporting Period Class of shares Number
EBRIZREEAFRAF(HHC) () 204,864,092 ARB LR 204,864,092
RMB ordinary share
EEPREE(REBA)ERAT 193,053,227 FHN ETINE IR 193,053,227
(HKSCC (Nominees) Limited) Overseas listed
foreign share
EEEHFEAE -—RAESRIT-BERER 8,649,758 ARBLBIX 8,649,758
SEEEBTHEME RMB ordinary share
(Qilu Securities Asset Management —
Minsheng Bank — Qilu Minsheng No.2
Collective Asset Management Plan)
F{M 5 (HUANG PEILING) 8,541,187 AREL B 8,541,187
RMB ordinary share
MIZE(LIN SUIXIAN) 5,129,874 AR LR 5,129,874
RMB ordinary share
EE P REEE R A B(HKSCC Limited) 4,367,137 AREEE @R 4,367,137
RMB ordinary share
ERRERRERAT 4,143,168 AR LB 4,143,168
(Hualu Investment Development Co., Ltd.) RMB ordinary share
f& =75 (CHEN HUIFANG) 1,330,000 AR LR 1,330,000
RMB ordinary share
5 RKF(YANG DAYU) 1,170,000 AR R 1,170,000
RMB ordinary share
Bk (TAN YONGFANG) 947,861 AR LR 947,861
RMB ordinary share

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED / 2019 ANNUAL REPORT



RASE R RRER (B)

Changes in Share Capital Structure and Information on Shareholders (continued)

3. BEERMNREGEE)
R2019F12 A31 BEHA AR TR

@

AL

(2D

TREREROT - (&)

HBRETREHEBREER
ERAR(TERKRE] - AIE
BEREEARAR(ERE
BREEZEWNBARNEEN
4,143,168 A - ELE20194F
12A31H EBEREEEE
MR E MR AR AR ([4a])
rEEZEWBRARAIEZEERE
S RIEEA A A R]17,791,800/%H
B (RN EONERR) (M1 A A
BT A2.86%) ~ 4,143,168
BEARR (B0 1h R A B BETRA
0.67%) °

AN R EREERT LR
REABERA AR — BRI TBIRORLAR ¢
BREBREAFREARDARER
EREBEERARNEETFAA
Sh o AR BEEARA Lt B A%
R2RARBFEEBERCER
RORYBHFZ SRR EHR
A BEESEEERRE SR
B ET R BB EIRIE)
RER—BITBA - BARAI
BRI R B A B R Rk
(EMRRKIBERIE) REH
—HITBA -

BREBREFRERDARER
EREBERARNNEZEFAA
S AR B E E AR
PREMEIRER 2 H - Bl ERE
GHREREAMER MRS F
ERBER bTHAREFE
(EMRRKBERRE)REDN
—HITBA -

FEARBRMNE% A EBNEA
BRAEBEREBERAF -

B EXETHE RIREEATA R
2019128318 » EEMA
TTBEEF - EF - ARQA
MEETRABRSREEAS
[& & )RR A AR 15 sk A8 2
B (R T-B R 8 ) R 5 By i
WRAR - ABAREEBENE
571 & (FBEH KA E &) EXVED
2R EIDERIEXMABRAR
RIRE B RAELEE - kA
BRI CEHF R B E1&0I) %336
EREFENS LM E
o AEBARTNEZRE
(EERBBHRMABEHZ(E
BE TS LR AN ([
FRAL -

3. Shareholders Information (Continued)

@

As at

31 December 2019, the top ten shareholders of the

Company were as follows: (Continued)

Notes:

Such figure excludes the 4,143,168 A shares indirectly held by
Hualu Investment Development Co., Ltd. (“Hualu Investment”),
a direct wholly owned subsidiary of HHC. As of 31 December
2019, Hualu Investment and Well Bring Limited (“Well Bring”) are
a direct wholly owned subsidiary and an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of HHC respectively. Well Bring owns 17,791,800 H
shares of the Company (being overseas listed foreign shares),
representing approximately 2.86% of the issued share capital of
the Company. Hualu Investment owns 4,143,168 A shares of the
Company, representing approximately 0.67% of the issued share
capital of the Company.

The following is a description of any association relationship or
concerted actions of the above shareholders under applicable
PRC laws and regulations: Except for Hualu Investment which
is a wholly owned subsidiary of HHC, to the best of their
knowledge, the Directors are not aware as to whether there is
any Association Relationship (as defined in the Rules Governing
Listing of Shares On Shenzhen Stock Exchange) amongst the
remaining of the abovementioned shareholders, nor if any of
them is a person acting in concert as defined in the Measures
for the Administration of the Takeover of Listed Companies”
(“Administration Measures for Takeover”) issued by the China
Securities Regulatory Commission (the “CSRC”). In addition, the
Directors are not aware whether there is any association amongst
the shareholders of H Shares of the Company or if any of them
is a person acting in concert as defined in the Administration
Measures for Takeover.

Except for Hualu Investment which is a subsidiary of HHC,
the Directors are not aware whether there is any association
amongst the other above-mentioned shareholders without trading
limit condition of the Company, or amongst the other above-
mentioned shareholders without trading limit condition and the
other shareholders of the Company or if any of them is a person
acting in concert as defined in the Administration Measures for
Takeover.

The only domestic shareholder directly holding more than 5% of
the total issued shares of the Company is HHC.

Save as disclosed above and so far as the Directors are aware, as
at 31 December 2019, no other person (other than the Directors,
supervisors of the Company (the “Supervisors”), chief executives
or members of senior management of the Company) had an
interest or short position in the Company’s shares or underlying
shares (as the case may be) which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company and SEHK under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO”) and as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO, or
was otherwise a Substantial Shareholder (as defined in the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the SEHK (the “Listing
Rules”) of the Company.
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Changes in Share Capital Structure and Information on Shareholders (continued)
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3.

Shareholders Information (Continued)

©)

Information of Controlling Shareholder (as defined under the
Listing Rules) of the Company during the Reporting Period

On 3 April 2019, the Controlling Shareholder of the Company
was changed from Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Group
Co., Ltd. (“*SXPGC”) to HHC. The ultimate controller of the
Company remains unchanged and remains the State-owned
Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the State
Council (“SASAC”) of Shandong province. For details, please
refer to the announcement published on Juchao website (http://
www.cninfo.com.cn) and HKExnews website (https://www.
hkexnews.hk/) on and before 8 April 2019.

HHC, a wholly state-owned company, was established on 28
January 2005. The registered capital of HHC is RMB3.103
billion and its legal representative is Mr. Fan Jun. Social Unified
Credit Code of HHC is 913700007710397120. The scope
of business of HHC is self-funding investment in chemical,
pharmaceutical and environmental protection industries
(business); management operations and consultancy. HHC
indirectly hold 32.19% shares of Shandong Hualu-Hengsheng
Chemical Co., Ltd..

R E ARBUTR A EE RS EE e

Shandong Provincial State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission

99.91%

Ly SR HE AR T AT R
China Shangdong Group Ltd

100%

Hpat A PR A
Well Bring Co., Ltd

2.86%

59.16%
He gl
HHC
100%
e PR A BRA A
Hualu Investment Co., Ltd.
32.94% 0.67%
iR gE
The Company
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Changes in Share Capital Structure and Information on Shareholders (continued)
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DIVIDENDS

The Board proposes the profit distribution plan for year 2019
as follows: based on the total issued shares of the Company of
621,859,447 shares (of which 426,859,447 shares were A shares
and 195,000,000 shares were H shares) as at 31 December 2019, it is
proposed a dividend of RMBO0.12 (tax inclusive) for every share of the
Company be paid to shareholders. The abovementioned proposed
dividends distribution for year 2019 is subject to approval by
shareholders of the Company. Shareholders and potential investors
are advised to exercise caution when dealing in the securities of the
Company.

An announcement containing further details as to, amongst others,
the payment currency and applicable foreign exchange rate for the
proposed cash dividend, the relevant record date and book closure
period will be disclosed in due course.
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Brief Introduction of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Officers

Directors

Mr. Zhang Daiming, aged 57, is a senior economist. He graduated from
Qingdao Science and Technology University, specialising in organic
chemical engineering and obtained a master’s degree in economics
from Shanghai Financial and Economic University. Mr. Zhang joined
Shangdong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Factory in 1987 and was previously
a workshop technician, planner of the planning and statistics department
of the Company, the deputy manager and manager of the international
trade department of the Company and the deputy general manager of the
Company,the chairman of Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Group Co.,
Ltd. Mr. Zhang is the Chairman of the Company, and Shandong Xinhua
Pharmaceutical (Europe) B.V., the executive director of Shandong Xinhua
Import & Export Co., Ltd., Zibo Xinhua-Perrigo Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. and
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical (USA) Inc.

Mr. Ren Fulong, aged 57, is a researcher and practising pharmacist. He
graduated from Shandong Changwei Medicine College in 1985. From 1985
to 1988, Mr. Ren was a resident physician. In 1991, Mr. Ren obtained his
master of medicine from Beijing Medical University and joined Shandong
Xinhua Pharmaceutical Factory in the same year. He previously held the
positions of the deputy director and the director of the Company’s research
institute, the assistant to the general manager and the deputy general
manager of the Company, the deputy general manager of SXPGC and
the general manager of the Company, the director and general manager
of SXPGC. Mr. Ren is the director of the Company,the general manager
of Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical branch of Hualu Holdings Co., Ltd.
and the chairman of the board of directors of Shandong Xinhua Wanbo
Chemical Industry Co., Ltd.

Mr. Du Deping, aged 50, is a researcher. He graduated from the Ocean
University of PRC, specialising in chemistry and obtained a master’s degree
and Doctor of Pharmaceutical Engineering in medicinal chemistry from
Shandong University. He joined Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Factory
in 1991. He was previously a deputy head and head of the workshop,
assistant to the general manager of the Company and deputy general
manager of the Company. Mr. Du is currently a director and the general
manager of the Company, and the chairman of the board of Shandong
Xinhua Pharmaceutical Chemical Industry Design Co., Ltd. and Xinhua
Pharmaceutical (Shouguang) Co., Ltd. (“Shouguang”), the executive
director of Xinhua (Zibo) Real Estate Co., Ltd. and Shandong Zibo XinCat
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED / 2019 ANNUAL REPORT
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Directors, Supervisors, Senior Officers and Staff (continued)

Brief Introduction of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Officers (Continued)

Directors (Continued)

Mr. Xu Lie, aged 54, is a senior economist and professor level senior political
engineer, and is a university graduate and is a master of management. He
joined Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Factory in 1986 and has been the
deputy director and the director of the office, the deputy head of the office,
and the manager of the human resource department,a director and the
chairman of the labour union of SXPGC. Mr. Xu is currently a director and
the chairman of the labour union of the Company.

Mr. Du Guanhua, aged 62, is a doctor, pharmacology researcher (professor)
and tutor to PhD candidates. Mr. Du obtained a PhD in Pharmacology from
Peking Union Medical College. Mr. Du has been the head of National Center
for Pharmaceutical Screening since July 1999, the chairman of Chinese
Pharmacological Society since November 2007. Mr. Du is currently an
independent non-executive director of the Company, and an independent
director of Shandong Luoxin Pharmacy Stock Co., Ltd, and an independent
director of Hebei Changshan Biochemical Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

Mr. Li Wenming, aged 45, graduated from Faculty of Management of
the Dalian University of Technology and obtained a Master of Business
Administration. Mr. Li previously held the positions of officer of Henan
Pingdingshan Zhanhe Health Bureau, market researcher of Beijing CHNMED
Consulting Co., Ltd., manager of the pharmaceutical department of Beijing
Peking University Founder Group. He is currently a partner of Hedun
Consulting Co., LTD, and a deputy secretary general of China Association
of Pharmaceutical Commerce, an non-executive director of Beijing AKEC
Medical Co., Ltd..He is a director of YunNan JianZhidia health multiple shop
Co., Ltd.. He is currently an independent non-executive director of the
Company.

LO Wah Wai (E#f), aged 56, graduated with a bachelor’s degree in
business administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1986
and a master’s degree in management science from New Jersey Institute
of Technology in the United States in 1992. Mr. Lo is a practicing member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and is a member
of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lo has more
than 20 years’ service experience in auditing and business consulting
services, in which he had more than seven years’ experience in auditing
and business consulting services in an international accounting firm (Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu), of which two years were spent in the United States of
America. Save from serving as an incumbent director of BMI Consultants
Limited, Mr. Lo is also an independent non-executive director of Chongqging
Machinery & Electric Co., Ltd. (stock code: 2722) and Tenfu (Cayman)
Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 6868), of which both are listed on
the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and America
Document Security Systems, Inc. He is currently an independent non-
executive director of the Company.
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Directors, Supervisors, Senior Officers and Staff (continued)
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Brief Introduction of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Officers (Continued)

Supervisors

Mr. Li Tianzhong, aged 57, is a senior engineer. He graduated from the
Shandong Institute of Technology, specialising in industry automation. He
joined Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Factory in 1983. Mr. Li has been
the engineer and director of the electric motor workshop, manager of the
trade department, supply and marketing department and drug department
of the Company, director of the Company, assistant to the general manager,
director and deputy general manager of Xinhua Lukang Pharmaceutical
Group Corporation, director and deputy general manager of Shandong
Xinhua Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd. Mr. Li is currently the chairman of
the supervisory committee of the Company and a deputy general manager
of Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical branch of HHC.

Mr. Tao Zhichao, aged 50, graduated from East China University of Politics
and Laws and obtained a bachelor’s degree in law. Mr. Tao was also
conferred a master’s degree in law from Shandong University. Mr. Tao
is a director of management and a senior partner of Beijing Yingke (Zibo)
Associates, and is currently an independent supervisor of the Company.

Mr. Xiao Fangyu aged 50, graduated from the Department of Mathematics
of Shandong University in 1992, asset appraiser and CREV. He has been
a section member and superintendent in Zichuan District Finance Bureau
Zibo, and a senior manager of Shandong Zhenglu accounting firm, and
department manager of Shandong North asset appraisal firms and a deputy
director of Zhongxingcai Guanghua accounting firm. Mr. Xiao is currently
a general manager of Tianjian Xingye Asset appraisal Co., Ltd. and an
independent supervisor of the Company.

Ms. Hu Yanhua, aged 45, is a senior political engineer, graduated from
Shandong University. She has also received a postgraduate education. She
joined the Company in 1996. Ms. Hu was the deputy secretary of the Youth
League Committee of Xinhua Lukang Pharmaceutical Group Corporation.,
and secretary of the Youth League Committee of SXPGC, and a office
director of labor union and the secretary of the political affairs department.
She is a employee supervisor of the Company and the secretary of the party
and mass work department.

Mr. Wang Jian Ping, aged 52, graduated from the School of Pharmaceutical
Engineering of Shenyang Pharmaceutical University and is a senior engineer.
He joined the Company in July 1989 and has held positions in the Company
such as a factory technician, the project leader of the research department,
head of the fourth synthesis laboratory. He is the Employee Representative
Supervisor, and the head of the chemical and pharmaceutical research
centre of the Company’s research department, as well as the employee
representative of the factory management committee.

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED / 2019 ANNUAL REPORT
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Directors, Supervisors, Senior Officers and Staff (continued)

Brief Introduction of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Officers (Continued)

Senior Officers

Mr. Wang Xiaolong, aged 55, is a senior engineer. He graduated from
Shandong University of Technology, specialising in automation. Mr. Wang
joined Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Factory in 1988 and previously
held the positions of deputy director and director of the electricity workshop,
the director of the machinery sub- factory, the deputy general manger of the
Company and the deputy general manager of SXPGC. Mr. Wang is currently
a deputy general manager of the Company, and the chairman of Shandong
Xinhua Mechanical and Electrical Engineering Co., Ltd.

Mr. Dou Xuejie, aged 60, is a researcher. He graduated from Shandong
Medicine College, specialising in pharmacy and obtained a master’s degree
in medicinal chemistry from Shandong University. He joined Shandong
Xinhua Pharmaceutical Factory in 1982. He was previously the deputy
director and the director of the quality control department, the deputy chief
engineer and quality director of the Company. Mr. Dou resigned as the
deputy general manager of our company on September 24,2019 due to
age.

Mr. Du Deqing, aged 55, is a researcher. He graduated from Qingdao
Science and Technology University, specialising in organic chemical
engineering and obtained a master’s degree in business administration
from Wuhan University of Technology and obtained a master’s degree in
chemical engineering from Qingdao Science and Technology University
and Ph.D. in Chemical Engineering and Technology from Beijing Institute
of Technology. He joined the Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Factory in
1986. He was a Workshop Assistant Engineer, a Dispatch Room Assistant
Engineer, deputy director and director of the dispatch department, the
director of the purchasing department and assistant to the general manager
of the Company. Mr. Du is currently a deputy general manager of the
Company.

Mr. He Tongqing, aged 50, is a senior economist. He graduated from the
Shandong Polytechnic University, specialising in materials science and
engineering and obtained a MBA from Shandong University. Mr. He joined
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Factory in 1991. His previous positions
included, workshop technician, planner, sales officer, regional manager,
manager of the drug department, marketing director and the general
manager of Shandong Zibo XinCat Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Mr. He is
currently a deputy general manager of the Company, and the chairman of
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Trade Co., Ltd., the executive director of
Zibo Xinhua Pharmacy Chain Co., Ltd. and Xinhua Pharmaceutical (Gaomi)
Co., Ltd.
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Directors, Supervisors, Senior Officers and Staff (continued)
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Brief Introduction of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Officers (Continued)

Senior Officers (Continued)

Mr. Hou Ning, aged 46, holds a master’s degree in applied accounting and
finance from Hong Kong Baptist University. He is a senior accountant and a
senior economist. Mr. Hou had served as deputy head of Auditing Division
of Shandong Hualu Hengsheng Group Co., Ltd., head of Audit Department,
head of Investment Department of Technological Development Centre,
manager of Marketing Department and manager of Finance Department of
Shandong Hualu-Hengsheng Chemical Co., Ltd. Mr. Hou currently serves as
chief financial officer of the Company and a director of Zibo Xinhua — Perrigo
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. and Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Trade Co.,
Ltd..

Mr. Zheng Zhonghui, aged 48, is a senior engineer. Mr. Zheng graduated
and obtained his PhD in Microbiology and Biochemical Pharmacy from
Peking Union Medical College. He joined the Company in 2005. He
previously held the positions of the senior engineer and the deputy director
of the Company’s research institute, and is currently the deputy general
manager of the Company and the director of the Company’s research
institute.

Mr. Cao Changgqiu, aged 50, is a senior economist. He graduated from
the Ocean University of China, specialising in economic management and
joined the Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Factory in 1991. Mr. Cao is the
company secretary of the Company.

The term of the Director, Supervisors and Senior Officers of the Company is
until 22 December 2020.

There are no association relationships among the above persons.
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Directors, Supervisors, Senior Officers and Staff (continued)
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Brief Introduction of Directors, Supervisors and

9 (#8) Senior Officers (Continued)
ELFES EFEREEARESHRHEZXLT Changes of Directors, Supervisors and senior management and
EEERERINT - their respective interests in the securities of the Company were as
follows:
20194
12H31H
2019 (EVNE] 20184
12A31AH B#&TRA 12A31AH
BFERY LR LE DI (%) ZEIER BERY
Number of Percentage of Number of
Shares the total issue Shares
(share) as at Shares as at Change in (share) as at
24 11 31 December 31 December number of 31 December
Name Position 2019 2019 (%) Shares 2018
2
Directors
AR EER 15,470(Note 2) 0.0025 15,470(Note 2)
Mr. Zhang Daiming ~ Chairman 174,888(Note 3) 0.0281 Nil  174,888(Note 3)
B=ioE FNITEE 58,296(Note 3) 0.0094 i 58,296(Note 3)
Mr. Ren Fulong Non-executive Director Nil
BT HITEF - BI5IR 151,568(Note 3) 0.0244 &  151,568(Note 3)
Mr. Du Deping Executive Director, General Nil
Manager
%31 FITES 81,614(Note 3) 0.0131 i 81,614(Note 3)
Mr. Xu Lie Non-executive Director Nil
FiDii FFHITEZ(R201951 A29R AEE i B
Mr. Zhao Bin BiE) Nil Nil Nil
Non-executive Director (Resigned
on 29 January 2019)
EER BAURTES REFE i REFE
Mr. Lo Wah Wai Independent non-executive Nil Nil Nil
Director
MR BUERTES AEE i AEE
Mr. Du Guanhua Independent non-executive Nil Nil Nil
Director
EXH BAURITES REFE i REE
Mr. Li Wenming Independent non-executive Nil Nil Nil

Director
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Directors, Supervisors, Senior Officers and Staff (continued)

EF EERAMSHREEARSG Brief Introduction of Directors, Supervisors and
9 (#8) Senior Officers (Continued)

FAFEE -EERSEAREBRYHFLT
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Changes of Directors, Supervisors and senior management and
their respective interests in the securities of the Company were as
follows: (Continued)

22

20194
12A31H
20194 (VNG 2018
12A31H BEITRG 12A31H
HERY BB H(%) HEER HERH
Number of Percentage of Number of
Shares the total issue Shares
(share) as at Shares as at Change in (share) as at
24 W% 31 December 31 December number of 31 December
Name Position 2019 2019 (%) Shares 2018
EE
Supervisors
£ N EEgIRE 93,272(Note 3) 0.0150 &  93,272(Note 3)
Mr. Li Tianzhong Chairman of Supervisory Nil
Committee
s BUEE REFHE i AEE
Mr. Tao Zhichao Independent Supervisor Nil Nil Nil
BEAE BUES AR e AEH
Mr. Xiao Fangyu Independent Supervisor Nil Nil Nil
B%E BIes 34,977(Note 3) 0.0056 i 34,977 (Note 3)
Ms. Hu Yanhua Employee Supervisor Nil
T&IF BTE=R REFHE i REE
Mr. Wang Jianping ~ Employee Supervisor Nil Nil Nil
HtSREEAR
Other senior management
F/NEE BlsegE 81,614(Note 3) 0.0131 &  81,614(Note 3)
Mr. Wang Xiaolong  Deputy General Manager Nil
B2 Bl #4538 (1201949 A 24 H 34,977(Note 3) 0.0056 & 34,977(Note 3)
BE(E)
Mr. Dou Xuejie Deputy General Manager Nil
(Resigned on 24 September
2019)
HEE Bluassre 81,614(Note 3) 0.0131 & 81,614(Note 3)
Mr. Du Deqing Deputy General Manager Nil
ERE Bliasge 116,592(Note 3) 0.0187 & 116,592(Note 3)
Mr. He Tongging Deputy General Manager Nil
r= HBARA 116,592 (Note 3) 0.0187 #  116,592(Note 3)
Mr. Hou Ning Financial Controller Nil
BopE Bliassrs 23,318(Note 3) 0.0037 & 23,318(Note 3)
Mr. Zheng Zhonghui  Deputy General Manager Nil
ERK BEEWE 2,331(Note 3) 0.0004 i 2,331(Note 3)
Mr. Cao Changqiu  Secretary to the Board Nil
&t
Total 1,067,122 0.1716 - 1,067,122
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Directors, Supervisors, Senior Officers and Staff (continued)

Brief Introduction of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Officers (Continued)

Changes of Directors, Supervisors and senior management and
their respective interests in the securities of the Company were as
follows: (Continued)

Note:

)

All interests in the securities of the Company owned by the Directors,
Supervisors and senior management of the Company are long position in A
Shares.

Mr. Zhang Daiming personally holds 15,470 A Shares.

The relevant shares are held under the Employee Share Ownership Scheme of
the Company of which the relevant person is a participant.

So far as the Directors, the senior management and Supervisors are aware, as
at 31 December 2019, no Director, senior management or Supervisor had any
interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares and/or debentures
(as the case may be) of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(as defined in Part XV of the SFO) which was required to be notified to the
Company and the SEHK pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including any interest or short position which any such Director, senior
management or Supervisor is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO) or which was required to be entered in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or which was otherwise
required to be notified to the Company and the SEHK pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.
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Remuneration of Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Officers

Disclosure of the remuneration of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Officers
(before tax) (RMBO0’000) under the reporting standards for annual reports of
CRSC:

20195F B $RE
M Name Annual remuneration 2019
) Directors
SRS Mr. Zhang Daiming 134.65
183 Mr. Ren Fulong 96.39
FHE¥ Mr. Du Deping 100.78
(3l Mr. Xu Lie 85.49
FizhS Mr. Zhao Bin
i Mr. Du Guanhua 7.00
ES ¢l Mr. Li Wenming 7.00
[ EER Mr. Lo Wah Wai 7.00
Ex Supervisors
TRA Mr. Li Tianzhong 83.61
b Mr. Tao Zhichao 3.00
BAE Mr. Xiao Fangyu 3.00
B gz Ms. Hu Yanhua 36.45
F@lF Mr. Wang Jianping 25.20
HttSREEAR Other senior management
F/NEE Mr. Wang Xiaolong 87.99
=1 Mr. Dou Xuejie 85.49
HiEE Mr. Du Deqjing 85.99
ERE Mr. He Tongging 87.49
&= Mr. Hou Ning 83.91
g Mr. Zheng Zhonghui 87.49
BRK Mr. Cao Changgju 38.31

20106 B ESE  EEASAERAENFE
wiNazE A ARE1,146.248 7T ©

The total remuneration of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Officers in 2019
is RMB11.4624 million.
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SREBEAEBNMEIHER ()
Directors, Supervisors, Senior Officers and Staff (continued)

Change of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Officers

BtER

Ha 35300 £ R HEA F=A

Name Position Type Date Reasons
X EMMITES BR(E 201941 A29H FiRA

Mr. Zhao Bin Non-executive Director Resigned 29 January 2019 Age of Reason
T2 ElRE S BT 2019%F9 A24H Fie IR

Mr. Dou Xuejie Deputy General Manager Resigned 24 September 2019 Age of Reason

EF BEF BEEZRERRMNE

Directors’, Supervisors’ and Senior Officers’

R B SR B 1S R positions and remunerations in controlling
shareholder of the Company:
ERREMN ERREMRT
24 BREMERE RERRE EHERAH EHRIERR IR R
Remuneration
Termination received from
Name Name of the shareholder Position Beginning date  date shareholder
R LR EREEEEREALNA BER 2010507 A06H - &
Zhang Daiming SXPGC Chairman 6 July 2010 - No
EEd LR EREEEERAALNA % R 2010507 A06H - &
Ren Fulong SXPGC Director; general 6 July 2010 - No
manager
EREREEERARLIRNERENNR B8R 2018F11 8190 - &
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical branch of General manager 19 November 2018 - No
Hualu Holdings Co., Ltd.
#3 LR EREREAREEAR S 2011F1A188 - i
Xu Lie SXPGC Director 13 January 2011 - No
FRE WRFEREEERREERF Rlisge 2009107160 - &
Li Tianzhong SXPGC Deputy general 16 October 2009 - No
manager
EREREEBRATIIRAERED AT EIRERSES 2018F115198 - o
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical branch of Deputy general 19 November 2018 - No
Hualu Holdings Co., Ltd. manager

ZE-NFFER [ URFEREROGERAA
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Directors, Supervisors, Senior Officers and Staff (continued)

RIRE#HS®

REBRAFREME QD) EBXRIBEERK
T RBRERGFBN - WERELSHBAK
A RETEB T -

2019F 12 A1 B AEE B T 56,399 A * #%F
EAEBEE2BETTEATEAARKES35,109
Foere

RGBT

Staff and Remuneration

The Group’s staff remuneration was determined in accordance with (i) state
policies, (i) the Company’s financial standing in the corresponding period
and (iii) the remuneration level of general society.

As at 31 December 2019, the number of staff of the Group was 6,399,
and the total amount of their salaries and wages for the year 2019 was
approximately RMB535,109,000.*

The Group’s staff can be categorised by their areas of work as follows:

BEIA®
RIMkne Area of Work Number of Staff
SEAE Production personnel 3,679
TEEMAE Engineering and technology personnel 526
THEEAB Administration personnel 299
MBAB Finance personnel 83
EmfAEAR Research and development personnel 266
HKIBAB Procurement personnel 45
HEAR Sales personnel 1,046
LE2EBRAAR Quiality control and inspection personnel 455
CH Total 6,399

BHEREEDWT

The Group’s staff can be categorised by their education level as follows:

BIAE
BEINFEE Universities or above Number of Staff
KERM FBEF University or above 1,133
RNEER Tertiary institutions 1,822
R ERERERE Intermediate institutions and technical schools 2,525
& KA T ERE Senior high schools or below 919
&t Total 6,399

. B THMAMAELMERLEREN 4
R AREFERAREUHRE[A G TR
REIBHAEFEIF22HENBRTH] T
gl e

*

A breakdown of other items including employee welfare, social insurance and
provident funds is set out under item 22 “Payroll payable” in the Notes to Main
Items in Consolidated Financial Statement in this report.
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Directors, Supervisors, Senior Officers and Staff (continued)

Staff training

In 2019, the Company formulated and implemented the education training
plan according to its production and operation management focus and
education training needs analysis.

The Company has completed 60 corporate level education training
programs, and has trained 3,950 employees in aggregate. The Company
arranged a total of 264 employees to attend external trainings. The
Company successively organized training programs for mid-level
and senior management in relation to business concepts, business
strategies, enterprise Party building, compliance of laws and regulations,
and education on anti-corruption alert for Party members and leading
cadres,comprehensive management capabilities training for department
heads of the Company, professional training on safety quality and
environmental protection equipment, medicine basic theory training for
youth backbone staff, safety skills upgrading training for youth staff and
high-skilled talents training., etc.

By making further efforts on job knowledge and fundamental skill training,
strengthening professional training and staff multi-level training, improving
the way of education evaluation and other effective measures, the Company
improved the pertinence and effectiveness of the education and training and
enhanced training efficiency.

The Company has built up a education training system characterized with
standardized management, scientific, practical and efficient operation, which
improved the capability and competency of staff members and ensured the
efficient operation of the Company’s management system.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL REPORT

(—) RETEEEGEREE

LFREER
HEREE

HRPEEH LT RARDAEN S
B ARREARFTAEBRH

B3k o
BUEFRITRERR
EREEARN  ARBEEGHRA

FoAEH  SBVEFHFEER
=PI

1. Information Disclosed Under the Requirements
of CSRC

1.

Corporate Governance
Regulatory self-examination

The corporate governance practice implemented by the
Company has been in compliance with the relevant rules and
requirements for listed companies in the PRC.

How independent non-executive directors performed
their duties

During the year, the Board convened six Board meetings. The
independent non-executive Directors’ attendances at the Board
meetings are set out below:

saHE
BUSERR E2mRE E@ERR ZREHE BRE fiasE
Attendance in
Name of Independent Number of person/written Attendance
Non-executive Director meetings resolution by alternate Absent Remarks
T 6 6 0 0
Mr. Du Guanghua
EEE 6 6 0 0
Mr. Li Wenming
B 6 6 0 0
Mr. Lo Wah Wai

ERFERN  ARREFSEZ
ég\ax\lﬂsﬁ‘l//\auﬁ Rﬁié
EHFEEHRBERAT

During the year, the Audit Committee convened four meetings.
The independent non-executive Directors’ attendances at the
four meetings are set out below:

HalE
WUEEKR BE2mRe EERA EiTHE BRE fissE
Attendance in
Name of Independent Number of person/written Attendance
Non-executive Director meetings resolution by alternate Absent Remarks
Tt EE 4 4 0 0
Mr. Du Guanghua
FXH 4 4 0 0
Mr. Li Wenming
B 4 4 0 0
Mr. Lo Wah Wai
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Corporate Governance and Internal Control Report (continued)

1. Information Disclosed Under the Requirements
of CSRC (Continued)

1.

Corporate Governance (Continued)

How independent non-executive Directors performed
their duties (Continued)

During the year, the Remuneration and Examination Committee
of the Company convened one meeting. Mr. Du Guanhua,
Mr. Li Wenming and Mr. Lo Wah Wai, members of the
Remuneration and Examination committee, attended the
meeting.

During the year, the independent non-executive Directors did
not raise any disputes on the relevant matters of the Company.

Auditing of the 2019 annual report by the Audit
Committee

(1) The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors issued a
written opinion in respect of the financial and accounting
statements issued by the financial department of the
Company in 2019:

The financial and accounting statement of the Company
was prepared with reference to the accounting policy of
the Company. The application of the accounting policy is
appropriate and the accounting estimates are reasonable
and in compliance with the new Accounting Standards
for Business Enterprises, the Accounting Regulations
for Business Enterprises as well as the regulations
promulgated by the Ministry of Finance. The information
of each financial statement consolidated in the financial
statements of the Company is complete and the basis
of consolidation of the statements is accurate. The
Company’s financial statements are objective, truthful
and accurate, without any material misrepresentations or
omissions.

The Audit Committee considered that the financial

statements can be submitted to the certified accountants
engaged for annual auditing.
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Corporate Governance and Internal Control Report (continued)

(—) R8P B 8 BE & R 5% (V)
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1. Information Disclosed Under the Requirements
of CSRC (Continued)

1.

Corporate Governance (Continued)

Auditing of the 2019 annual report by the Audit
Committee (Continued)

(2) The Audit Committee reviewed the financial and
accounting statements for year 2019 of the Company
again after the issue of a preliminary audit opinion by
ShineWing Certified Public Accountants (“ShineWing”) in
respect of the financial statements for year 2019 of the
Company, and expressed their opinion as follows:

The Company was in compliance with the Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises published by the
Ministry of Finance and regulations in relation to the
financial system of the Company. The preparation
process of the financial statements was reasonable and
compliant with the relevant standards and fairly reflected
the assets, liabilities, shareholders’ equity and operating
results as at 31 December 2019. The information therein
is true, accurate and complete.

The Audit Committee considered that the financial
statements for the year 2019 of the Company which were
preliminarily audited by ShineWing can be submitted for
consideration and approval by the Board of Directors.

(8)  Conclusive report of ShineWing in respect of the auditing
of the financial report of the Company for 2019.

On 8 January 2020, the Audit Committee of the Board
of Directors approved the overall auditing plan for
the financial report of 2019 of the Company which
was discussed and confirmed by the Company and
ShineWing.

ShineWing issued a standard auditing report in relation
to the Company without reservation. The Company
considered that ShineWing had audited in accordance
with the regulations under “Independent Auditing Code of
Certified Accountants of the PRC”. There was ample time
for auditing and reasonable allocation of auditing staff,
and they had attained the corresponding qualification.
The audited financial statements fully reflected the
financial condition of the Company as at 31 December
2019 and the operating results and cash flow of the
Company in 2019. The conclusion upon auditing was in
line with the actual circumstances of the Company.
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Corporate Governance and Internal Control Report (continued)

1. Information Disclosed Under the Requirements
of CSRC (Continued)

1.

Corporate Governance (Continued)

Auditing of the 2019 annual report by the Audit
Committee (Continued)

()

On 20 March 2020 the Audit Committee of the Board
of Directors convened a meeting to review the audited
accounts and results announcement of 2019 and
recommended to re-appoint ShineWing as the financial
auditing institution for the year 2020 with a term of one
year.

For a summary of the works performed by the
Remuneration and Examination Committee and
Nominations Committee, please refer to “2. Information
disclosed under the requirement of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Ltd.”

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing
the financial accounts of the Group. Please refer to
the sections “Responsibilities of the Management and
Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements” and “Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements” in the Auditors’ Report
in this report for details of the Board’s responsibilities
for preparing the accounts and the auditors’ reporting
responsibilities thereof respectively.
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Corporate Governance and Internal Control Report (continued)
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1. Information Disclosed Under the Requirements
of CSRC (Continued)

1.

Corporate Governance (Continued)
Status of Independence

The Company is independent of its Controlling Shareholder in
respect of its business, assets, management, institutions and
finance. The Company’s production and operation are also
independent.

(1)  The Company is mainly engaged in the business
of development, manufacture and sale of bulk
pharmaceuticals, preparations and chemical products.
The Controlling Shareholder of the Company undertook
that it would not engage in any business directly
or indirectly in competition with the business of the
Company.

(2) The Company has its own independent production
and supplementary production system and facilities.
Apart from certain patent technologies and the
trademark “Xinhua”, which are owned by the Controlling
Shareholder, the Company owns its own intangible
assets such as industrial property rights and know-how
technologies used by the Company. The Company also
has an independent procurement and sales network.

(8 The Company is independent of its Controlling
Shareholder in respect of the management of its
workforce and their salaries. The Senior Officers of the
Company including the general manager and the deputy
general manager are paid by the Company. The general
manager and deputy general managers do not hold any
position in the Controlling Shareholder of the Company.

(4)  The Company holds its own shareholders’ general
meetings, and has its own board of directors, supervisory
committee, company secretaries and management,
which are responsible for the different areas and functions
of the Company. The office and the production area of
the Company are separate from those of its Controlling
Shareholder.

(6)  The Company has an independent finance department
with an independent accounting and financial
management system. The Company also maintains its
own independent accounts with banks.
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Corporate Governance and Internal Control Report (continued)

1. Information Disclosed Under the Requirements
of CSRC (Continued)

1.

Corporate Governance (Continued)
Business Competition

No substantive business competition existed between the
Company and its holding company and its subsidiaries.

Save as disclosed, the non-independent Directors of the
Company are not interested in businesses that compete or are
likely to compete with the Company.

Corporate Governance

During the reporting period, the Company continued to
enhance its corporate governance and regulate its operation, so
as to consolidate and deepen achievement from earlier special
campaigns for corporate governance. In strict compliance with
the “Company Law”, “Securities Law”, “Corporate Governance
Guidelines for Listed Companies”, “Rules Governing the Listing
of Shares on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange”, “Guidelines of
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange for the Internal Control of Listed
Companies” and other relevant laws, regulations and regulatory
requirements, the Company constantly improved its internal
operational mechanism and promoted stringent enforcement
of applicable rules and regulations, ensuring the standard
and effective exercise of decision-making, execution and
supervision powers by the shareholders’ general meetings, the
Board of Directors and the Supervisory Committee based on
their clearly-established responsibilities and orderly operation.
The convening procedures of general meetings and meetings
of the Board of Directors and the Supervisory Committee
were in compliance with the relevant requirements of the
Company Law and the Articles of Association. Directors and
Supervisors earnestly performed their duties in accordance with
applicable laws and regulations, accountable to the Company
and its shareholders and fully safeguarding the rights of the
shareholders. The management made business decisions in
strict compliance with standardized operational procedures
and various internal control rules, so as to ensure the Company
operated in accordance with rules and systems. The Company
attached importance to the performance assessment and
incentive and constraint mechanisms and emphasised position
performance appraisal system to stimulate the enthusiasm and
creativity of the managers at various levels.
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Corporate Governance and Internal Control Report (continued)

(—) REPEEE S E KR (I8) 1. Information Disclosed Under the Requirements
of CSRC (Continued)
1. QFREERGEE) 1.  Corporate Governance (Continued)
2 RIS (#8) Corporate Governance (Continued)
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During the reporting period, the Company earnestly and
timely fulfilled its information disclosure obligations under the
principle of “being fair, impartial and open (=/A)" and in strict
compliance with the “Rules Governing the Listing of Shares
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange”, the “Guidelines for Fair
Information Disclosure by Listed Companies” and other relevant
rules and regulatory documents, and ensured the truthfulness,
accuracy and completeness of the information disclosed and
no false representation, misleading statements or material
omissions contained therein. In addition, insider registration
management was further improved to prevent insider dealings
and ensure fairness to investors.

The Company had related transactions with its holding
company and its fellow subsidiaries on continuing basis.
Through the transactions, the Company purchased chemical
raw materials and sold water, electricity, gas and by-products.
The transactions were priced fairly with reference to prevailing
market practices, were not to the detriment of minority
shareholders, and in compliance with the approval procedures
and required announcement procedures for internal related
transactions of the Company.

The establishment and implementation of assessment
and appraisal mechanisms as well as incentive
mechanisms for Senior Officers

The Company selects its Senior Officers from its staff on the
basis of talent and ability. Prior to selecting and appointing
the Senior Officers, the Board of Directors follows a set of
strict selection criteria, which include the assessment of each
candidate’s character, moral standard, coordination ability,
working ability and sense of responsibility. Once nominated
by the Nomination Committee and eventually appointed by
the Board of Directors, the Board of Directors will evaluate the
Senior Officers regularly, particularly in respect of achievements
and their execution of resolutions passed by the Board of
Directors.

By analysing the duties of each of the Senior Officers, the
Company clearly sets out their job nature and scope of
responsibilities and has established a corresponding incentive
and penalty scheme to reward and sanction Senior Officers.
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Corporate Governance and Internal Control Report (continued)

1. Information Disclosed Under the Requirements
of CSRC (Continued)

2.

Internal control
Development of internal control

The internal control leading team, as authorized by the
Board of Directors, is responsible for the organization and
implementation of specific internal control activities, the
development of implementation strategies for internal control,
decision-making on material events and supervision over the
implementation and reports to the Board of Directors in respect
of the development and evaluation of the Company’s internal
control. An internal control evaluation team led by the Audit
Department of the Company and comprising key officers with
ample professional experience was set up to take charge of the
specific implementation of internal control evaluation. The Audit
Department of the Company is responsible for formulating the
work plan for evaluating internal control, which is implemented
after being approved by the internal control leading team.
Pursuant to the work plan and focusing on such key factors
as internal environment, risk assessment, control activities,
information and communication and internal supervision, the
internal control evaluation team carries out a comprehensive
evaluation on the design and operation of the Company’s
internal control, including organization and implementation
of risk identification, survey of deficiencies in internal control,
preparation of the evaluation draft, summarization of the
evaluation results, preparation of internal control evaluation
document. During the evaluation process, the evaluation team
reports to the leading team in respect of the evaluation progress
on a timely basis and conduct communication and discussion
on the preliminary evaluation results. The internal control
evaluation report prepared by the evaluation team, after having
been reviewed, will be submitted to the Board of Directors
for consideration and approval. Having been considered and
approved by Board of Directors, the internal control evaluation
report then will be disclosed publicly. ShineWing has been
engaged by the Company to conduct an independent audit on
the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.
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Corporate Governance and Internal Control Report (continued)

(—) REPEEE S E KR (I8) 1. Information Disclosed Under the Requirements
of CSRC (Continued)
2. EBEEFIIER (1) 2. Internal control (Continued)
EEERI A E R ED Statement of the Board of Directors on responsibilities in
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relation to internal control

The Board of Directors and all Directors of the Company
warrant that there are no false representations, misleading
statements contained in or material omissions from this
report, and severally and jointly accept full responsibility
for the truthfulness, accuracy and completeness of the
information herein contained. It is the responsibility of the
Board of Directors to put in place a sound and effective internal
control mechanism, the establishment and implementation of
which shall be overseen by the Supervisory Committee. The
management shall be responsible for the day-to-day operation
of this mechanism. The objectives of the internal control: to
reasonably ensure that the Company’s business operation is
in compliance with laws and regulations and that the financial
report and relevant information are true and accurate; to ensure
safety of assets; to improve efficiency and effectiveness of
operation and management, and to facilitate achievement
of the Company’s development strategies. Given its intrinsic
limitations, internal control can only provide reasonable
assurance to the above objectives. Moreover, the effectiveness
of internal control is subject to changes in internal and external
environment and the Company’s operation conditions. The
Company has set up supervisory system for internal control.
Correction measures will be adopted upon identification of any
defect in internal control.

Basis for establishment of internal control over financial
reporting

This evaluation report aims to assess the effectiveness of the
design and operation of the Company’s internal control as at
31 December 2019 pursuant to the requirements of the Basic
Standards for Corporate Internal Control (“Basic Standards”)
Guidance on Application of Corporate Internal Control
(“Guidance on Application”) and Guidance on Assessment of
Corporate Internal Control (“Guidance on Assessment”) jointly
issued by the Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic
of China and other four ministries and commissions and the
Company’s internal control system and evaluation methods on
basis of the day-to-day monitoring and special supervision of
the Company’s internal control.
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Corporate Governance and Internal Control Report (continued)

1. Information Disclosed Under the Requirements
of CSRC (Continued)

2. Internal control (Continued)
Self-evaluation report on internal control

During the reporting period, the Company has in place
internal controls in all material aspects according to the Basic
Standards for Corporate Internal Control and relevant rules.
As such internal controls were implemented effectively, the
Company’s internal control objectives were fulfilled and no
significant deficiency was found. The Self-evaluation Report on
Internal Control of the Company has been disclosed on Juchao
Website (http://www.cninfo.com.cn) on 23 March 2020.

Audit report of internal control

ShineWing is of the opinion that the Company has maintained
effective internal control over financial reporting in all material
aspects pursuant to the Basic Standards for Corporate Internal
Control and relevant rules as at 31 December 2019.

The Audit Report of Internal Control of the Company has been
published on Juchao Website (http://www.cninfo.com.cn) on
23 March 2020.

2. Information Disclosed Under the Requirements
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Corporate Governance Code

The Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors)
are of the opinion that for the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Company complied with all code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules published by SEHK.

The Company has always strived to comply with the best practices of
the Code.
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2.

Corporate Governance and Internal Control Report (continued)

Information Disclosed Under the Requirements
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(Continued)

Corporate Governance Policies and Related Duties of the
Board

The Company strictly complies with the Listing Rules, and has
incorporated the provisions as set out in the Code as its corporate
governance policies. The Board has the following duties in respect of
corporate governance:

(1)  To formulate and review corporate governance policies and
practices of the Company, and make recommendations to the
Board;

(2)  To review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and Senior Officers;

(8)  To review and monitor the policies and practices of the
Company in compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(4)  To formulate, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance rules of employees and directors;

(5)  To review the Company’s compliance with the Code.

During the reporting period, the Board is responsible for the
preparation and the fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with CASBE, and designing, implementing and
maintaining necessary internal control to ensure that the financial
statements are free from material misstatement due to fraud or error.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Group has complied with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of a sufficient number of
independent non-executive Directors and at least one independent
non-executive Director with appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise. The Company
has appointed three independent non-executive Directors including
one with financial management expertise.

The three independent non-executive Directors of the Company have
submitted confirmation of independence to the Company to confirm
that he/she has strictly complied with the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules of the SEHK during the reporting
period. The Company considers each independent non-executive
Director to be independent from the Company.
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Corporate Governance and Internal Control Report (continued)

(D) RIBEEBREXSRABIRAF 2. Information Disclosed Under the Requirements
AHEE S LR R (8) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(Continued)
IHAFESEREFETESTENE Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors and
HESPRI (KFRZESFRDD) Supervisors of Listed Issuers (Model Code)
TWERA - ARARERA—ETNER During the reporting period, the Company has adopted a code
AR BB 8 P GE2EST I PTET S of conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors and
EWITRTH] - KERE - NREHA Supervisors on terms no less exacting than the required standard set
BEES  EEHCETE@HESHET out in the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.
BHR GHIZESTRNFTHELRT - Following specific enquiries made with the Directors and Supervisors,
the Company has confirmed that each Director and Supervisor has
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
regarding securities transactions by Directors.
EEg The Board of Directors
(1) EFEHA (1)  The Board consists of
SRR EE BER
Mr. Zhang Daiming Chairman
G FEITEF
Mr. Ren Fulong Non-executive Director
MAEF WITES - BKE
Mr. Du Deping Executive Director, general manager
el IEHITESE
Mr. Xu Lie Non-executive Director
FHEXH FEBTTE S (2019 1 A29 A B T)
Mr. Zhao Bin Non-executive Director (Resigned on 29 January 2019)
M BN IEITES
Mr. Du Guanhua Independent Non-executive Director
Eg! BN IEHITESE
Mr. Li Wenming Independent Non-executive Director
EER BUIEHITEER
Mr. Lo Wah Wai Independent non-executive Director

BEEEXEBNHNAREE
£ EE SREEABWMET
B —&n o

Brief Introduction of the Board members are set out in the
section headed “DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS, SENIOR
OFFICERS AND STAFF”.
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Corporate Governance and Internal Control Report (continued)

(Z) RBEFEHAXHIMBMRLT 2. Information Disclosed Under the Requirements
AHEE S LR R (8) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

(Continued)

EFEEM@) The Board of Directors (Continued)

2 EFEER ZFREEFEHE (2) During the year, the Board convened six Board meetings.
F6REH SEFHECHRIEA The details of Directors’ attendance at the Board
uF: meetings are set out below:

waHE
EEla 2R EmERR BiTHE ERIE fifsE

Attendance in
Number person/written Attendance

Name of meetings resolution by alternate Absent Remarks
SRAEE 6 6 0 0
Mr. Zhang Daiming

G 6 6 0 0
Mr. Ren Fulong

Y 6 6 0 0
Mr. Du Deping

eyl 6 6 0 0
Mr. Xu Lie

i 0 0 0 0
Mr. Zhao Bin

I EE 6 6 0 0
Mr. Du Guanhua

P 6 6 0 0
Mr. Li Wenming

EER 6 6 0 0
Mr. Lo Wah Wai
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Corporate Governance and Internal Control Report (continued)

2. Information Disclosed Under the Requirements
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(Continued)

The Board of Directors (Continued)

3

Operation of Board

The duties of the Board are to create value for shareholders of
the Company, to confirm the strategies, targets and planning
of the Company, and to take leadership in order to ensure
that the set targets can be met. The Board shall manage the
Company diligently and effectively. The members of the Board
work in accordance with the principles of honesty and diligence
and comply with all relevant laws, regulations, the Articles of
Association of the Company and the relevant requirements
for the best interests of the Company and the shareholders.
With various measures of internal controls and mechanisms
for checks and balances, the duties of the Board and the
management of the Company are clearly defined.

The roles of Board have been defined clearly as guiding
and taking leadership of the company affairs, formulating
strategy and setting targets, as well as projects of business
development. The management of the company is responsible
for putting into practice resolutions, targets and projects made
by the Board. The Board has formulated the Rules of Procedure
for the Board of Directors and the Rules of Procedure for the
General Managers according to the relevant PRC laws and
regulations and the listing rules of stock exchanges both in
the PRC and overseas, in which the duties and powers of
the Board are sufficiently defined and the internal operation
procedures of the Board standardised. Therefore, the Board
can sufficiently perform its function as the decision-maker of the
Company. The procedures for the appointment of the general
manager have been laid down. The powers, scope of work,
working procedures and responsibilities of the general manager
have been specifically defined.

The Group has purchased liability insurance for its Directors,
Supervisors and Senior Officers, and the relevant insurance
covers the potential liability and the costs incurred in connection
with possible legal proceedings. Save as disclosed, the Group
does not provide any indemnity arrangements for Directors,
Supervisors or Senior Officers.

The Board secretary is responsible for keeping minutes of the
Board meetings and such board minutes should be open for
inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any
Director.
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Corporate Governance and Internal Control Report (continued)
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2.

Information Disclosed Under the Requirements
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(Continued)

The Board of Directors (Continued)

4)

(5)

Information and professional development

The Board of Directors attaches importance to the following
two points: Directors having a good knowledge of the Company
and its business; and paying sufficient time to the Company to
discharge responsibilities effectively.

The Company will set out clearly the agendas of Board
meetings to ensure that the Directors are briefed on a wide
range of topics. The Directors are also given the opportunity
to visit the Company’s production and business places and
discuss aspects of the business with employees, and regularly
meet the heads of the Company’s main departments. Apart
from internal briefings, the Directors also attend external
seminars. All Directors have access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary, who is responsible to the Board
for ensuring the Board procedures are complied with, and
have access to independent and professional advice at the
Company’s expense, where it has been considered to be
necessary for the discharge of Directors’ duties.

Directors’ Training

The Company pays high regard to the continuing trainings of
directors to ensure they are properly aware of the operation and
business of the Company. During the reporting period, all the
Directors attended compliance trainings for listed companies
organized by the Company. The Chairman and general
manager attended the trainings organized by CSRC. Financial
controller and the company secretary attended trainings
organized by Shenzhen Stock Exchange.
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Corporate Governance and Internal Control Report (continued)

(Z) REEFERBEXZMARLE 2
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of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(Continued)

The Board of Directors (Continued)
(6) Diversity policy of the Board

During the year, the Board adopted a diversity policy setting
out the approach to diversity of members of the Board. The
Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of diversity of
Board members. It works hard to ensure that the Board has
a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business.
All Board appointments will continue to be made on integrity
and ability basis with due regard to the benefits of diversity of
the Board members. Selection of candidates will be based on
a range of diversified perspectives, including, but not limited
to, (i) business experience; (i) specialized skills and other
experiences; (iii) race, international background, gender and
age; (iv) applicable regulatory requirements; and issues involving
possible conflicts of interest. The ultimate decision will be made
upon the merits and contribution that the selected candidates
will bring to the Board.

Chairman and chief executive

The Chairman is responsible for convening Board meetings and
ensuring that the Board acts in the best interests of the Company.
The Chairman ensures that the Board effectively carries out its
functions and discharges its responsibilities. The Chairman is also
responsible for approving the agenda for each Board meeting, taking
into account any matters proposed by other Directors for the inclusion
in the agenda.

The general manager is responsible for the day-to-day management
and the business performance of the Company.

Mr. Zhang Daiming is the Chairman of the Company; Mr. Du Deping is
the general manager of the Company.

Term of independent non-executive directors

The non-executive Directors of the ninth Board were appointed for a
term of 3 years commencing from 22 December 2017.
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Corporate Governance and Internal Control Report (continued)

Information Disclosed Under the Requirements
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(Continued)

Remuneration and Examination Committee

The Company has established a Remuneration and Examination
Committee (the “Remuneration Committee”), which is a special
committee responsible to the Board. The Remuneration Committee
comprises of Mr. Li Wenming, Mr. Du Guanhua and Mr. Lo Wah Wai.
Mr. Li Wenming is the chairman of the Remuneration and Examination
Committee.

The Company has formulated the “Rules for Operation of the
Remuneration and Examination Committee”. The Remuneration
Committee is responsible for formulating the remuneration policy
of Directors and Senior Officers of the Company, determining the
standard of examination of Directors and Senior Officers, assessing
the performance of Directors and Senior Officers during the year
and approving the terms of their service contracts and remuneration
packages and submitting the same to the Board for approval. The
terms of reference for the Remuneration Committee were uploaded
and disclosed on the websites of the SEHK and the Company and
are available upon request.

During year 2019, the Remuneration Committee convened
one meeting for the purpose of passing the “Proposal of 2019
Remuneration of Directors and Supervisors and Senior Officers”,
which were submitted to the Board for approval.

The remuneration of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Officers of
the Company is determined with reference to State policies, the
Company'’s profit realised in the corresponding period, individual
achievement and the average income of local residents.

The attendance record of each member of the Remuneration
Committee for the meetings during year 2019 is set out below:

Members of the HEE
FHEEZEZRZRERA Remuneration Committee Attendance
ENREEER) Mr. Li Wenming (Chairman) 1/1 (100%)
HEELEES) Mr. Du Guanhua (Member) 1/1 (100%)
EERLEE) Mr. Lo Wah Wai (Member) 1/1 (100%)
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(Z) REEFERBEXZMARLE 2
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of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(Continued)

Nomination Committee

The Company has established a Nomination Committee, which
is a special committee responsible to the Board. The Nomination
Committee comprises, Mr. Du Guanhua,Mr. Zhang Daiming, Mr.
Du Deping, Mr. Lo Wah Wai and Mr. Li Wenming. The Nomination
Committee is chaired by Mr. Du Guanhua.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for the following:

(@  Formulating the policy for the nomination of Directors or Senior
Officers and the standard for selection of such individuals;

(b)  Preliminarily selecting Directors and Senior Officers and
submitting the nomination proposals to the Board;

(c)  Reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of members of the Board
on a regular basis and making recommendations to the Board
regarding any proposed changes;

(d)  Assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;

(e) Making recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors or
Senior Officers;

The scope of duties, nomination procedures and the process and
criteria of the Nomination Committee are based on its Terms of
Reference as uploaded to and disclosed on the websites of the SEHK
and the Company and available upon request.

The Nomination Committee did not hold any meetings during year
2019.
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Corporate Governance and Internal Control Report (continued)

Information Disclosed Under the Requirements
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(Continued)

Auditors’ remuneration

ShineWing Certified Public Accountants (Special General Partnership)
was re-appointed as the auditors of the Company in the 2018 annual

general meeting held on 26 June 2019.

ShineWing Certified Public Accountants (Special General Partnership)
has been re-appointed as the auditors for 24 consecutive years.*

In 2019, the auditors’ remuneration (tax exclusive) for audit services

W ERes N provided was as follows:
2019 ¥ 20184 [Z
THH (AR%TT) (AREETT)
Year 2019 Year 2018
[tem (RMB:Yuan) (RMB:Yuan)

ERTRIE 2 Auditors’ remuneration

— BB EA — Audit service fee 613,207.55
—NIEEAREER — Internal control audit service fees 122,641.51
—HAu R &R — Other service fee 259,433.96
A5t Total 995,283.02
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In 2019, the Company engaged ShineWing Certified Public
Accountants (Special General Partnership) for auditing of internal
control and paid auditing fees of RMB122,641.51 (tax exclusive) for
internal control.

Other service fee of RMB367,924.53 (tax exclusive) included the audit
service fees for the “Special Explanation on the Occupation of Non-
operating Fund and the Transfer of Other Fund Related” and the
“Independent Auditor’s Letter on Continuous Related Transactions”,
which did not impact the independence of the auditors.

* For the year ended 31 December 2014, SHINEWING (HK) CPA
Limited and ShineWing Certified Public Accountants (Special General
Partnership) served as the international auditor and the domestic
auditor of the Company, respectively. At the Annual General Meeting
held on 24 June 2015, the appointment of ShineWing Certified Public
Accountants (Special General Partnership) as the auditor of the
Company was approved by shareholders and there has since been no
separate appointment of international auditor and domestic auditor of
the Company. ShineWing Certified Public Accountants has since been
the only independent auditor after the appointment, and has audited the
financial statements the Company in accordance with CASBE. Details of
the above were set out in the announcements dated 7 May 2015 and 24
June 2015 and the circular dated 8 May 2015 of the Company.
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of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(Continued)

Audit Committee

Pursuant to Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the Company set up an
Audit Committee (the “Audit Committee”) comprising Mr. Lo Wah Wai,
Mr. Du Guanhua, and Mr. Li Wenming. The chairman of the Audit
Committee is Mr. Lo Wah Wai.

With reference to “A Guide for the Formation of An Audit Committee”
published by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants, the Board has
set out terms of reference for the Audit Committee, which define the
authority and duties of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee is responsible for ensuring that the Company’s
financial report reflects a fair view of the Company. In addition to
reviewing the financial information and statements of the Company,
the Audit Committee is also responsible for liaising with the
Company’s external auditor and overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting system, internal control system and risk management
procedures.

A copy of the terms of reference for the Audit Committee were
uploaded and disclosed on the websites of the SEHK and the
Company and are available upon request.

The Audit Committee has, together with the management, reviewed
the accounting principles, practices and methods adopted by the
Group and has discussed the auditing, internal controls and financial
reporting of the Company. The Audit Committee has convened four
meetings to review the audited financial statements for 2018, the
unaudited 1st quarterly financial statements for 2019, the unaudited
interim statements for 2019 and the unaudited 3rd quarterly financial
statements for 2019.

The Audit Committee convened a meeting on 20 March 2020 to

review the 2019 audited accounts and annual results announcement.

The attendance record of each member of the Audit Committee for
the meetings during year 2019 is set out below:

Members of the HEE
EREZREREA Audit Committee Attendance
BERLE(FE) Mr. Lo Wah Wai (Chairman) 4/4 (100%)
MEELEE B S) Mr. Du Guanhua (Member) 4/4 (100%)
TXHEEBE) Mr. Li Wenming (Member) 4/4 (100%)
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2.

Corporate Governance and Internal Control Report (continued)

Information Disclosed Under the Requirements
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(Continued)

Investor Relations

The Company actively and earnestly carried out work in respect of
the disclosure of information and investor relations and nominated
an individual to deal with the Company’s investor relations.
Meanwhile, the Company strictly complied with the principles of
truthfulness, accuracy, completeness and timeliness in the disclosure
of information. The Company also enhanced communication with
investors and made efforts to improve the transparency of the
Company by way of issuing results announcements, publishing
announcements, launching the Company’s website, meeting investors
and analysts and answering investors’ inquiries, etc.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a
website at (http://www.xhzy.com), where information and updates
on the Company’s business developments and operation, financial
information, corporate governance and other information are available
for public access.

Directors’, Supervisors’ and Senior Officers’ Interests in Shares

So far as the Directors, the Senior Officers and the Supervisors of
the Company are aware, the interests or short position in shares of
the Directors, the Supervisors and the Senior Officers, according to
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section
352 of the SFO or which was otherwise required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies as contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, are
stated in the description of Directors’ and Supervisors’ and Senior
Officers’ interests in shares of the Company under the section
“DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS, SENIOR OFFICERS AND STAFF”.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for the Company’s risk management and
internal controls system and for reviewing its effectiveness. The
Board requires the management to establish and maintain sound
and effective risk management and internal controls. Evaluation
of the Company’s risk management and internal controls is also
independently conducted by the Supervisory Committee on a regular
basis.

During the reporting period, the Company established the risk
management and internal controls system in all material respects
according to Basic Standards of Internal Control and related
provisions. The Company confirms the effective implementation of
such system reached the internal control target of the Company, and
there are no major defects.
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of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(Continued)

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares

Save as disclosed above in “Changes in Share Capital and Information
on Shareholders” and so far as the Directors, the Senior Officers and
the Supervisors of the Company are aware, as at 31 December 2019,
no other person (other than a Director, Senior Officer or Supervisor
of the Company) had an interest or short position in the Company’s
shares or underlying shares (as the case may be), which are required
to be disclosed to the Company and the SEHK under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO.

Directors’, Supervisors’ and Senior Officers’ Interest and Short
Positions

Save as disclosed under the section headed “DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS, SENIOR OFFICERS AND STAFF”, so far as the
Directors, the Senior Officers and the Supervisors of the Company are
aware, as at 31 December 2019, none of the Directors, the Senior
Officers or the Supervisors of the Company had any interest or short
position in the shares, underlying shares and/or debentures (as the
case may be) of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(as defined in Part XV of SFO) which was required to be notified to
the Company and the SEHK pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interest and short position which any such
Director, Senior Officer or Supervisor is taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO) of which was required to be
entered in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO or which was otherwise required to be
notified to the Company and SEHK pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Dividend Policy

The Board proposes the profit distribution plan for year 2019
as follows: based on the total issued shares of the Company of
621,859,447 shares (of which 426,859,447 shares were A shares
and 195,000,000 shares were H shares) as at 31 December 2019,
it is proposed that a dividend of RMBO0.12 (tax inclusive) for every
share of the Company be paid to shareholders. The above mentioned
proposed dividends distribution is subject to approval by shareholders
of the Company. Shareholders and potential investors are advised to
exercise caution when dealing in the securities of the Company.
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2.

Corporate Governance and Internal Control Report (continued)

Information Disclosed Under the Requirements
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(Continued)

Shareholder’s requests to convene an extraordinary general
meeting

Pursuant to Article 93 of the Articles of Association, if shareholders
require the convening of an extraordinary general meeting or a class
general meeting, the following procedures shall be followed:

(1)  Two or more shareholders, who together hold 10 per cent
or more of the shares carrying voting rights at the proposed
meeting, may sign one or several written requisition(s) of the
same form and contents, requiring the board of Directors
to convene an extraordinary general meeting or a class
shareholders’ meeting as requested and state the agenda
of the meeting. The Board should as soon as possible after
receiving the abovementioned request convene such meetings.
The percentage represented by the shareholdings of the
requisitioning shareholders shall be calculated as at the date of
the deposit of the requisition.

(2)  If the Board of Directors fails to give a notice convening a
meeting within 30 days of receiving the aforesaid written
requisition, the requisitioning shareholders may themselves
convene a meeting within 4 months of the receipt of such
requisition by the Board of Directors. In so convening a meeting,
the requisitioning shareholders should adopt a procedure as
similar to that of a shareholders’ general meeting convened by
the Board of Directors as possible.

All reasonable expenses incurred in connection with a meeting
convened by any shareholders themselves by reason of the failure of
the Board of Directors to convene a meeting pursuant to a requisition
shall be borne by the Company and shall be deducted from any sums
due from the Company to those Directors in default.

Putting forward enquiries to the Board
For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,

shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company. (The
Company in general does not answer verbal or anonymous enquiries.)

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED / 2019 ANNUAL REPORT
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Information Disclosed Under the Requirements
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(Continued)

Primary Contact Persons

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the Company by means of facsimile, email or post. The
details of contact are as follows:

The Company Secretary’s office of Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical
Company Limited

Address: No. 1 Lutai Ave., Hi-tech Industry Development Zone, Zibo
City, Shandong Province, The People’s Republic of China.

Fax: 86-533-2287508
Email: CQCAO@XHZY.COM

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholders must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, notice, statement, or enquiry
(as the case may be) to the above address, and provide their full
name, contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders’ information is subject to disclosure pursuant to laws
and regulations.
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On 4 January 2019, the notice of the first extraordinary general
meeting of the Company was published on Securities Times, Juchao
Website, HKExnews and the Company’s website and notice was
served on the shareholders of H Shares by prepaid post. The general
meeting was convened by the Board of Directors and held at the
Company’s registered office on 20 February 2019. The meeting
adopted on-site and online voting. Six shareholders (including those
voted via the internet) attended the general meeting, representing a
total number of 213,521,637 shares and accounting for 34.34% of
the then total issued shares with voting right. The general meeting
was convened in compliance with the provisions of the Company Law
of the PRC as well as the Articles of Association of the Company. The
general meeting was chaired by Mr. Zhang Daiming, the Chairman of
the Company.

The 2019 first extraordinary general meeting approved the following
ordinary/special resolutions:

To approve the proposal for the related transaction of bidding for a
30% equity interest of Sinochem DSM Pharmaceuticals (Zibo) Co.,
LTD.* (which has been renamed Centrient Pharmaceuticals (Zibo) Co.,
LTD.";

An announcement of the above resolutions was published on
Securities Times, Juchao Website as well as on HKExnews and the
Company’s website on 21 February 2019.
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Summarised Report of the General Meetings (continued)

On 10 May 2019, the notice of the annual general meeting of 2018
of the Company was published in Securities Times, Juchao website,
HKExnews and the Company’s website and was served on the
shareholders of H Shares by prepaid post. The general meeting was
convened by the Board of Directors and held at the Company’s
registered office on 26 June 2019 voted by poll (on site and via
internet). Eleven shareholders (including those voted via the internet)
attended the meeting, representing a total number of 239,032,317
shares and 38.44% of the Company’s then total issued shares with
voting right. The meeting was convened in compliance with the
provisions of the Company Law of the PRC as well as the Articles
of Association. The meeting was chaired by Mr. Zhang Daiming, the
chairman of the Company.

The following general/special resolutions were passed at the annual
general meeting of 2018:

(1)  To approve the annual report of the Company for the year
2018;

(2)  To approve the report of the Board of Directors for the year
2018;

(8)  To approve the report of the Supervisory Committee of the
Company for the year 2018;

(4)  To approve the audited financial statements for the year 2018;

(5)  To approve the profit distribution plan for the year 2018;

(6) To approve the resolution on the re-appointment of auditors
and authorizing the board of Directors to determine its
remuneration;

(7)  To approve the remuneration of the Directors and the
Supervisors for the year 2019.

An announcement of the above resolutions was published on

Securities Times, Juchao Website as well as on HKExnews and the
Company’s website on 27 June 2019.
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Dear shareholders,

| hereby present for your review the annual report of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2019.

Results and Dividends

In the year ended 31 December 2019, the operating income of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) prepared in accordance with
CASBE was RMB5,606,021,000, representing an increase of 6.89% as
compared with 2018. The Group recorded net profits attributable to the
equity holders of the Company of RMB299,966,000, representing an
increase of 17.49% as compared with 2018. Basic earnings per share was
RMBO0.48.

The Board proposes the profit distribution plan for the year 2019 as follows:
based on the total issued shares of the Company of 621,859,447 shares (of
which 426,859,447 shares were A-Shares and 195,000,000 shares were
H-Shares) as at 31 December 2019, it is proposed a dividend of RMB0.12
(tax inclusive) for every share of the Company be paid to shareholders. The
abovementioned proposed dividends distribution is subject to approval
by shareholders of the Company. Shareholders and potential investors
are advised to exercise caution when dealing with the securities of the
Company.

An announcement containing further details as to, amongst others, the
payment currency and applicable foreign exchange rate for the proposed
cash dividend, the relevant record date and book closure period will be
disclosed in due course.

Business Review

In 2019, the Group adhered to the target of “accelerating the transformation
of new and old momentum and achieving upgrade of industrial chain”,
so as to robustly explore the market, scientifically and stably organize
production, speed up the implementation of preparations strategy and
internationalization development strategy, strengthen technological
advancement, and seize the foundational management. Along with
continuous improvement on the trend of production, operation and
development, various operating indicators, hit historical new high once
again.

1. Highlighting the upgrade of industrial chain to ensure positive
development of each business segment

The Company leveraged the comprehensive strengths, and seized
the opportunities of sales and marketing, so the production and sales
of bulk drugs oriented products continued to boom. In particular, the
market development of Glimepiride, Carbasalate Calcium and other
featured bulk drugs obtained remarkable results.

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED / 2019 ANNUAL REPORT
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

Business Review (Continued)

1.

Highlighting the upgrade of industrial chain to ensure positive
development of each business segment (Continued)

The Company steadily promoted the development strategy of bulk
drugs, and integrated the resources for marketing of preparations.
The operating income of preparations segment achieved rapid
growth, among which the sales of strategic products of preparations
maintained in rapid growth.

The Company, relying on Xinhua Pharmaceutical e-commerce
innovation park, promoted brand alliance strategy, and initiated cross-
border e-commerce business, so as to continue to maintain rapid
growth of the e-commerce.

Increasing contribution to research to achieve significant
performance in research and development

In 2019, the research and development expenses recorded a year-
on-year increase of 26%. Five specifications of four products, namely
Glimepiride tablets, Cetirizine Hydrochloride tablets, Cefradine
capsules, Captopril tablets, passed the consistency evaluation of the
first or the top three institutions in the PRC. Registration approval
of one generic drug Fasudil Hydrochloride and its injection, one
preclinical approval of Voglibose tablets, five approval documents of
veterinary drugs were obtained. Seven national DMF declarations for
twelve products were completed. Pharmacodynamics evaluation of
OAB-14, a significantly innovative drug treating Alzheimer’s disease,
has obtained significant progress.

Throughout the year, 81 patents were applied, among which 22
patents were obtained. “Construction and Scale Development of
Green Preparation System of Caffeine based on Critical Technology
of Industrialization” was awarded the Second Prize in “2018 Scientific
and Technological Progress of Shandong Province”. “Continuous
Heat Integration and Separation and Precision Control Technology
of Multi-azeotrope during the Process of Bulk Drugs Production”
was awarded the Second Prize in “2019 Scientific and Technological
Innovation of Shandong Province”. The Company was appraised
as the “Model Enterprise of Technological Innovation in Shandong
Province”, successfully passing the appraisal by the National
Enterprise Technology Centre.
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Business Review (Continued)

3.

Proactively promoting implementation of key projects and
automation and transformation of intelligence projects

Phase one of the Modern Medicine Center for International
Cooperation has successfully passed GMP certification and
British MHRA certification. In September, the Company realized
commercialization of production. Phase two of the Modern
Medicine Center for International Cooperation has completed
purification decoration and equipment installation, and delivered
workshop verification. The main construction of the high-end new
pharmaceutical preparation industrialization project, being the
provincial key construction project, officially commenced, and the
civil engineering capping of the injection production workshop will be
completed soon.

The Company actively promoted the continuation and automation
of production and synthesis units of bulk drugs, and completed 15
intelligent control transformation projects during the current year.
The Company constructed a sub-factory with integrated power
control center, the energy supply of which has all realized remote
intelligent control. The intelligent platform for equipment operation and
management monitoring has been put into operation.

The MES information management system project, implemented by
the Company’s Modern Medicine Center for International
Cooperation, has been included in the list of pilot demonstration
projects for “Modern Competitive Industrial Cluster + Artificial
Intelligence” of Shandong Province.

Robustly promoting internationalization development strategy
to provide support for enterprise development

Carbidopa and other products from No. 2 sub-factory of the
Company have passed the on-site inspection of FDA of the US.
Phase one of Modern Medicine Center for International Cooperation
has successfully passed the certification by the UK’s MHRA, and the
first batch of Ibuprofen tablets was delivered to the UK. Preparations
projects of Zibo Xinhua-Perrigo Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.(“Xinhua-
Perrigo”) have passed the audits by MHRA, completed technical
trials and stability studies for the US and European markets, thereby
fulfilling the conditions of commercial production. The production
of the 3 registered batches in Roche Madopar project has been
completed and submitted to the marketing license holder.

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED / 2019 ANNUAL REPORT
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

Business Review (Continued)

5.

Strengthening internal management to consolidate the
foundation of corporate development

During the year, the Company further promoted 7S management,
and advanced CTPM management, thereby enhancing on-site
management level.

The Company ensured the operation and smooth running of the
lifeline engineering, and completed 68 safety measures projects
throughout the year. The Company successfully passed the review
of second-level safety standard in Shandong province, while
Shouguang passed the first batch of acceptance inspection and the
second-level safety standard evaluation of provincial key monitoring
points.

During the year, the Company completed RTO projects on
wastewater treatment plants, CWO projects on 105 workshops and
other key environmental protection projects, achieving high quality
and stable emission standard. 15 products were exempted from
peak production in summer and autumn in Zibo city, and 24 products
were included in the exemption list of calling for emission reduction
in response to severely polluted weather in Zibo city ‘s autumn and
winter.

Phase one of the Modern Medicine Center for International
Cooperation has passed GMP certification and MHRA audit, while
eight products have passed GMP certification, Xinhua Medical Trading
passed GSP certification, and caffeine and fish oil have passed the
audit of FSSC22000. A total of 166 audits and certifications were
passed throughout the year.

The Company ranked “top 10” industrial clusters among the first
batch of inbound leading enterprises in Shandong province’s
leading enterprise pool, and was appraised as one of the top 100
listed companies in the PRC and the “Backbone Enterprise of the
Pharmaceutical Industry in the 70th Anniversary of Founding of New
China”, and was awarded with “EHS Social Responsibility Award for
Pharmaceutical Enterprises”.
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Prospects

At present, the world economy is still in a period of adjustment, while growth
has been slowing down, trade protection is intensifying, uncertainties
such as exchange rates are increasing, and downward pressure of the
domestic economy is becoming serious. The Drug Administration Law of
the PRC has taken effect, and new policies such as pharmaceutical and
healthcare reform, and centralized drug procurement have been introduced
successively, bringing many uncertainties in medical development. The new
situation will surely bring new challenges to the Group’s operation.

From the internal perspective of the Group, following the increasing number
of pharmaceutical products passing consistency evaluation, the development
of key strategic products has entered a positive track. The international
drug preparations cooperation projects have been put into commercial
operation successively, and the breakthrough in drug preparations has
brought favourable opportunities; the comprehensive competitiveness of the
leading bulk drugs has been strengthened, and new featured bulk drugs are
becoming a new business growth point for the Group.

As such, the Group will continue to focus on the optimization of its products
and the upgrade of its industrial chain. On the basis of strengthening the
use of bulk drugs, the Group will procure to achieve new breakthroughs
in technological innovation, project development, greater preparations
strategy, internationalization of operation and new model cultivation. Specific
measures are as follows:

1. Working together for sales and marketing to robustly advance
“greater preparations strategy”

With the goal of “increasing income and increasing profitability”, we
are committed to implementing the greater preparations strategy.
We focus on the sales and marketing of the pharmaceutical products
segment, highlighting the efforts in cultivating our strategically formulated
pharmaceutical products, taking advantage of the consistency evaluation
of pharmaceutical products, accurately planning the tender through the
Internet, giving full play to the advantages of ancillary production, increasing
the sales of generic drugs and products, and implementing the “generic
drugs branding” strategy.

We leverage the advantages from the size, quality and branding of bulk
drugs oriented products and pharmaceutical intermediates, implement
differentiated competitive strategies, and fully explore the featured bulk
drugs market to create new business growth points.

On the basis of safeguarding the internal ancillary supply of pharmaceutical
intermediaries, the Group plans to improve the internal strength, reduce
cost, increase efficiency, and actively expand the external sales. The
Group will also plan for expansion of the industrial chain of pharmaceutical
intermediates.

The Group will give fully utilize the overall strength of the Company,
coordinate more resources for development, and promote e-commerce
business to a new level.

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED / 2019 ANNUAL REPORT
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

Prospects (Continued)

2.

Working together for technological innovation to expedite the
implementation of “greater research and development plan”

We plan to launch a “greater research and development plan”,
continuously increase our investment in research and development,
scientifically conduct research on significant clinical generic drugs and
innovative drugs, and formulate a new research and development
framework of “one body with multiple wings targeting at innovation”.

Throughout the year, we strive to obtain consistency evaluation
approval for four products, complete pilot or trial production for
six products, and complete bioequivalence testing (pre-BE) for five
products.

Throughout the year, we strive to complete the process validation
of four preparation products, one of which with registration and
declaration completed, one of which with declaration conditions,
and two of which with pre-BE and trial production completed. OAB-
14 and other significant innovative drugs have obtained progressive
achievements. Throughout the year, we strive to obtain five
acceptance documents and one new product approval.

We plan to accelerate the registration of ANDA in the US, promote
the entry of three products into pre-BE, complete the in vitro pre-BE
and trial production for one product, and create the conditions for
speeding up the entry of preparations into the international market.

We plan to accelerate the marketization of four new bulk drug
products, make breakthroughs in the process technology of three
new bulk drug products, and accelerate production transformation, in
order to add new growth points to the development of the Company.

We plan to accelerate the promotion and application of the “four new”
technologies, continue to carry out all-person technical and quality
competition related activities, solve technical and quality problems,
and continuously reduce manufacturing costs.
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Prospects (Continued)

3.

Working together for internationalization development strategy
to accelerate the cultivation of new efficiency growing points

We plan to accelerate the commercial production of preparation
products by Xinhua-Perrigo and start technology transfer for another
2-3 products from Europe and the US on the basis of organizing the
production of a number of international processed pharmaceutical
products and completing delivery of orders with quality and
quantity guaranteed in a timely manner. We plan to accelerate the
registration and application of Roche Madopar tablets, and procure
the products to fulfill the conditions for commercial production as
soon as practicable. For new bulk drug products with conditions
for commercialization, we will have to coordinate the strength to
complete the DMF registration, and realize sales as soon as possible.

We plan to further strengthen closer ties with renowned international
companies and seek to introduce more international cooperation
projects.

Working together for implementation of key projects to
adequately leverage project driving force

We strive to achieve early completion of comprehensive
commercialization of phase one of the Modern Medicine Center for
International Cooperation and production verification of phase two of
the Modern Medicine Center for International Cooperation as soon
as possible, and formulate the product transfer plan to implement
orderly transfer of products. We will give full play to the production
capacity of the Multi-functional Industrialization Center (Il), commence
commercial production for the products confirmed by customers to
satisfy customers’ needs.

Throughout the year, we plan to complete the construction of civil
engineering, purification and decoration and major equipment
installation of injection projects, implement technological innovation
projects by utilizing production technology of continuation and
automation, and improve the production capacity and production
level. We plan to pay close attention to the pharmaceutical
intermediate transformation project of Shouguang to realize
commercial production, complete the development of veterinary
drugs preparation project of Xinhua Pharmaceutical (Gaomi) Co., Ltd.,
and accelerate the research and development and declaration of the
veterinary drugs project.

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED / 2019 ANNUAL REPORT
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

Prospects (Continued)

5. Working together for foundational management to enhance
integrated competitive strength of the enterprise

We are committed to contribution to lifeline projects, in order to
ensure safety and environmental protection throughout the year
with no general and other accidents mentioned above. We plan to
implement key safety projects, promote safety information, intelligent
construction, successfully pass the renewal of production permit,
and improve enterprise intrinsic safety level. We will pay close
attention to the two major lines of managing environmental protection
projects as well as equipment operation and control, implement
deodorization, desalting and removal of total nitrogen and other
environmental protection projects, closely monitor implementation
of the administration law on new drugs and its subsequent ancillary
management system, and timely adjust the relevant system. We plan
to carry out technical and quality-oriented activities for all employees,
and implement key projects.

We plan to fully promote 7S management, and take the work
of CTPM as the starting point to realize re-upgrade of on-site
management. We will continuously improve the operation conditions
of the post, create safe and comfortable work environment for
employees, further promote rectification of the external environment
of each park, strengthen landscaping, and build beautiful parks and
garden-style factories.

On the basis of earnest summarization of the 13th Five-Year Plan of
the Company, the Company plans to compile the 14th Five-Year Plan
scientifically, laying a better foundation for the Group’s development
in the next five years.

With the dedication and commitment of our staff, the Board is determined
to meet new challenges and seize new opportunities, the Group will be
able to fully complete the 2020 target tasks and achieve better and faster
development of the enterprise.

Zhang Daiming
Chairman
Zibo, Shandong Province, PRC 20 March 2020

“E-NEER | URFERERDERAT

61



62

EETHE

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

BHERAEBEBNE—TER  B2ER
S4B E57B[#EFEREIET -

AEESEMBRERZANG010FESTE
WMEMAAR RAEEEHZ2019F12831H
IHFEEEEZZER -

(—) BEEERFARS 1.
1. FERERERIEERR 1.

AEBTENEME - BUEME
ECRRME - A - BEDPRH
BLHEMER AEEFNBXZE

HESH

AREBEHZE2019F12A31H 1k
FEZR(PRTCEGHEADFE
MEFEWABARKS5,606,021
Foo o Ep(b B8Rk s - 25 -
BoahEEREMEEEME
thE D R A42.59% « 46.25% ~
11.16% ' HEL D RIE EF &
1.63(EE D2« EFH4.05E D
2h . N2 42(EE DB ©

2019 RE B L BT} BE S £ 5B
TR AR 387,708 T 7T © ¥
FLFH2.94% 0 FANTERE
RAFEARAEBEAES
BIMMHEN  REZFERE
BRI E AT REED o

BHEREEBETKARKE
2,592,851 F L » & EF EFF
17.16% * EARMFEZREZAF
EEREHERUEEREGRK B
ARELHER  BBIRLEZE
WA BIRRIFIER o

Emh R R HMEEETAA
R¥625,462F 0 » B EF T
1217% » THRMNEZERAZZM
BEREESHTE -

Please refer to the section headed “Business Review” on page 54 to 57 for
further information on the review of the Group’s business.

The Board of Directors hereby submits to the shareholders the report of the

Board of Directors for 2019 and the audited accounts of the Company and
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Management Discussion and Analysis

The business scope and operating results of the
Company

The Group is mainly engaged in the development, production
and sale of pharmaceutical raw materials, preparations, medical
intermediate and other products. The profit of the Group is
mainly attributable to its principal operations.

Sales Analysis

Under the CASBE, the Group had an operating income
of RMB5,606,021,000 for the year ended 31 December
2019. Sales of chemical bulk drugs, preparations, and
medical intermediates and other products accounted
ford2.59%,46.25%and 11.16% respectively of the total sales
of the Group, representing an decrease of 1.63 percentage
points, an increase of 4.05 percentage points, and a decrease
of 2.42 percentage points respectively as compared with that
of last year.

In 2019, the sales revenue of the Group’s chemical bulk drugs
amounted to RMB2,387,708,000, representing an increase of
2.94% as compared with that of last year. The increase was
mainly because the Company leveraged the comprehensive
strengths, and seized the opportunities of sales and marketing,
ensuring that the varieties led by bulk drugs continued to
experience the trend of prosperous production and sales.

The sales revenue of preparations was RMB2,592,851,000,
representing an increase of 17.16% as compared with that of
last year. The growth was mainly due to the Company steadily
promoted development strategy of bulk drugs, and integrated
the resources for marketing of preparations and the operating
income of preparations segment achieved rapid growth.

The sales revenue of medical intermediates and other products
was RMB625,462,000, representing a decrease of 12.17%
as compared with that of last year. The decrease was mainly
because of the impact of changes in market prices.
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Report of The Board of Directors (continued)

1. Management Discussion and Analysis
(Continued)

1.

The business scope and operating results of the
Company (Continued)

Results Analysis

For the year ending 31 December 2019, the net profits
attributable to equity holders of the Company prepared
in accordance with the CASBE was RMB299,966,000,
representing an increase of 17.49% as compared with that
of last year. The prime factors causing the increase are in
2019,the Group adhered to the target of “accelerating the
transformation of new and old momentum and achieving
upgrade of industrial chain”, so as to robustly explore the
market, scientifically and stably organize production, speed up
the implementation of preparations strategy and international-
based development strategy, strengthen the advancement of
technology, and seize the fundamental management. Along
with continuous improvement on the trend of production,
operation and development, various operating indicators, again,
hit historical new high.

Analysis of operating results and financial condition in
accordance with CASBE

As at 31 December 2019, the total assets of the Group were
RMB6,436,025,000, representing an increase of 8.08%
compared with the beginning of the year. The increase in total
assets was mainly due to operating profits generated this year.

As at 31 December 2019, the other accounts receivable of
the Group were RMB19,676,000, representing a decrease of
44.13% compared with the beginning of the year. The decrease
was mainly due to the collection of the post-sale leaseback
deposit for the current year.

As at 31 December 2019, the other current assets of the Group
were RMB102,892,000, representing an increase of 39.61%
compared with the beginning of the year. The increase was
mainly due to the increase of the added-value tax credit at the
end of the this year.
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1. Management Discussion and Analysis
(Continued)

1.

The business scope and operating results of the
Company (Continued)

Analysis of operating results and financial condition in
accordance with CASBE (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the long-term equity investments
of the Group were RMB60,774,000, representing an increase
of RMB60,774,000 compared with the beginning of the year,
mainly because of acquisition of 30% equity interest of the joint
venture Centrient Pharmaceutical (Zibo) Co., Ltd. during the
Reporting Period.

As at 31 December 2019, the projects in progress of the Group
amounted to RMB392,136,000, representing an increase of
54.86% compared with the beginning of the year. The increase
was mainly due to the investment in the second phase of the
Modern Medicine Center for International Cooperation and
other engineering projects during the current year.

As at 31 December 2019, the short-term borrowing of the
Group was RMB540,000,000, representing an increase
of RMB300,000,000 compared with the beginning of
the year. The non-current liabilities due within one year
was RMB348,998,000, representing a decrease of
RMB258,251,000 compared with the beginning of the year.
The long-term borrowing was RMB589,779,000, representing
an increase of RMB67,136,000 compared with the beginning
of the year. The main reason for the change was to adjust the
financing structure and lower financing cost.

As at 31 December 2019, the contract liabilities of the Group
were RMB364,947,000, representing an increase of 58.06%
compared with the beginning of the year. The increase
was mainly because the subsidiaries of the Group received
increased payments in advance for property sale this year.

As at 31 December 2019, the deferred income tax liabilities of
the Group were RMB53,824,000, representing an increase of
74.28% from the beginning of the year. The main reason for
the increase was that the Company had a one-off deduction in
the depreciation expense of newly purchased machinery and
equipment with a unit value of not more than RMB5 million in
the calculation of taxable income during the Reporting Period
in accordance with the Ministry of Finance and the State
Administration of Taxation Cai Shui [2018] No. 54 Document.

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED / 2019 ANNUAL REPORT



(—) EETEWRE ST (H)

1.

FEEBEEREEER R

BEA TR EHFIEZ KR
R RIBERR ¥ (#8)

MR2019F12 A1 B AL B B &R
HAANRE3325495F ¢ @ &
FPEFA5.92% FAHTER
ARAEE TR A FBUHE
hne

MR2019F12A31HBEER LA
RN E R A AR 2,069,028 F
TC  BEY EFH10.15% © EFHY
TERARAFELLEELET
FrEx -

019FEALEHEBRAAR
#789,151F T » MEAFREIL K
20.21% @ EMEERAZMNA
MEABENE - TiHRE RKE
SHE BN -

019FEALEEEBERAAR
#322,288F 7T * MEERHER
18.40% ' MEMETEREEET
N RITE BN -

2019F EAEEMEERAAR
#035,401F T » BMEAFREIE R
25.90% ' EMEBFEEAZ LA
FEMBEN BT ERALE
ho e

20190 EALEHMEERAR
#a8,575F L MAFREE R
40.08%  EEMNEBFRELANF
[ETE R BB U o
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Report of The Board of Directors (continued)

1. Management Discussion and Analysis
(Continued)

1.

The business scope and operating results of the
Company (Continued)

Analysis of operating results and financial condition in
accordance with CASBE (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the total liabilities of the Group were
RMB3,325,495,000, representing an increase of 5.92% from
the beginning of the year. The increase was mainly because
the subsidiaries of the Group received payments in advance for
property sale this year.

As at 31 December 2019, the total equity attributable to
the shareholders of the Company was RMB2,969,028,000,
representing an increase of 10.15% from the beginning of
the year. The increase was primarily due to operating profits
generated this year.

The Group’s selling expense amounted to RMB789,151,000
in 2019, representing an increase of 20.21% as compared
with the same period last year, and the increase was mainly
attributable to increase in market development efforts, and
market development and terminal sales costs.

For the year of 2019, the Group’s administration expense
amounted to RMB322,288,000, representing an increase of
18.40% as compared with the same period last year. The
increase was mainly attributable to the increase of employees’
remuneration and depreciation expenses.

The Group’s research and development expense amounted
to RMB235,401,000 in 2019, representing an increase of
25.90% as compared with the same period last year, and the
increase was mainly attributable to continuous investment in
new product development and consistency assessment by the
Company.

The Group’s financial expenses amounted to RMB48,575,000
in 2019, representing an increase of 40.08% as compared
with the same period last year, and the increase was mainly
attributable to the decrease in exchange gains as a result of
exchange rate fluctuations in the current year.
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1. Management Discussion and Analysis
(Continued)

1.

The business scope and operating results of the
Company (Continued)

Analysis of operating results and financial condition in
accordance with CASBE (Continued)

The Group’s other income amounted to RMB40,281,000 in
2019, representing an increase of 90.32% as compared with
the same period last year, and the main reason for the increase
was increase in government subsidies received and amortized
during the current year.

The Group’s asset impairment loss amounted to
RMB79,647,000 in 2019, representing an increase of 45.77%
as compared with the same period last year, and the increase
was mainly attributable to the increase in provision for loss on
inventory valuation.

The Group’s operating profit amounted to RMB387,436,000
in 2019, representing an increase of 12.44% as compared
with the same period last year; the gross profit was
RMB381,393,000, representing an increase of 14.76%
as compared with the same period last year; the net profit
attributable to the shareholders of the Company was
RMB299,966,000, representing an increase of 17.49% as
compared with the same period last year. The main reason for
the increase is set out under “Results Analysis”.

The Group’s net cash inflow from operating activities in 2019
was RMB348,271,000, representing a year-on-year increase of
RMB24,364,000, and the increase was mainly due to the rise in
operating profits generated this year.

The Group’s net cash outflow from investing activities
was RMB412,940,000 in 2019, representing a year-on-
year increase of RMB32,051,000.The main reason was the
continuous increase of the investment in the second phase of
the Modern Medicine Center for International Cooperation and
other engineering projects during this Reporting Period.

The Group’s net cash outflow from financing activities was
RMB46,231,000, representing a year-on-year increase of
RMB90,519,000, and the increase was mainly due to the
increase in cash dividends paid for the current year.
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Report of The Board of Directors (continued)

1. Management Discussion and Analysis
(Continued)
TEXBRERLES R (E) 1. The business scope and operating results of the
Company (Continued)
EERA B RIHE HEAIREE A Analysis of operating results and financial condition in
RHBERRDH(E) accordance with CASBE (Continued)
20194 1% (B L &5 ERIDHE The Group’s operating revenue classified by products and by
R F EZFIWA S Emm ~ 2 geographical location in accordance with CASBE (RMB):
=155 (A RKET)
20196 2018%
Year 2019 Year 2018
HER he%
& KALE 8 WALE RIELIER
Proportion Proportion  Change as
in operating inoperating ~ compared to
e ltem Amount revenue Amount revenue last year
BEWARF Operating revenue 5,606,020,863.30 100% 5,244,643,562.09 100% 6.89%
ATE By industry
ERHE Chemical bulk drugs 2,387,708,276.49 4259%  2319,416,709.05 44.20% 2.94%
] Preparations 2,592,850,920.07 46.25% 2,213,078,367.19 42.20% 17.16%
BEABRRAML Medical intermediates and
other products 625,461,666.74 11.16% 712,148,485.85 13.58% (12.17%)
PER By product
BRERESRHNE Pharmaceutical raw material
such as antipyretic and
analgesic 2,387,708,276.49 42.59% 2,319,416,709.05 44.22% 2.94%
RSB BEHSEE Preparations such as tablet,
injection, capsule etc. 2,592,850,920.07 46.25% 2,213,078,367.19 42.20% 17.16%
BEABERAM Medical intermediates and
others 625,461,666.74 11.16% 712,148,485.85 13.58% (12.17%)
HE By geographical location
HE(EEE) China (including Hong Kong) ~~ 3,773,944,989,83 67.32%  3468,133788.60 66.13% 8.82%
EN Americas 745,536,078.08 13.30% 835,550,000.85 15.93% (10.77%)
B Europe 632,661,151.99 11.29% 359,195,154.84 6.85% 76.13%
-0 Others 453,878,643.40 8.09%  581,764617.80 11.00%  (21.98%
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Management Discussion and Analysis
(Continued)

1. The business scope and operating results of the
Company (Continued)

Analysis of operating results and financial condition in
accordance with CASBE (Continued)

Industry, products or geographical location accounting for over
10% of operating revenue or operating profit in 2019 (RMB):

EX A EHT)
SRBAL  ERAM k1
ERBA ERAT iiE LERMER LERGEE  LERGER
Change in Change in Change in
operating operating gross
income costs profit rate
ascompared  ascompared  as compared
Operating Operating Gross  tothesame  tothesame  tothe same
%E Item revenue costs profitrate period last year period last year period last year
BEbE By industry
LERHE Chemical bulk drugs 2,387,708.276.49  1,478,202,494.80 38.09% 2.94% (5.79%) 5.74%
25 Preparations 2,592,850,920.07  1,723,498,691.79 33.53% 17.16% 14.34% 1.64%
BETHRERAM Medical intermediates and other
products 625,461606.74  529,684,150.29 15.31% (1247%) (9.90%) (2.13%)
aif Tota 5,606,020,86330  3,731,385,336.88 33.44% 6.89% 1.83% 3.31%
NER By product
BREEESRNE Pharmaceutical raw materials such
as antipyretic and analgesic 2,387,708276.49  1,478,202,494.80 38.09% 2.94% (6.7%%) 5.74%
FE 417 BEHSEE  Preparations such as tablet, iection,
capsule efc. 2,592,850,920.07  1,723498,691.79 33.53% 17.16% 14.34% 1.64%
BETHERAM Medical intermediates and others 625,461606.74  529,684,150.29 15.31% (1247%) (9.90%) (2.13%)
it Total 5,006,020,863.30  3,731,385,336.88 33.44% 6.89% 1.83% 3.31%
HE By geographical location
hE(REE) China (inclucing Hong Kong) 3773,944,980.83  2,445,001,696.71 35.21% 8.82% 1.21% 487%
el Americas 745,536,078.08  497,191321.16 33.31% (10.77%) (16.565%) 4.62%
B Europe 632,661,151.99  431264,144.34 31.83% 76.13% 65.03% 4.58%
i Others 45387864340 357,928,174.67 21.14% (21.98%) (8.54%) (11.59%)
Bt Total 5,006,020,863.30  3,731,385,336.88 33.44% 6.89% 1.83% 3.31%
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Report of The Board of Directors (continued)

1. Management Discussion and Analysis
(Continued)

TEXBRERLES R (E) 1. The business scope and operating results of the
Company (Continued)
EERA B RIHE HEAIREE A Analysis of operating results and financial condition in
RHBERRDH(E) accordance with CASBE (Continued)
20194 F B EmEHFIER Production, sales and inventory of the main products in 2019
(RMB):
TRS8 |E Ekivs 20194 2018%F A LE 38R
As compared
Industry category  Item Unit 2019 2018 to last year
(L2 RA) B2 4t ESales volume  lEton 30,567 31,788 (3.84%)
Chemical bulk drugs 4 & & Production lEton 32,300 33,826 (4.51%)
1z & Inventory lfton 4,655 4,599 1.22%
A $4& &= Sales volume & 5 (0°000) 696,615 599,194 16.26%
Tablet 4 E 2 Production £ F(0'000) 733,807 617,674 18.80%
[E1F ZInventory & Fr(0’000) 188,077 150,885 24.65%
fagcl 45 2Sales volume  #37(0°000) 37,986 54,212 (29.93%)
Injection 4 & Production & 7(0'000) 27,450 64,411 (57.38%)
[E1F £ Inventory #7(0'000) 11,612 22,148 (47.57%)
Bz % 2 Sales volume  E#1(0°000) 63,629 68,243 (6.76%)
Capsule HE E = Production EH(0°000) 67,251 70,512 (4.63%)
E1F £ Inventory EH(0°000) 13,380 9,758 37.11%

2019 EH 1,676 L 2 R %
BANREERBIERATA - &
HEREHMEGFESHRANETER
ARRRMEHBERERE
BBEREET  ReLEES
MR BREEGFEMNOEER
HEAR0I9FKEEHE -

In 2019, the Company had 1,676tonnes of chemical bulk drugs for
production of preparations. The main reason for the great changes in the
production, sales and inventory of injection products is that the company
strengthens the inventory management of injection products, actively
engages in destocking and improves the production and operation
efficiency. The reason of the increase in the inventory of capsule is regular
replenishment of inventories at the end of the year 2019.
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(—) EEEEH RS () 1. Management Discussion and Analysis
(Continued)
1. FEXBHEREESRRE 1. The business scope and operating results of the
Company (Continued)
EERA B RIHE HEAIREE A Analysis of operating results and financial condition in
R Bk 5 7 (1F) accordance with CASBE (Continued)
20194F 1z (HF E b 2 & 51 2E R 4 The structure of operating cost in accordance with CASBE
Ry £ F AL (A T) (RMB):
THENEMNE Industry and Product Category
20195 20185
Year 2019 Year 2018
HER hex
fIRo% RE & BHLE Ex RALE RILLIER
Proportion Proportion ~ Change as
in operating in operating  compared to
Industry category Item Number cost Number cost last year
BEOR AR 2,710,370,014.04 72.64%  2,638,755,415.38 72.01% 2.71%
Pharmaceuticals industry Raw material
BETF AR 1,021,015,322.84 27.36%  1,025,594,204.19 27.99% (0.45%)
Pharmaceuticals industry Other costs
At Total 3,731,385,336.88 100.00% 3,664,349,619.57 100.00% 1.83%
2019 2018%
Year 2019 Year 2018
HEE hex
ERfE RE &8 BELE s KALE RER
Proportion Proportion ~ Change as
in operating inoperating ~ compared to
Product category Item Number cost Number cost last year
[LBRAE BRERBSRHE 1,478,202,494.80 39.61%  1569,12387152 42.83% (6.79%)
Chemical bulk drugs Raw material pharmaceuticals
such as antipyretic and
analgesic
27 RE - SHE - BEESHE  1,723,498,691.79 46.19%  1,507,324,760.63 41.13% 14.34%
Preparations Preparations such as tablet,
injection, capsule etc.
BahEERID BEAREERAD 529,684,150.29 14.20% 587,900,987.42 16.04% (9.90%)
Medical intermediates and other ~ Medical intermediates and
products others
ait Total 3,731,385,336.88 100.00%  3,664,349,619.57 100.00% 1.83%
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Report of The Board of Directors (continued)

1. Management Discussion and Analysis
(Continued)

1.

The business scope and operating results of the
Company (Continued)

Liquidity and analysis of financial resources and capital
structure under the Listing Rules published by the SEHK

As at 31 December 2019, the current ratio and the quick
ratio of the Group were 97.70% and 52.22% respectively, the
accounts receivable turnover rate (accounts receivable turnover
rate = operating revenue/average trade and bill receivables
%X 100%) and the inventory turnover rate (inventory turnover rate
= cost of sales/net amount of average inventories X 100%) were
1,717.70% and 355.57% respectively.

The current ratio and quick ratio varied from those at the end of
the previous year. The mainly reason was that the increase in
the amount of advanced payments received by the subsidiaries
for property sale this year leads to the increase in current
liabilities. The Group’s demand for working capital did not show
significant seasonal fluctuation.

The Group’s main sources of funds were loans and operating
profits. As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s total amount
of outstanding loans was RMB1,528,475,000. As at 31
December 2019, monetary funds of the Group amounted to
RMB690,470,000. The Group has a good credit record with
banks and has sufficient credit lines from banks at its disposal.
Therefore, it can meet the liquidity requirements at any time.

As at 31 December 2019, the Company’s subsidiary Xinhua
(Zibo) Real Estate Co., Ltd., has a housing loan deposit of
RMB702,000 and a regulated advanced sales amount of
RMB26,703,000; and the Company’s subsidiary Shandong
Xinhua Wanbo Chemical Industry Co., Ltd.* (“Wanbo Chemical”)
has frozen funds of RMB1,270,000. The Company and its
subsidiary Shandong Zibo XinCat Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.*
charged their respective monetary funds of RMB68,440,000
and RMB15,730,000 to the bank for arrangement of
bank acceptance bills. The Company’s fixed asset of
RMB77,828,000 was charged as security for loans. The Group
does not have ownership of the Group’s right-of-use asset in
the amount of RMB1,892,000. Save as disclosed, the Group
did not have other charged assets.
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1. Management Discussion and Analysis
(Continued)

1.

The business scope and operating results of the
Company (Continued)

Liquidity and analysis of financial resources and capital
structure under the Listing Rules published by the SEHK
(Continued)

On 20 December 2018, the Company entered into an equity
transfer agreement with SXPGC and the transaction was
considered and approved at the extraordinary general meeting
of the Company. On 25 February 2019, the Company acquired
30% equity interest of Centrient Pharmaceutical (Zibo) Co.,
LTD with a listing price RMB 63,030,660.

On 11 October 2019, the Company acquired 33% equity
interest of Shandong Xinhua Wanbo Chemical Industry Co.,
Ltd. with a listing price of RMB19,441,686 and entered into an
ownership transaction agreement with HHC; On 18 September
2019, the above transactions were considered and approved
at the second interim meeting of the ninth Board of Directors
of the Company. As at 31 December 2019, the total assets of
Wanbo Chemical was RMB72,230,000, and the owners’ equity
was RMB45,780,000. In 2019, the operating income and the
net profit of Shandong Xinhua Wanbo Chemical Industry Co.,
Ltd. were RMB108,847,000 and RMB7,374,000 respectively,
representing an increase of 4.28% and an increase of 19.80%
respectively as compared with that of last year. The earnings
were positive.

Save as the transactions stated above, the Group did not have
any material investment, acquisitions or any disposal of assets
during the Reporting Period.

The breakdown of the performance results of the Group is
listed in the section headed “Analysis of operating results and
financial situation in accordance with CASBE”.

As at 31 December 2019, the number of staff employed by the
Group was 6,399, and the total amount of salaries and wages
for 2019 was RMB535,109,000.

The asset-liability ratio of the Group was 51.67% (asset-liability
ratio = total liabilities/total assets < 100%).
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Report of The Board of Directors (continued)

1. Management Discussion and Analysis
(Continued)

1.

The business scope and operating results of the
Company (Continued)

Liquidity and analysis of financial resources and capital
structure under the Listing Rules published by the SEHK
(Continued)

The current bank deposits of the Company primarily serve as
working capital for projects implementation, production and
operation.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a gross gearing ratio
(ie, gross debt divided by adjusted capital) of 51.50%, and
a net gearing ratio (ie, net debt divided by adjusted capital)
of 28.24%. For this purpose, gross debt is defined as total
borrowings and net debt is defined as total borrowings less
cash and cash equivalents, and adjusted capital defined as all
components of equity attributable to shareholders other than
designated reserves.

The assets and liabilities of the Group were mainly recorded in
RMB. For the year 2019, the revenue from the Group’s exports
was approximately US$260,394,000, which was subject to
risks associated with exchange rate fluctuations. Therefore, the
Group has taken the following measures to lower the risks of
exchange rates fluctuations: (1) the Group has increased the
price of its export products to reduce the risks of exchange
rates fluctuations; and (2) when entering into material export
contracts, the Group has made advanced arrangements that
the risks associated with exchange rates fluctuations shall
be borne by both parties if the fluctuation exceeds the range
agreed by both parties.

* A breakdown of other items including employee welfare, social
insurance and provident funds is set out under item 22 “Payroll
payable” in the “Notes to Main Items in Consolidated Financial
Statement” in this Report.
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1. Management Discussion and Analysis
(Continued)

2. Operations and Results of subsidiaries of the Company

As at the end of 2019:

(1)

The total registered capital of Zibo Xinhua-Perrigo
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. was US$20,949,000, and
the Company holds 50.1% of its equity interest. This
subsidiary is mainly engaged in producing and selling
pharmaceutical raw materials and solid preparations.
As at 31 December 2019, the total assets of the
subsidiary was approximately RMB288,648,000, and
the equity attributable to shareholders of the subsidiary
was approximately RMB242,342,000. In 2019, the
operating income of the subsidiary was approximately
RMB225,416,000,representing an increase of 11.45%
as compared with that of last year. The main reason
for the increase in operating income is that the sales
price of pharmaceutical raw materials rose in the same
year. The net profit of the subsidiary was approximately
RMB37,387,000, it is broadly comparable with that of
last year.

The total registered capital of Shandong Xinhua
Pharmaceutical Trade Co., Ltd. was RMB48,499,000,
and the Company holds 100% of its equity interest.
This subsidiary is mainly engaged in the business of
biological products, prepared Chinese herbal medicine
decoction, traditional Chinese medicine, chemical bulk
drugs, chemical preparations, antibiotic preparations,
biochemical medicine, health food, medical appliances,
drugs and products for birth control and cosmetics,office
supplies, labor protection supplies, daily necessities,
cosmetics, electronic products, storage services etc. As
at 31 December 2019, the total assets of the subsidiary
were approximately RMB402,887,000, equity attributable
to shareholders of the subsidiary was approximately
RMB4,571,000. In 2019, the operating income of the
subsidiary was approximately RMB2,154,920,000,
representing an increase of 39.35% as compared with
that of last year. The increase in operating income was
mainly attributable to the active market expansion during
the year and the corresponding rapid growth in product
sales. The net profit was RMB707,000, representing a
decrease of 82.01% as compared with that of last year.
The decrease was mainly due to the Company steadily
promoted development strategy of bulk drugs, and
integrated the resources for marketing of preparations
and the growth in selling expense.
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Report of The Board of Directors (continued)

1. Management Discussion and Analysis
(Continued)

2. Operations and Results of subsidiaries of the Company
(Continued)

©)

The registered capital of Shandong Xinhua
Pharmaceutical Import and Export Co., Ltd. was
RMB5,000,000, and the Company holds 100% of its
equity interest. This subsidiary is mainly engaged in raw
materials and intermediates, chemical products sales
and the import and export of goods and technologies.
As at 31 December 2019, the total assets of the
subsidiary were approximately RMB53,775,000, and
the equity attributable to shareholders of the subsidiary
was approximately RMB47,491,000. In 2019, the
operating income and the net profit of the subsidiary
were approximately RMB84,546,000 and RMB5,815,000
respectively, representing a decrease of 16.55% and an
increase of 24.95% respectively as compared with that of
last year. The decrease in operating income was mainly
attributable to the adjustment to sales structure during
the year, and the increase in net profit was mainly due
to the maintenance of major products sales against the
fierce and competitive market environment during the
year.

The registered capital of Xinhua Pharmaceutical
(Shouguang) Co., Ltd. was RMB230,000,000, and
the Company holds 100% of its equity interest. This
subsidiary is mainly engaged in producing and selling
chemical products. As at 31 December 2019, the
total assets of the subsidiary were approximately
RMB820,851,000, and the equity attributable to
shareholders of the subsidiary was approximately
RMB484,857,000. In 2019, the operating revenue
was RMB828,791,000, representing a slight decrease
compared with that of the last year. The net profit of
the subsidiary was RMB42,640,000, representing an
increase of 35.64% as compared with that of last year.
The increase in net profit was mainly attributable to the
effect of the fluctuation of prices of chemical materials
and the substantial decrease in costs of materials
procurement.
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1. Management Discussion and Analysis
(Continued)

2. Operations and Results of subsidiaries of the Company
(Continued)

©)

The registered capital of Zibo Xinhua Pharmacy Chain
Co., Ltd. is RMB2,000,000 and the Company holds
100% of its equity interest. The main operations of the
subsidiary are the sale of traditional Chinese medicine,
prepared Chinese herbal medicine decoction, chemical
preparations, drugs for diagnosis, health food, drugs
for birth control, medical devices and cosmetics. As at
31 December 2019, the total assets of the subsidiary
were approximately RMB105,496,000, and the
equity attributable to shareholders of the subsidiary
was approximately RMB4,526,000. In 2019, the
operating income of the subsidiary was approximately
RMB176,588,000, representing an increase of 23.57%
as compared with that of last year. The net profit of the
subsidiary was approximately RMB915,000,representing
a sharp rise as compared with that of last year. The main
reason for the growth of business income and net profit is
that the sales revenue of e-commerce has increased.

The registered capital of Shandong Xinhua
Pharmaceutical Chemical Industry Design Co., Ltd.
was RMB6,000,000 and the Company holds 100% of
its equity interest. This subsidiary is mainly engaged in
the business of the design of medical projects. As at
31 December 2019, the total assets of the subsidiary
were approximately RMB25,991, 000, and the equity
attributable to shareholders of the subsidiary was
approximately RMB18,192,000. In 2019, the operating
income was approximately RMB28,878,000, representing
an increase of 15.73% as compared with that of last
year. The net profit of the subsidiary was approximately
RMB2,317,000, representing an increase of 33.26% as
compared with that of last year. The increase in operating
income and net profit was mainly attributable to the
increase in the scale of the design services.
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Report of The Board of Directors (continued)

1. Management Discussion and Analysis
(Continued)

2. Operations and Results of subsidiaries of the Company
(Continued)

(7)

The registered capital of Shandong Xinhua
Pharmaceutical (Europe) B.V. was EUR769,000 and the
Company holds 65% of its equity interest. This subsidiary
is mainly engaged in the business of bulk pharmaceutical
and intermediates. As at 31 December 2019, the total
assets of the subsidiary was RMB29,321,000, and the
equity attributable to shareholders of the subsidiary
was RMB24,199,000. In 2019, the operating income of
the subsidiary was RMB191,823,000,it is basically the
same compared with that of last year. The net profits
of the subsidiary was RMB7,150,000, representing a
decreases of 11.26% as compared with that of last year.
The decrease in net profit was mainly attributable to the
increase of income tax expense.

Total registered capital of Xinhua (Zibo) Real Estate
Co., Ltd. was RMB20,000,000, and the Company
holds 100% of its equity interest. This subsidiary was
established in December 2010 and is mainly engaged
in the business of real estate development and sales,
lease of property and property management, etc.
As at 31 December 2019, the total assets of the
subsidiary were approximately RMB282,185,000, and
the equity attributable to shareholders of the subsidiary
was approximately RMB20,036,000. In 2019, the
operating income of the subsidiary was approximately
RMB3,817,000,representing an increases of 9.94% as
compared with that of last year. The increase in operating
income was mainly attributable to the increase in property
management income. The net profit of the subsidiary was
approximately RMB127,000,representing a decrease of
20.55% as compared with that of last year. The decrease
in net profit was mainly due to the increase in property
management cost.
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1. Management Discussion and Analysis
(Continued)

2. Operations and Results of subsidiaries of the Company
(Continued)

C)

Total registered capital of Xinhua Pharmaceutical
(Gaomi) Co., Ltd. was RMB19,000,000, and the
Company holds 100% of its equity interest. This
subsidiary was established in April 2012 and is mainly
engaged in the business of tablets and granules.
As at 31 December 2019, the total assets of the
subsidiary were approximately RMB91,157,000 and
the equity attributable to shareholders of the subsidiary
was approximately RMB2,625,000. In 2019,the
operating income of the subsidiary was approximately
RMB37,967,000,representing an increases of 45.62% as
compared with that of last year. The increase in operating
income was mainly attributable to the Company steadily
promoted development strategy of bulk drugs and the
growth in product sales. The net profit of the subsidiary
was approximately RMB737,000,representing a
decrease of 13.66% as compared with that of last year.
The decrease in net profit was mainly attributable to the
increase in procurement cost.

Total registered capital of Xinhua Pharmaceutical
(USA) Inc. was US$1,500,000, and the Company
holds 100% of its equity interest. This subsidiary was
established on 29 January 2013 and is mainly engaged
in pharmaceuticals, chemicals, health products research
and development, certification and import and export
business etc. As at 31 December 2019, the total assets
of the subsidiary were approximately RMB17,477,000,
and the equity attributable to shareholders of the
subsidiary was approximately RMB16,925,000. In 2019,
the operating income of the subsidiary was approximately
RMB41,270,000, representing a decrease of 45.37% as
compared with that of last year. The decrease in operating
income is mainly attributable to the active adjustment to
product structure. The net profit of the subsidiary was
approximately RMB1,245,000,representing a sharp
rise as compared with that of last year. The increase
in net profit is mainly due to the rise in selling prices by
leveraging on competitive advantages.
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Report of The Board of Directors (continued)

1. Management Discussion and Analysis
(Continued)

2. Operations and Results of subsidiaries of the Company
(Continued)

(1)

(12)

The Company holds 100% equity interests in
Shandong Zibo XinCat Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., which
was established in 1993. The registered capital of
Shandong Zibo XinCat Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. was
RMB84,930,000 and its major scope of business includes
tablets (inclusive of cephalosporins, penicillins, anti-cancer
agents), hard capsules (inclusive of cephalosporins,
penicillins), granules (inclusive of cephalosporins,
penicillins), dry suspension (inclusive of cephalosporins).
As at 31 December 2019, the total assets of the
subsidiary were approximately RMB222,016,000 and the
equity attributable to shareholder of the subsidiary was
approximately RMB120,529,000. In 2019, it achieved
operating revenue of RMB264,610,000, representing
a decrease of 19.21% as compared with that of last
year. The decrease in operating income was mainly
attributable to the company integrated the resources for
marketing of preparations. The net profit of the subsidiary
was approximately RMB10,140,000,representing an
increase of 36.64% as compared with that of last year.
The increase in net profit was mainly attributable to the
decrease in procurement cost and selling expense.

The Company holds 100% equity interests in Shandong
Xinhua Mechanical and Electrical Engineering Co., Ltd.,
which was established in April 2014 with a registered
capital of RMB8,000,000. It was mainly engaged in
electrical equipment engineering, installation and test of
chemical equipment and electrical equipment, as well as
sales of mechanical, hardware and electrical equipments.
On 31 December 2019, the total assets of the subsidiary
were RMB13,044,000 and the equity attributable
to shareholder of the subsidiary was approximately
RMB9,980,000. In 2019, it achieved operating revenue
of RMB14,919,000, representing a decrease of 9.59%
as compared with that of last year. The decrease in
operating income is mainly attributable to the decrease
in engineering installation income under the fierce
market competition. The net profit of the subsidiary was
approximately RMB508,000,representing an increase of
13.51% as compared with that of last year. The increase
in net profit was mainly attributable to the decrease in
procurement cost.
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1. Management Discussion and Analysis
(Continued)

2. Operations and Results of subsidiaries of the Company
(Continued)

(13)

The Company holds 73% equity interests in Shandong
Xinhua Wanbo Chemical Industry Co., Ltd. which was
established in November 1999 with a registered capital
of RMB46,624,000. Its principal businesses include the
production and sale of chemical raw materials such as
dimethyl sulfate, isobutylbenzene, 1,8-diazabicyclo(5,4,0)
undec-7-ene and tetramethylguanidine. As at 31
December 2019, the total assets of the subsidiary
was RMB72,230,000, and the equity attributable to
shareholder of the subsidiary was RMB45,780,000. In
2019, the operating income and the net profit of Wanbo
Chemical were RMB108,847,000 and RMB7,374,000
respectively, representing an increase of 4.28% and an
increase of 19.80% respectively as compared with that
of last year. The increase in operating income and net
profit is mainly attributable to the decrease in the cost of
purchase while better maintaining the sales price of the
products, broadening the room of profit.

The “Main financial information of important subsidiaries
not wholly owned” is listed in item1. (3) under section VIII
in “Notes to the Financial Statements” in this report.
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Report of The Board of Directors (continued)

1. Management Discussion and Analysis
(Continued)

3.

Analysis of core competitiveness

The Company has a development history of nearly 80 years,
possessing such development advantages as scale and
complete set of industrial chain. The Company is a leading
production and export base for antipyretic analgesic drugs in
Asia.

The Company has an advantage in fundamental management
and has passed the ISO9001, ISO14001, ISO10012 and
1ISO22000 certifications in order.

The Company has an advantage of international operation.
With 14 items of the Company’s products having passed the
American FDA certification and 10 items having obtained the
European COS certificate, the Company’s products were
sold to more than 50 countries and regions in the world. The
Company is one of the first 15 pioneering enterprises which
implements a global strategy.

The Company has an advantage in technological innovation.
The Company is a recognised hi-tech technology enterprise,
a key hi-tech technology enterprise under the National Torch
Program, and a key enterprise in the bio-pharmaceutical
industrial base under the National Torch Program. The
Company has a national-level enterprise technology centre,
has in place enterprise post-doctoral research station, and has
extensive cooperation with more than 50 scientific and research
institutions and universities.

Unless otherwise specified, the figures in the Management
Discussion and Analysis are rounded to the nearest thousandth.
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2. Working Report of the Board

1.

During this year, the Board of Directors passed
resolutions on six occasions:

)

On 22 March 2019, the sixth meeting 2019 of the Ninth
Board was convened at the Company’s registered office,
and the relevant information was published in Securities
Times in the PRC, Juchao website, HKExnews and on
the Company’s website on 25 March 2019.

On 23 April 2019, the seventh meeting 2019 of the Ninth
Board was convened at the Company’s registered office,
and the relevant information was published in Securities
Times in the PRC, Juchao website, HKExnews and on
the Company’s website on 24 April 2019.

On 4 June 2019, the Company convened the first
extraordinary meeting 2019 of the ninth session of the
Board by written resolution, considering and approving
the resolution on the Construction of Injections GMP
Renovation Project (Phase |).

On 19 August 2019, the eighth meeting 2019 of the Ninth
Board was convened at the Company’s registered office,
and the relevant information was published in Securities
Times in the PRC, Juchao website, HKExnews and on
the Company’s website on 20 August 2019.

On 18 September 2019, the Company convened the
second extraordinary meeting 2019 of the ninth session
of the Board by written resolution,and the relevant
information was published in Securities Times in the
PRC, Juchao website, HKExnews and on the Company’s
website on 19 September 2019.

On 28 October 2019, the ninth meeting 2019 of the ninth
Board was convened at the Company’s registered office,
and the relevant information was published in Securities
Times in the PRC, Juchao website, HKExnews and on
the Company’s website on 29 October 2019.
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Report of The Board of Directors (continued)

Working Report of the Board (Continued)

2. The Board’s of the resolutions passed at general
meetings

The annual general meeting 2018 convened on 26 June 2019
considered and approved the Special Resolution on 2018
Profit Distribution Plan, distributing final dividend for the year
2018 to all shareholders at RMBO0.10 per share (tax inclusive)
on 621,859,447 Shares. No distribution of bonus shares and
no share capital increase from capitalization of capital reserves.
The above dividend distribution was completed in late July
2019.

Others

Brief Introduction of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Officers
The biographical details of the Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Officers are set out in the section headed “Directors, Supervisors,
Senior Officers and Staff” in this report.

Public Float

The Company has complied with the requirement in respect of the
public float during this reporting period and up to the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of this report.

Remuneration of Directors and Supervisors

Details of the remuneration of the Company’s Directors and

Supervisors are set out in item (IV) 1. section Xl in “Note to the
Financial Statements” in this report.

“E-NEER | URFERERDERAT

83



84

EEEWE (B
Report of The Board of Directors (continued)

(Z) Bt isi (&)

EEH&AL

RNEEAEEESSMEHNIAE AL
AB—ZARBEERTNAFEEEA
8  HFBERAREH KRR T
F—- ()20

EE EEREROMNESZENPR
/i

RRE -~ HERA T RIER AR EALM
BARIBER AR E RAEREHER L
EAZEE  BEARRZERNES - &
FREEBRERB T\ T2ORBE
ARR RIS E A Rz B fn kiR 75
MRS FaE -

EE  EEZERBEN
RAEEF  EFEREARRTLRH

EH o

REEEREFRARABETIER
—FRELEECEERBRIN T AR
LEZIRFEEH

ETHEEW

AEER  ARBLERBERBF X
MEEXEBNERRTHRTIERF ST
BEFEL -

EzREEZaNPHTE

KRR - HFFBLRR) - HERARRE
B X B E ALK B R RN AN FEF R
MR - HELANEBEBRERE
MEE EEEERIERGEAEAN D
R o

Others (Continued)
Highest Paid Individuals

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the year 2019
were one director and four middle-level management members.
For details please see item (IV) 2. under section X| in “Notes to the
Financial Statements” of this report.

Benefits acquired by Directors and Supervisors by means of
acquisition of shares in or debentures of Group companies

At no time during the reporting period has the Company, its
holding company or its fellow subsidiaries become a party to any
arrangements to enable any of the Directors, the Supervisors, or
their spouses or children under 18 years of age to take advantage by
acquiring shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

Service Contracts of Directors and Supervisors

None of the Directors and Supervisors has entered into a service
contract with the Company.

None of the Directors and the Supervisors has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Interests in Contracts

None of the Company, its holding company, its controlling
shareholder and subsidiaries of the controlling company has entered
into any contracts in relation to the Company’s business in which any
Directors or Supervisors had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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Report of The Board of Directors (continued)

Others (Continued)
2018 A Share Option Incentive Plan

On 28 December 2018, the 2018 first extraordinary general meeting,
the 2018 second class meeting of the shareholders of A shares and
the 2018 second class meeting of the shareholders of H shares
were held during which the 2018 A Share Option Incentive Plan (the
“Incentive Plan”) was considered and approved. On the same day, the
ninth session of the Board and the 2018 eighth extraordinary meeting
of the Company approved the granting of 16.25 million share options
to 185 eligible grantees.

A brief summary of the terms of the Incentive Plan is set out below:
(1) Purpose

The Incentive Plan is intended to further provide and enhance
the mechanisms of the Company for providing long-term
incentives to eligible participants (including Directors, senior and
mid-level management members and core staff members of the
Company), with the view to retain talent and provide them with
incentives for greater involvement in the long-term development
and prospects of the Company, which is effectively aligned with
the interests of shareholders of the Company.

(2) The participants

Participants of the Incentive Plan include Directors, members of
senior management and mid-level management and core staff
members of the Company.

Any eligible participants who is a Director or senior management
member must have been appointed by shareholders of
the Company or the Board. An eligible participant must be
employed or engaged by the Company by a binding contract
at the time of grant of share options or at the time when his or
her performance is being evaluated for considering his or her
entitlement to grant of share options of the Company.

Eligible participants of the Incentive Plan do not include any
independent Directors, the Supervisors, any shareholder or
actual controller of the Company who individually, or together
with their respective spouses, parents and/or children, holds
more than 5% in the issued share capital of the Company.

Further, during the validity period of the Incentive Plan,
participants shall not also be participants of an equity incentive
scheme of another company whose securities are listed on
a stock exchange, and persons who are participants of such
other incentive schemes during the life of such schemes shall
not be participants of the Incentive Plan.
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Others (Continued)

2018 A Share Option Incentive Plan (Continued)

3

4

)

Maximum number of shares

The underlying shares of the Incentive Plan shall be ordinary A
shares issued to eligible participants pursuant to the terms and
provisions of the Incentive Plan.

The total number of the A shares which may be issued upon
exercise of the share options granted under the Incentive Plan
is 16,250,000 A shares (representing approximately 2.61% of
the total number of issued share capital of the Company as
at 31 December 2018). This does not in aggregate exceed
10% of the total issued share capital of the Company as at 28
December 2018, being the date of the shareholders’ meeting
which approved the Incentive Plan.

Upon satisfaction of terms and conditions of the exercise of the
share options, each share option of the Company shall provide
its holder with the right to purchase one A share at the exercise
price (being RMB5.98 per A share) during the period when the
Incentive Plan is in effect.

As at the date of this report, 16,250,000 share options had
been granted, but none of such share options has been
exercised. As such, the total number of A shares available for
issue under the Incentive Plan remains at 16,250,000 A shares
(representing approximately 2.61% of the total number of issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of this report).

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of A shares issued and which may fall to
be issued to a participant (pursuant to the exercise of share
options under the Incentive Plan and any other share option
incentive plans of the Company) must not exceed 1% of the
total issued share capital of the Company.

Vesting period

Share options shall have vesting periods of 24 months, 36
months and 48 months from the date of grant respectively.
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Report of The Board of Directors (continued)

3. Others (Continued)
2018 A Share Option Incentive Plan (Continued)
Exercise period of share options under the Incentive Plan

Share options under the Incentive Plan are exercisable in three

W24B AE sy =BT - AR tranches from expiry of 24 months from the date of the grant.
Beanr Details of the exercise periods are set out below:
fTiEd HARR BITERFELE
Proportion of the
share options that
Exercise period Duration may be exercised
E—ErTHEER AR THEB4EAZMNERER S AEERT B R36(EA M HE 34%
XHHEEHLE

First exercise period

B {ETTHEH

Second exercise period

B = {ETTHEH

Third exercise period

Commencing from the first trading day after the expiry of the 24th
month from the date of grant, and ending on the last trading day
of the 36th month from the date of grant

BT RE36EARMNEERS HRER T Hi48(E A AR RIE 33%
RHHAERLE

Commencing from the first trading day after the expiry of the 36th
month from the date of grant, and ending on the last trading day
of the 48th month from the date of grant

BT RR48EARNEER S HRER T HE60(E A Rr &I 33%
RHHAERIE

Commencing from the first trading day after the expiry of the
48th month period from the date of grant, and ending on the last
trading day of the 60th month period from the date of grant

AXFrigm R 5 A EBRERY
ETRRIGE TERE - BIRER
TTHREERBENARRITTRE BT 1Y
IR AT - B TER T
—ITREHATTHE ©

“Trading days” have the meaning ascribed thereto under the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange. Share options which are granted and
exercisable but which are not exercised within the relevant
exercise periods shall lapse and may no longer be exercisable
in subsequent exercise periods, or at all.
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Others (Continued)

2018 A Share Option Incentive Plan (Continued)

(7)

©

)

Conditions of grant and exercise of the shares options

The grant and exercise of the share options are subject
to various conditions. These include, without limitation, no
occurrence of certain events (such as violation of laws and
regulations by the Company), the ascertaining of certain
performance targets (including targets for operating revenue
and average return on net assets during the exercise periods)
by the Company, and that the relevant eligible participants
are in good standing and not restricted by applicable law to
participate in the Incentive Plan. Further details are set out in
the circular of the Company dated 12 December 2018.

Amount payable on acceptance and period within which
payment must be made

The exercise price in respect of the share options under the
Incentive Plan, being RMB5.98 per A share, is payable upon
exercise of share options.

Basis for determining exercise price

Subject to Note (1) to Rule 17.03(9) of the Listing Rules, the
exercise price of a share option shall be at least the higher of (a)
the closing price of the H Shares as stated in daily quotations
sheet (with the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing
Rules) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”) on the business day on which the share options are
granted; and (b) the average closing price of the H Shares as
stated in the daily quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant
of share options.
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Report of The Board of Directors (continued)

3. Others (Continued)

2018 A Share Option Incentive Plan (Continued)

©)

(10)

Basis for determining exercise price (Continued)

On such basis, the exercise price shall not be less than the
nominal value of the shares, and shall be the higher of:

(i) the average of the trading prices of the A shares (being
the total daily trading turnover on the last trading day
immediately preceding the date of announcement
of the Incentive Plan (namely 6 November 2018 (the
“Announcement Day”)) divided by the total daily trading
volume on the last trading day immediately preceding
the Announcement Day) quoted on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange on the last trading day immediately preceding
the Announcement Day, being RMB5.98 per A share;

(ii) the average of the trading prices of the A shares quoted
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange for the last 20 trading
days immediately preceding the Announcement Day,
being RMB5.64 per A share;

(i) the closing price of the A Shares quoted on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange on the last trading day immediately
preceding the Announcement Day, being RMB5.97 per A
share;

(iv)  the average of the closing prices of the A Shares quoted
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange for the last 30 trading
day immediately preceding the Announcement Day,
being RMB5.81 per A Share; and

(v)  the net asset value per share attributable to shareholders
for year 2017, being RMB3.99.

On the basis of the above, the exercise price of the share
options pursuant to the Incentive Plan was determined to be
RMB5.98 per A share.

Validity period of the Incentive Plan

The validity period of the Incentive Plan commences from the
date of grant of share options and shall last for a period of 60
months or until the date on which all the share options have

been exercised or lapsed, whichever earlier.

Further detailed terms of the Incentive Plan are set out in the
circular of the Company dated 12 December 2018.
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(=) Hfthiign (48) 3. Others (Continued)
A BB TFERRAER2019F /S Share options granted under the Incentive Plan and
] movements during the year 2019
2019 AT 2 T R R AR AT I I Particulars and movements of share options under the Incentive Plan
B - during the year 2019 were as follows:
BRAESE
Number of share options
#2019 720195
BIKRER 1818 R20195FEE  R2019FE 12A31H
3N S A# RAETTERE ARITHE & eS| AR ITHE
Exercise Outstanding Exercised Lapsed Outstanding
price per as at during the during the as at
Grantees Date of grant share option 2019.01.01 Year 2019 Year 2019 2019.12.31
EER
Chairman
SRR 28.12.2018 RMB5.98 300,000 300,000
Zhang Daiming
EF
Directors
R 28.12.2018 RMB5.98 270,000 270,000
Ren Fulong
MY 28.12.2018 RMB5.98 270,000 270,000
Du Deping
%3 28.12.2018 RMB5.98 220,000 220,000
Xu Lie
EREFEAE
Senior Officers
BN 28.12.2018 RMB5.98 220,000 220,000
Wang Xiaolong
&5 28.12.2018 RMB5.98 220,000 220,000
Du Deqing
ERE 28.12.2018 RMB5.98 220,000 220,000
He Tongaing
el 28.12.2018 RMB5.98 220,000 220,000
Dou Xuejie
ZE 28.12.2018 RMB5.98 220,000 220,000
Hou Ning
BBoE 28.12.2018 RMB5.98 220,000 220,000
Zheng Zhonghui
BERK 28.12.2018 RMB5.98 160,000 160,000
Cao Changaiu
FEBEABRRZOERAR
(HEM74BEEZEN) 28.12.2018 RMB5.98 13,710,000 13,710,000
Mid-level management and core staff
members (174 grantees in total)
16,250,000 16,250,000
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Report of The Board of Directors (continued)

Others (Continued)
Accounts

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2019 and the
financial position of the Group and the Company as at 31 December
2019 prepared in accordance with CASBE are set out in the financial
statements in this report.

Financial Summary

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group prepared
in accordance with CASBE for the last five financial years is set out in
section headed “Summary of Financial and Operating Results”.

Cash dividends of the Company in the past three years

In accordance with CASBE, the Group recorded net profit
attributable to the shareholders of the Company of approximately
RMB209,592,000 for the year ended 31 December 2017. 10% of the
net profit of the Company in 2017 was transferred to the statutory
surplus reserves amounting to approximately RMB14,292,000.
The Board proposed to distribute final dividend for the year 2017
to all shareholders at RMBO0.05 per share (tax inclusive) based on
478,353,421 shares and issue 3 new shares for every 10 existing
shares of the Company out of capital reserve.

According to the CASBE, the Group recorded the net profit
attributable to shareholders of Company of RMB250,833,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2018. 10% of the net profit of the Company
achieved in 2018 was transferred to the statutory surplus reserves
amounting to approximately RMB20,799,000. The Board proposed
to distribute final dividend for the year 2018 to all shareholders at
RMBO0.10 per share (tax inclusive) based on 621,859,447 shares.
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(=) H iR (48) 3. Others (Continued)

LFE=F R & SRR (8)
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Cash dividends of the Company in the past three years
(Continued)

According to the CASBE, the Group recorded the net profit
attributable to shareholders of Company of RMB299,966,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2019. 10% of the net profit of the Company
achieved in 2019 was transferred to the statutory surplus reserves
amounting to approximately RMB22,840,000. The Board proposed
to distribute final dividend for the year 2019 to all shareholders at
RMBO0.12 per share (tax inclusive) based on 621,859,447 shares. The
proposed distribution of dividends and conversion of capital reserve
to share capital are subject to consideration and approval at the
annual general meeting.

#fy - ARKIT Unit: RMB

Cash dividend
amounts

in consolidated
statements (after

SHEESH LEtmEP

HwEPEER BERETAT

LHATFIRES B SREEFE

Reail&#E(8R) PR (AEER) EYLE 3 (%)
Net profit

attributable to % of net profit

the shareholders attributable to

of the Company the shareholders

of the Company
in consolidated

£E Year (including tax) adjustment) statements
20194 2019 74,623,133.64 299,966,265.71 24.88
20184 2018 62,185,944.70 255,314,454.86 24.36
20174 2017 23,917,671.05 211,972,5624.22 11.28
2019 EF B TAR 2019 plan for profit distribution and conversion of capital

B LA621,859,4470% AEE - [MEEE
R RIREE2019FERHIR B FRARE
0.127L(EF) o IhEHRENBREEHF
REREARSERBB -

FREBREMERSHEEA

AEERARANEEIHE ST 2 L%
ERAIE AN 7R A5 -

reserve into share capital

The Board proposes to distribute final dividend for the year 2019 to all
shareholders at RMBO0.12 per share (tax inclusive), based on the total
issued shares of the Company of 621,859,447 shares. The proposed
distribution of dividends and conversion of capital reserve to share
capital are subject to review and approval at the annual general
meeting.

Principal Activities and Operations by Geographical Area
The turnover of the Group and the Company in various geographical

areas is set out in item 37 under section VI and item 5 under section
XVIl'in “Notes to the Financial Statements” in this report.

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED / 2019 ANNUAL REPORT



(Z) Bt isi (&)

BRESEBRERERA

ARBRAREENRARERBIRER
MARIRARBE RERER] -

i

REBRARRAFEARMBENEEE
BN ARG P BB SRR 2 B B
FREEREHK -

BE®E

B REMI <11 ©

B|ITERRHMER

AEERARFR2019F12A31HEN
ROTERLEMERE R ZFBIHD
B SRR EE /<18 ~ 7N.25 ~ N.26 %
7%.28 ©

BE{LHR

REERNAEBBETERTRRAEER
MERMEFE £ AREKL,053F T °

BRIES

REBEHE2019F12831HIEFER
TEHNERTES TAEBEET - B
— WA N\EFE—A—B#  KEBECDRE
FREBFEBEETE  HETTE10%HE
MEILREBEETEERAESEEP L
EEMNEREAES  REZE2019F12A
S1HIEFER  AEBEMWETER
NESARES7,734F T °

EZTEHE (B

Report of The Board of Directors (continued)

Others (Continued)

Changes in Share Capital Structure and Information on
Shareholders

Changes in share capital and shareholders are set out in the section
headed “Changes in Share Capital Structure and Information on
Shareholders” in this Report.

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the
year 2019 are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Shareholder’s Equity in the Financial Statements in this report.

Fixed Assets

Details of the movement in the fixed assets of the Group and the
Company during 2019 are set out in item 11. under section VI in “Note
to the Financial Statements” in this report.

Bank Loans and Other Borrowings

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group and
the Company as at 31 December 2019 are set out in items 18, 25,
26 and 28 in section VI in “Note to the Financial Statements” in this
report.

Capitalised Interest

During the year, there was RMB4,053,000 in respect of loans
borrowed by the Group for financing its projects-in-progress.

Staff Quarters

The Group did not sell any staff quarters to its staff during the year
ended 31 December 2019 but has been paying a contribution of 10%
of the basic wages of the Group’s staff to the housing provident fund
managed by the Shandong Province Zibo Municipal Finance Bureau
in accordance with the relevant regulations implemented by the PRC
government since 1 January 1998. For the year ended 31 December
2019, contributions to the housing provident fund made by the Group
in this respect amounted to approximately RMB37,734,000.
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Staff Basic Medical Insurance

Pursuant to the “Plan for Implementation of Basic Medical Insurance
System for Urban Employees” promulgated by the Shandong
Provincial Government and the “Schedule for Establishment of
Medical Insurance System for Urban Employees” implemented by
Zibo Municipal Government, the Company implemented the Basic
Medical Insurance System for Employees in December 2004. For the
year ended 31 December 2019, the total contribution of the Group to
the staff medical insurance was approximately RMB30,579,000.

Preferential Tax Treatment

In 2008 the Company and Shandong Zibo XinCat Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. are recognised as the first batch of hi-tech enterprises in
Shandong Province. According to the Measures for the Administration
of Recognition of Hi- tech Enterprises, the certificate of national high
and new technology enterprises would be valid for three years. The
qualifications will be reassessed three years later.

According to the formal notice (Lu Ke [2018] No. 37) issued by the
Department of Science and Technology of Shandong Province,
Shandong Province Finance Bureau, National Tax Bureau of
Shandong and Regional Tax Bureau of Shandong Province, the
Company and Shandong Zibo XinCat Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. are
recognised as new and high technology enterprises, the recognition
would be valid for three years, from (2017 to 2019). According to the
Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise Income Tax, the
Company and Shandong Zibo XinCat Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. could
enjoy a preferential tax rate of 15% with regard to their enterprise
income tax.

Designated Deposits
For the year ended 31 December 2019 the Group had neither placed
any deposits with any non-banking financial institutions, nor had
it placed any designated deposits. The Group does not have any
overdue time deposits.

Important Issues

Important issues of the Company for the year 2019 are set out in the
section headed “Important Issues” in this report.
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3. Others (Continued)
Top Five Suppliers and Customers

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the percentages of purchases
and sales attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers and five
largest customers were 31.73% and 14.35% of the Group’s total
purchases and total sales respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the percentages of purchases
and sales attributable to the Group’s largest supplier and largest
customer were 12.25% and 4.35% of the Group’s total purchases
and total sales respectively.

L E|EEHETRER Major Suppliers of the Company
RIS HEERRAELE
ek Proportion to
serial Annual Total
number HEFHEE Name of suppliers Purchase Amount Purchase
AEET) (%)
(RMB) (%)
1 WRERBHMEIRNBRAT Shandong Hualu-Hengsheng Chemical Co.,Ltd 139,107,784.76 12.25
2 Vinati Organics Limited Vinati Organics Limited 101,562,477.52 8.94
3 LES S THRABERAT Shandong Jinling Chemical Company Limited 48,759,937.72 429
4 LB EAARBE TERAR Hebei Chengxin Jiutian Pharmaceutical 36,226,396.28 3.19

Chemical Co., Ltd.

5 HFH L2 BR AR Wieifang Boli Chemical Co., Ltd 34,722,889.76 3.06
At Total 360,369,486.04 31.73
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AXFHEERRALKXER () Top Five Suppliers and Customers (Continued)
REEBHEFFENR Major Customers of the Company
HEE GFEENSRELH
3 ]
serial Proportion to
number EFR&R Name of customers Sales Amount  Annual Total Sales
ARET) (%)
(RMB) (%)
1 ZEENEREBRAR Perrigo Company 243,928,087.54 4.35
2 MEREBEBRRT Zibo Zhongsheng Medical Co., Ltd. 183,012,825.03 3.26
3 DASTECH INTERNATIONAL.INC. DASTECH INTERNATIONAL.INC. 139,750,298.06 2.49
4 FELREBRERRAR Qingdao Fengyuantang Pharmaceutical 124,788,836.77 2.23
Co., Ltd
5 Mitsubishi Corporation Mitsubishi Corporation 113,402,916.35 2.02
CH Total 804,882,963.75 14.35
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REMBARLEREE - HEXBERE
AR B ©

As far as the Directors are aware, save as Perrigo Company holding
49.9% equity interests in Zibo Xinhua-Perrigo Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company, which constitutes related party
relationships with the Company; and Shandong Hualu-Hengsheng
Chemical Co., Ltd is a subsidiary of Hualu Holdings Co., Ltd., the
ultimate controller of the Company, which Constitutes related party
relationships with the Company; None of the Directors and their
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules), or shareholders who own
more than 5% of the share capital of the Company have an interest in
any of the above customers or suppliers of the Group during the year.

Purchase, Sale and Redemption of the Company’s Listed
Securities

During the year ended 31 December 2019 neither the Company
nor its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.
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Others (Continued)
Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights in the Articles of
Association of the Company.

Pension Scheme Arrangements

The Group participates in the State Social Retirement and Pension
Insurance Scheme (the “Scheme”) and pays the insurance premium
in accordance with the particular regulation issued by the local
municipal government whereby it is required to make an annual
contribution of 16% of the total salaries and bonuses paid to staff.
In turn, the local municipal government undertakes to assume the
retirement benefit obligations of all existing and future retirees of the
Group. Premiums paid to the Scheme are listed in the profit and loss
statement as expenses. For the year ended 31 December 2019, the
total contribution of the Group to the Scheme was approximately
RMB72,720,000.

Registration and Management of Insiders

In 2010, the Board of the Company considered and approved the
Insiders Registration and Management System (1= B 4115 A ERE
EIEHIEZ), which has since been rigorously implemented. No cases
of non-compliance was reported during the year.

Social responsibility

Taking “protecting health and benefiting community” as its corporate
missions, the Company has made great efforts in fulfilling its social
responsibility in aspects such as saving lives, curing the sick and
product quality, protecting legitimate rights and interests of its
shareholders and creditors, employees, customers, suppliers and
other stakeholders, attaching great importance to environmental
protection and safety production, and actively participating in social
welfare undertakings.

In respect of energy saving and emission reduction, the Company
was honored the Advanced Enterprise in Energy Saving in Shandong
Province twice for persistently decreasing energy consumption. As to
environmental protection, the Company was the first pharmaceutical
enterprise in China to pass the ISO 14001 environmental
management system certification audit, and acquire Class A clean
production certificate in Shandong Province, making it a qualified
entity in terms of standardized management of hazardous waste in
Shandong Province.
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Social responsibility (Continued)

In accordance with trading principles of honesty and trustworthiness,
reciprocity and mutual benefit and legal and regulatory compliance,
the Company has maintained good relationships of cooperation with
suppliers and distributors to provide consumers with quality products
and services. While endeavor to achieve sustainable development,
the Company has strengthened strategic partnership with customers
through holding meetings with suppliers and customer seminars, thus
making mutual cooperation more efficient and harmonious and closer.

The Company strictly implemented the PRC Law on Prevention and
Control of Atmospheric Pollution ({fF 2 A R B AR5 RH875)),
the PRC Law on Prevention and Control of Water Pollution ({4 Z& A
RAMBIIKS5 5 787%)), the PRC Law on Prevention and Control
of Environmental Noise ({2 AR EFBIIRIER 5 24878%)), the
PRC Law on Cleaner Production ((FR# A R EFIEE B A ER)), the
Integrated Emission Standards for Air Pollutants ((ARSS 4R A B
AZAEY), the National Catalog of Hazardous Wastes ((EIZ /&% B2 4
#8%)) and other laws and regulations.

The Company values the growth and development of its employees
and has put more efforts in education and training for various talents.
As such, the Company is named as the talent training base for the
pharmaceutical industry in Shandong Province, one of the top 100
Chinese enterprises in education and China’s corporate training
demonstration base. The Company’s golden blue-collar training base
passed the review of the Human Resources and Social Security
Bureau of Shandong Province and was approved as the first prime
workstation for technicians of Zibo City.

In such major disasters or accidents of the nation as the “SARS”,
Wenchuan earthquake, “April 28th” Jiaoji Railway crash, Yushu
earthquake and especially Novel coronavirus pneumonia, the
Company had been prompt to make RMB5 million worth of medicinal
donations, thus putting into practice its corporate social responsibility
and commitment.

In future development process, the Company will, as always, be a
law-abiding operator, contribute strongly to community, and play an
active role in the sustainable development of the society.
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EITHMALE R EMER Performance of other social responsibilities
ARAE - R TRRESEHE -GS The Company, Zibo Xinhua-Perrigo Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., a
REEREER 7 MERE(ER)E holding subsidiary, and Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Group Co.,
RAF - IURFTESBCIERATEB Ltd. and ShanDong Xinhua Wanbo Chemical Co., Ltd. are on the
RSB REBPIAMRER S EA - List of Key Pollutant-Discharging Units announced by the Ministry of
Environmental Protection.
AREFLE TERRIRNATIN BiTRARY BRGNS
1] HeR A #ERBE HENAHER HHRE HyRE i wEmBHeE R
Implemented
Names of Key Number of Standards for Approved Total
Name of Company  Pollutants and Special ~ Discharge Discharge Distribution of Discharge Discharge of Total Amount of Amount of Excessive
or Subsidiary Types of Pollutants Mode Outlets Discharge Outlets Concentration Pollutants Discharge Discharge Discharge
Mﬁﬁﬁz%ﬂx Bk LEREE 8 BKEBHM-  RKEHHD2 —PH (2REE K LEREE) HE-LEREE -OH (EREE B
BA7 i i . REIM00ER/  REMS00ER/  BBIRS0E/  8363%E/F
1tIﬂ’<13'~f #oERRRM O ERMMER 5 ERSEMR GABE/
NER/Fe BER/#e 308/ - 5
Shandong Xinhua ~~ Wastewater: chemical  Continuous Two main Main wastewater outlet  No. 1factory: COD  Wastewater: COD No. 1factory: total ~ No. 1 factory: None
Pharmaceutical oxygen demand, Wastewater Wastewater of No. 1factory: No. ~ concentration less concentration less amount of COD 836.33 tons/
Company Limted ~ ammonia nitrogen. discharge outlets 13, Huagong Road, than 400 mg/L; than 500 mg/L; less than 500 tons/~ year of COD;
Hi-tech Industry ammonia nitrogen ammonia nitrogen year; total amount 75.27 tons/ year
Development Zone, concentration less concentration less of ammonia of ammonia
Zibo City. than 30 mg/L. than 45 mg/L. nitrogen less than nitrogen.
30 tons/year
LRFESERGE Bk (EFEE-8  WGEERN-  BKEERD2  CHREHKD:ER oK (5FEE Bk (LBFER) AR (EREE SR (BFEE B
BA7 fi- TEERGLIEE  BEN0ER/ REHSW0ER/  BEN00E/ 982‘5WE\/$ )
HRK000% fETEEM  FREMER £:8 R R840/ F
0zR/A 1257/ 1 - 400/ »
Shandong Xinhua ~~ Wastewater: chemical ~ Continuous Two main Main wastewater outlet  No. 2 factory: COD ~ Wastewater: COD No. 2 factory: total ~ No. 2 factory: 982.5  None
Pharmaceutical oxygen demand, wastewater Wwastewater of No. 2 factory: No. ~ concentration less concentration less amount of COD tons/year of
Company Limited ~ ammonia nitrogen. discharge outlets 229, Changguodong ~ than 400 mg/L; than 500 mg/L; less than 400 tons/ ~ GOD; 88.43 tons/
Road, East Chemical ~ ammonia nitrogen ammonia nitrogen year; total amount year of ammonia
Industrial Zone, concentration less concentration less of ammonia nitrogen.
Zhangdian District, than 30 mg/L. than 45 mg/L. nitrogen less than
Zibo City 40 tons/year
LRFESERGE BR:ERLAEN0L BRESMN- BEEHREE SR AR —AECHTREE  BR:FTRECE -SRETRETE  -0RERMAE E
BAd FPREL) 8 8% T80 BEIRER/  BIMOBE/L B)ROE/Fe MO388E/F-
e5 - RE(LD - BH VR THke FRe BUNGEMS BRI/
e it o W Fo
Shandong Xinhua ~~ Exhaust gas: volatile Exhaust gas There are a No. 1 factory, No. 2 No. 1 factory: NMHC ~ Exhaust gas: NMHC ~ No. 1 factory: total -~ No. 1 factory: 93.88  None
Pharmacedtical organic compound emission at large number factory concentration less ~ concentration less ~ amount of NMHC tons/ year of
Company Limited ~ (VOC] (calculated interval of exhaust than 80 mg/m?. than 120 mg/m*, concentration less VOC. 2.13tons/
according to outlets. than 80 tons/year. year of particulate
Non-methane Please refer total amount of matter.
hydrocarbons, to appendix of particulate matter
“MHC"), sulfur dioxide, the emission concentration less
nitrogen oxide, permit. than 1.8 tons

particulate matter.
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(=) HEfthid:R (1) 3. Others (Continued)

EITH M S & EER () Performance of other social responsibilities (Continued)

AREFLT TERRMRNATIN BiTRARY BRGNS

1] HeR #A HENBE HENAHER HHRE HyRE i wEmBHeE R

Implemented
Names of Key Number of Standards for Approved Total

Name of Company  Pollutants and Special  Discharge Discharge Distribution of Discharge Discharge of Total Amount of Amount of Excessive

or Subsidiary Types of Pollutants Mode Outlets Discharge Outlets Concentration Pollutants Discharge Discharge Discharge

URFERERAE &R BREERN( LA EREGAN . BRENCEE —AH AR OB ATRAE  BRFTRELR AW FTREE AR BRME &
RAR FRRQIE) - 8% WEH EEINS0ER/  BIMOBR/T BEINGE/  ##somE/

{diR¥:E=Hd/R %Eh aEE G Rk ZEKE AR CEMEE i CEkESE O CElEeS
uR Bt - BEIRGER/  BMS0ER/T O MRTE/ER B/FRELD
i)’ﬁ [Efm AR RELME EkMEEIMS 1558/F B
REIRO0ER/  BMM0ER/T O OB/FBRE 04/ %
M% g Ak BRMER  B0R0E/E:
BIOR8ER/UF  MRI0ZR/TH
x *

Shandong Xinhua ~ Exhaust gas: volatile Exhaust gas There are a No. 1 factory, No. 2 No. 2 factory: NMHC ~ Exhaust gas: NMHC ~ No. 2 factory: total -~ No. 2 factory: None
Pharmaceutical organic compound emission at large number factory concentration concentration amount of NMHC 138.91tons/year
Company Limited ~ (VOC) (calculated interval of exhaust less than 80 mg/ less than 120 mg/ concentration 0f VOC; 7.45

according to outlets. m®, sulfur dioxide m?, suffur dioxide less than 80 tons/ tons/year of
Non-methane Please refer concentration concentration year; total amount sulfur dioxide;
hydrocarbons, to appendix of less than 45 mg/ less than 50 mg/ of sulfur dioxide 15.5 tons/year of
“MHC"), sulfur dioxide, the emission m®, nitrogen oxide m®, nitrogen oxide concentration nitrogen oxide;
nitrogen oxide, permit, concentration less concentration less less than 7 tons/ 3.4tons/year of
particulate matter, than 90 mg/m?; than 100 mg/m*; year; total amount particulate matter.
particulate matter particulate matter of nitrogen oxide
concentration less concentration less concentration less
than 8 mg/m°. than 10 mg/m?. than 13 tons/year;
total amount of
particulate matter
concentration less
than 2 tons/year.

EEFE-ANEY Bk (ERES BkERER. Eiﬁ% M F/\mi LEREERR N BK:(EREE) ((EREBLEN  EFEASE/ &

SEREALA g 5008%/ 7« RERS0RR/  O5H/Fe o
714?17% bﬁwﬁ Fto
RER

Zbo Xinhua- Perrigo Wastewater: chemical  Continuous 1 Wastewater discharged ~ COD concentration ~ Wastewater: COD Total amount of COD 90 tons/year of None
Pharmaceutical oxygen demand wastewater into the sewage less than 500 mg/L. ~ concentration less less than 65 tons/ COD.

Co., Ltd. discharge treatment plant of than or equal to year.

the No. 1 factory 500 mg/L.
from the Department
of Environmental
Protection of
Shandong Xinhua
Pharmaceutical
Company Limited.
% BRCERMERY  EREESH- 4 BFER ERUARNEE)  ERBZUAEN  BRUAEMIN ERUARMGSS B
(VOCs) 18R/ 17 REIMM0EE/  2E/F- B/Ee
ke TRk

Zibo Xinhua-Perrigo  Exhaust gas: volatile Exhaust gas 4 Composite plant VOC concentration  Exhaust gas: VOC ~ Total amount of VOC 18,526 tons/year of ~ None
Pharmaceutical - organic compound emission at lessthan80mg/lL.  concentration less  lessthan2tons/  VOC.

Co, Lt (voc) intervel than120my/m3. ~ year.

100
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(=) HfthiF:R (1) 3. Others (Continued)

EITH M SR Ea1ER (8] Performance of other social responsibilities (Continued)

AREFLE TERRIRNATRN BiTRARY BRGNS

1] HeR A HHRBE HENAHER HHRE HyRE i wEmBHeE R

Implemented
Names of Key Number of Standards for Approved Total

Name of Company  Pollutants and Special  Discharge Discharge Distribution of Discharge Discharge of Total Amount of Amount of Excessive

or Subsidiary Types of Pollutants Mode Outlets Discharge Outlets Concentration Pollutants Discharge Discharge Discharge

TEEEGEH  BAEREE BT 1 BXEHHD t2zag(nz  (LEFEBU0E (B %ﬁ;mm/ EREEQ1736 &
ERAA 1) w/HERGT ®/FEA5Z 2 /588076

25/8% 7/ HEwe2 B/ ) aRaREy
(mex/HE  Z/HERME 078l E/Mé‘z’u@ F
flsozR/f)  7/FPHEY BR.08/F

PH(7.68)

Xinhua Wastewater Continuous 1 Main wastewater outlet  COD (125 mg/L; COD (400 mg/L); Total amount of COD  COD concentration ~ None
Pharmaceutical (chemical oxygen discharge ammonia nitrogen ammonia nitrogen 15.2 ton/year, (21.7366 tons/
(Shouguang) Co.,  demand, ammonia (3.7 mg/L) (25 mg/L) ammonia nftrogen year), ammonia
Ltd. Nitrogen,total total phosphate total phosphate 0.76 ton/year. nitrogen

phosphate, total (2.03mg/L) total (8mg/L) total total phosphate (0.76 tons).
nitrogen * PH) nitrogen (25.9mg/L)  nitrogen (70mg/L) 0.78 ton/year, total No approved
PH (7.68) PH (6-9) nitrogen less than amount for total
1.9 ton/year * phosphate and
total nitrogen

FEREERAR BRAROCELE.  BEER 13 BEE: o £RE2 —ELE(632R/ ZEMRGIER/T ZEKE4ME/  ZElE(M B

A7 A& FRREL fA-DkefrfE- &  UAKAELD FREEMI0  F AEkM636  B/FAEKN
%) RAREIE BRI @B2R/UR¥  ZR/UAKER W% (15.010,/5)%
fA PlREdeezs,/  REL00ER/ PReLElR
AR THK)

Xinhua Exhaust outlets (sufur ~ Discharge at 13 Pyrazolone: 2; Ziurea;  Sulfur dioxide (16.3  Sulfur dioxide (50mg/  Total amount of sulfur ~ Total amount of None
Pharmaceutical dioxide, nitrogen Interval 2; DK workshop: mg/m?); nitrogen m?; nitrogen oxide  dioxide 4.74 tons/ sulfur dioxide
(Shouguang) Co.,  oxide, NMHG, etc.). 7; chloropropiony! oxide (48 mg/m); (100 mg/m?); year; nitrogen oxide  (13.04 tons/year);

Ltd. chloride: 1; sulfuric NMHC (66 mg/m’) NMHC (120 mg/m®) ~ 6.316 tons/year. nitrogen oxide
acid: 1 (15.01 tons/year);
no approved
amount for
NMHC.
Mif&ﬁtﬂtlﬁ BREMA(CELR . BEUR 3 RE-FEIE-ME CEMEMM0E CELEGRR/U ZERR0GE/Fr ZEfE20E/ &
BA7 Cl, &) ENE —REC R/UARCAR  ARICSER/  CL000E/% F-CL00648/
B BE/URA & UAKEUST  H0.005E/% £ 50.0748/
(106x10475%/  %//M) &
)

Shandong Xinhua ~ Exhaust outlets (sufur  Discharge at 3 dimethyl sulfate 1, sulfur dioxide less sufur dioxide 50mg/ sulfur dioxide 0.9 sulfur dioxide None
Wanbo Chemical  dioxide, Cl,, ammonia)  Interval tetramethylguaniding ~ then 40 mg/m’, m’, Cl, 5mg/m?, tons/year, CL0.012 2,02 tons/year,

Industry Co., Ltd. 1,1, 8-diazabicyclo C\q2 less thaﬂ dmg/  ammonia 4.%g/h tong/year, ammonia  C1,0.054 tong/
(5.40) indec-T-ene m’, ammonia 0.005 tons/year yea, ammonia
7.06x10-4kgh 0.074 tons/year
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Others (Continued)

Construction and operation of pollution prevention & treatment
facilities

(1)

Waste water treatment

The Company, Xinhua-Perrigo and Shouguang have in place
respectively three, one and six sewage treatment facilities with
treatment capacity of 12,000 tons/day, 400 tons/day and
3,000 tons/day respectively, to fully meet the requirement of
consistently reaching the wastewater discharge standards.

The production wastewater produced by each production
workshop is first pretreated by specified facilities at the
workplaces: we separate, recycle and reuse organic
substances from waste water rich in organic substances
through methods like absorption and filtration, separation by
extraction and evaporative fractionation; recycle ammonia
nitrogen from wastewater rich in ammonia nitrogen through
stripping process, recycle inorganic salts from highly saline
wastewater by means of MVR and CWO. Then the production
wastewater after pretreatment is discharged into the production
wastewater collection tank (pool) of the workplaces, where the
wastewater will be monitored and sampled by the Company’s
environmental protection unit. If the sampled wastewater
reaches the internal control indicators of the Company, the
Company’s environmental management personnel will open
the production wastewater inlet valve to let the wastewater flow
towards and mix with domestic sewage and be transported
to sewage treatment systems of No. 1 factory, No. 2 factory
and General factory for biochemical treatment, after which the
wastewater will be discharged into the water purification plant
of Everbright Water (Zibo) Limited.

The two outlets of the Company were equipped with
standardised online monitoring facilities, which are operated
by authorized qualified entities. Online monitoring data of
wastewater discharge will be uploaded real-time to the
Environmental Automatic Monitoring and Control System of
Shandong Province and will be published and managed real-
time by the Environmental Protection Office of Shandong
Province.
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Report of The Board of Directors (continued)

Others (Continued)

Construction and operation of pollution prevention & treatment
facilities (Continued)

(1)

Waste water treatment (Continued)

The production wastewater generated by Xinhua-Perrigo was
firstly pretreated by special facilities in production processes:
wastewater with high content of organics realizes a separation
between organics and aqueous phase through evaporation
fractionation and other methods to recycle the organics;
Highsalt wastewater recovers inorganic salts through MVR
method. After flowing into the Company’s high concentration
wastewater pool, the pretreated production wastewater
then entered water-collecting well through special conveying
pipelines. After mixing with sanitary sewage, it then enters
the Company’s sewage treatment system for biochemical
treatment. After a qualified monitoring by the Company, it is
discharged into the sewage treatment plant of the No.1 factory
of the Company.

Production wastewater generated by production workshops
of Shouguang was firstly pretreated by special facilities in
production processes: COD and ammonia nitrogen are
removed from wastewater with high content of COD and
salt through high-temperature wet oxidation and salt is then
removed through MVR evaporation. Then the production
wastewater enters sewage treatment system. Wastewater
with high content of ammonia nitrogen and salt produces by-
products of desalination and ammonia-nitrogen reduction
through MVR evaporation. Pre-treated production wastewater
enters the gathering tank (pool) of each workshop separately.
After it meets Shouguang’s internal control target through
environmental monitoring and sampling of the company, the
sewage treatment center of Shouguang will open the inlet
valve of production wastewater to transport to its biochemical
wastewater treatment system and finally discharge into
Shouguang Huayuan Water Co., Ltd.

Shouguang has installed a standard online monitoring
facility at its main wastewater outlet and entrusted qualified
units to operate the facility. The online monitoring data of
wastewater discharge is uploaded to Weifang Environmental
Monitoring Center in real time and published regularly.
Weifang Environmental Protection Bureau is in charge of the
implementation of online real-time management.

Wanbo Chemical has established sewage storage facilities with
the storage capacity of 300m3, and has entered into a sewage
treatment agreement with Xinhua Pharmaceutical, allowing the
sewage of Wanbo Chemical to enter the treatment center of
Xinhua Pharmaceutical for treatment.
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Others (Continued)

Construction and operation of pollution prevention & treatment
facilities (Continued)

2

Waste gas control and treatment
We mainly apply source point control:

First, we have adopted “double pipe” technology to get rid
of foul smell of chemical raw materials arising from products
loading, unloading, and transporting of products.

Second, we use the closed exhaust elastic breathing bag
(referred to as breathing bag) technology to reduce the acid gas
and volatile organic gas emissions.

Third, we turn the exhaust in the reaction process into closed
circulation to prevent gas emissions.

Fourth, we have applied such technologies as carbon fiber
adsorption/resolving and condensation recovery to recycle
organic solvent in the exhaust gas.

Fifth, we use water absorption, alkali absorption or joint
absorption and other technologies to recover soluble medium
in the exhaust gas.

Sixth, we use photoelectric/photo-oxidative catalytic
purification, low-temperature plasma technologies to destroy
the molecular structure of organic gases in order to control
chemical odor and improve the surrounding environment.

Seventh, we use LDAR technology to monitor seven categories
of components including various kinds of containers and
pipes that can produce leakage points of VOC easily, and we
will repair leakage points where VOC leak exceeds a certain
concentration so as to control the pollution of dynamic or static
seal points to the environment.

Eighth, we use important exhaust gas treatment facilities like
VOC monitor and VOC monitor for factory boundary, to monitor
on real-time basis the chemical odor and the results of waste
gas treatment.

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED / 2019 ANNUAL REPORT
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Report of The Board of Directors (continued)

Others (Continued)

Construction and operation of pollution prevention & treatment
facilities (Continued)

3

Hazardous wastes treatment

The hazardous waste treatment of the Company: First, the
company has built three incineration facilities to dispose of
hazardous wastes by itself. Second, in accordance with the
requirements of the Procedures of Joint Management of
Hazardous Wastes Transfer in Zibo City (18T /& EE¥EE
B EEIE TERRF)), we commission qualified entities to
dispose of part of the hazardous waste to strictly implement
transfer manifest system and transfer plan approval system.

As required by the “Transfer Manifest Management Procedures
of Hazardous Waste in Zibo City (Shandong Province)”, Xinhua-
Perrigo strictly implements the transfer manifest system and
transfer plan approval system and transport hazardous waste
to qualified units for entrusted disposal.

The hazardous waste treatment of Shouguang: The first method
is building its own incineration facility to dispose of ketene dimer
residue by itself; the second method is that the company, in
accordance with the requirements for the storage and transfer
of hazardous waste, strictly implements the transfer manifest
system and transfer plan approval system and transports some
of its hazardous waste to qualified units for entrusted disposal.

Wanbo Chemical has standardized the construction of
hazardous waste warehouse as required to strengthen the
standardized management of hazardous waste. As required by
the “Transfer Manifest Management Procedures of Hazardous
Waste in Zibo City (Shandong Province)”, Wanbo Chemical
strictly implements the transfer manifest system and transfer
plan approval system and transports hazardous waste to
qualified units for entrusted disposal.

All construction projects of the Company and its subsidiaries
have passed environmental impact assessments and other
environmental administrative licenses.

The Company and its subsidiaries have formulated the
“Emergency Response Plan for Environmental Emergencies”,
which includes six parts: comprehensive emergency plan for
sudden environmental incidents, special emergency plan for fire
and explosion accidents, emergency plan for material leakage
accidents, special emergency plan for hazardous waste and
disposal plan for environmental emergency site.
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Construction and operation of pollution prevention & treatment
facilities (Continued)

(3) Hazardous wastes treatment (Continued)

The Company has separately formulated the “Self-monitoring
Plan of No. 1 Factory” and the “Selfmonitoring Plan of No. 2
Factory”. Xinhua-Perrigo, Shouguang and Wanbo Chemical
have formulated their respective “Self-monitoring Plan”.

The Company started to plan to establish its environment
management system in September 1999. The system passed
the environment management system certification of China
Certification Center in 2000, and passed the reassessment
and review of the environment management system in 2003,
2006, 2009, 2012, 2015 and 2017 respectively. In 2019, its
environment management system passed the certification of
two new- version systems of environment and quality.

The Company entrusted Shandong Jiayu Testing Technology
Co., Ltd., an independent third party, to conduct exhaust
emission test on its No. 1 factory and No. 2 factory, and they
were up to standard. Xinhua-Perrigo entrusted Shandong
Fangxin Environment Monitoring Company, an independent
third party, to conduct exhaust emission test of the Company,
and it was up to standard. Shouguang entrusted Shandong
Weike Testing Co., Ltd., an independent third party, to test the
exhaust outlets of workshops on a regular basis, and they were
up to standard. Wanbo Chemical has entrusted Shandong
Dingli Environmental Testing Co., Ltd. to regularly conduct
organized and unorganized exhaust gas testing, and they were
up to standard.

Establishment and implementation of the accountability
system for material errors in annual reports

In order to improve the Company’s standard operation level and
strengthen the truthfulness, accuracy, completeness and timeliness
of information disclosure, the Accountability System for Material
Errors in Annual Reports was considered and approved at the 10th
meeting of the sixth Board of Directors of the Company in 2011,
which has enhanced the accountability of the persons in charge of
information disclosure of annual reports and improved the quality and
transparency of the information disclosure of annual reports. During
the reporting period, the system was rigorously implemented and
there was no correction required of any material accounting errors,
supplement of material omissions or modification of profit alerts/
warnings.

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED / 2019 ANNUAL REPORT



(Z) HAbtHH ()
TERBREHEE

(1)

TERREBLER  BEREE
RTEEERERR  REER
TR AR HIE -
PR LR G R L EE 2 65T A
TE  BERNE B AETEE
B HAREE EEMBE
EEFE LIS REHEHE -
—HHFENTFERBEZRERY
AIBEH AR BIER —ENFE -

M | AR E S B
FARRR (T R R - R ET
ERBE  AREEGE
WE RO BF S - AT
FHER -

METERR  —RBER - B
HY A 2 ISR RRARAT AT 5T - AR AR
W AR RE AT~ HEUE B AR S BR e
WRalER - FRIRAEM - W5
T EEEESZRE RHZ -
BYE BHEREAILETE
1 FEMERR - W AERM
BMINIE  EBETRBERNT
SIHEBAB LN

JEL I : ARERE-—TRE
MEEFR R - S| ATIBEDH
AA - DERRTTAREOKE - &1L
MERRE  KROHEEHEN M
EHE WIEEHmEEH
RS TEKE  BELERK
Ao REBEMMSHFS

EmEERR  ZnEH LT
% EFEBER - BEE—X
FITTISEARM TR - iS(EREED
XHBRERGENES - R
EREEE  misET - BRE
EZTEBRZTEREZE
EmBERTRAE-—FTHENEA

G o
N

LR B— ARE/EY
BRI RIS ERE - BEREN R
BRRHIER: H- - BEERHARE
S 800 BB A dn H b T 1R ER AR
K ORAEGRMBHESEN K
= PERAIFTFEERSFE
BER-—ESHMENME  RA
ERAAMSENNEEME -
TEBCERBRNGR - AR
RO FHEER -

EZTEHE (B

Report of The Board of Directors (continued)

Others (Continued)

Principal Risks and Response Measures

(1)

Risks associated with industry policy changes: The
pharmaceutical industry is highly regulated and China is
deepening the reform of healthcare system with relevant
policies and regulations gradually being formulated and
improved. The introduction of policies may have impact on the
research and development, production and sales of the Group
to various extent, for example, factors including the adjustments
to the Medical Insurance Catalogue, Consistency Evaluation
and with quantity purchase, which may have certain impact on
the Group.

Response measures: The Group will pay close attention to and
study relevant industry policies to catch up with the changing
trends of the industry timely, in order to regulate its production
and management, strengthen its core competitiveness and
actively respond to industry policy changes.

Risks associated with new drug research and development:
Generally speaking, the development of drugs has to undergo
preclinical studies, clinical registry application, clinical trials
approval, clinical trials, production registration filing, on-
site assessment, production approval, etc., which involve
many processes and lengthy period of time, therefore the
approvals are uncertain and there is a risk in the research and
development. Also, it is uncertain whether effective sales could
be established in the market after the product is successfully
developed.

Response measures: The Group will further optimise the
innovative R&D system by introducing and cultivating high-end
talents, continuously improving the R&D level, optimising the
R&D structure with the focus placed on promoting the research
and development of key products under research. Meanwhile,
the Group will strengthen the secondary development of key
products, improve the research level and reduce production
costs, thereby enhancing the competitiveness of products.

Risk associated with lower price: After the drug product has
been approved for the launch, it has to go through medical
insurance approval and tendering to gain market access, which
makes the pharmaceutical enterprises face greater downward
pressure on drug prices. Meanwhile, due to the industry
policies such as macroeconomics, market competition, medical
insurance budget, the drugs may be exposed to the risk of a
price drop.

Response measures: Firstly, the Group will pay close attention
to the development of the tenders to swiftly response and
adjust the tender plan. Secondly, the Group will conduct post-
marketing clinical studies on some of the key products to
strengthen their market competitiveness. Thirdly, the Group
will continue to innovate and develop drugs of urgent clinical
need with high added value, further develop the products under
production with market potential, and optimise the layout of
products to ensure the substantiality of the Company.
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3.

Others (Continued)

Principal Risks and Response Measures (Continued)

)

Risk associated with supply and price fluctuation of raw
materials: Chemical raw materials, supplemental materials,
and packaging materials have been affected by various factors
such as macroeconomics, monetary policy, environmental
management, natural disasters, etc., which may lead to
restrained resource supply or significant fluctuation in the
prices, and affect the profitability of the Group to a certain
extent.

Response measures: On the one hand, the Group will
strengthen monitoring and analysis of the market, rationally
arrange inventory and procurement cycle to reduce risks; on
the other hand, the Group will make proactive efforts to realise
technology breakthroughs and effective cost reduction.

Environmental risks

A certain amount of sewage, wasted gas and wasted residue
will be generated during the production of API. With the
improvement of environmental protection supervision by
national and local environmental protection authorities and the
enhancement of social environmental protection awareness, the
environmental protection requirements for APl manufacturers
are becoming higher, and the cost of environmental protection
is continuously increasing. Many pharmaceutical companies are
even faced with the problems of production suspension and
production limit.

Response measures: The Group has always been in strict
compliance with the requirements of national environmental
policies and regulations, and will continue to increase
investment in environmental protection and promote the
upgrading and transformation of environmental protection
facilities. The Group will keep carrying out safety training and
education, strengthen internal control standards, strengthen
the monitoring of key sewage discharge points, reduce
environmental risks, and match the emissions policy.
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Report of The Board of Directors (continued)

3. Others (Continued)
Related Transactions

Significant related transactions carried out in the normal course of the
Group’s business are summarized as follows:

20195 20184
5H Item 2019 2018
ARYT AR
RMB RMB

HEEZERAFREMEATR With direct holding company and its subsidiaries
~BRTRE — Payment of annual trademark licence fee 9,433,962.00 9,433,962.00
— R EM — Purchase of raw materials 139,107,784.76  193,468,163.87

HEERE With affiliated business

—EBREME — Purchase of raw materials 17,602,695.71 13,133,615.20

—HEH I REHST

— Sale of power and provision of services

BRASHERAEESH Total transaction matters approved by
shareholders’ meetings

HEERERATREREAT With direct holding company and its subsidiaries
—FEREER — Purchase of preparations products
—BEX8H% — Receipt of services
— B TR e R 5% — Sale of chemical raw materials and bulk drugs
—HEB N RRELE ~ Sale of power and provision of services
— S RHERFE — Payment of borrowing interest

&t Total

HERBARRS With non-holding companies
—HELBRRE — Sale of chemical raw materials

|t Total

#ewt Grand total

11,945,727.28

11,495,757.07

178,090,169.75

227,5631,498.14

4,536,058.81
2,837,570.95
1,145,221.25

84,287.21
4,380,000.00

4,380,000.00

12,983,138.22

4,380,000.00

243,928,087.54

211,394,420.14

243,928,087.54

211,394,420.14

435,001,395.51

443,305,918.28

2019F EA QR @BAHHE TG
IWRHFEEEIC THER QA%
B RPEMB AR B FIEE
73% ' BRI —EHEESH  AE
BB mEETBHAE - 2018F
EAEEREEB LT IRMARE
64,940,245.657C * HESE(LITE N
AR#2 561,350.357T  ABIE(LTIR
HETEAREE104,755.627T ©

In 2019, the Company purchased 33% of the equity of Wanbo
Chemical. After the transaction, the proportion of shareholding
was 73%, which constituted business combination under common
control. Thus the Group shall made retrospective adjustments to the
financial statements. In 2018, the Group purchased chemical raw
materials from Wanbo Chemical in the amount of RMB64,940,245.65,
sold power to Wanbo Chemical in the amount of RMB2,561,350.35,
and provided Wanbo Chemical with labour service in the amount of
RMB104,755.62.
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Related Transactions (Continued)

The Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors)
confirm that the above transactions were carried out in the ordinary
and usual course of the Group’s business and on normal commercial
terms. The aggregate amount of the above transactions for each of
the years 2018 and 2019 did not exceed the annual cap approved in
the general meetings of the Company.

Connected transactions subject to annual reporting
requirement under the Listing Rules

(1)  Continuing Connected Transactions

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with the Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has pursuant to Rule14A.56 of the Listing
Rules issued a letter without qualifications containing its conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the
Group. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided to the SEHK.

(1) On 29 October 2015, the Company and Shandong Xinhua
Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd., being the Company’s previous
controlling shareholder, (“SXPGC”) entered into an agreement
in relation to the Company and/or its subsidiaries selling water,
power and steam and by-products of production processes
to and procuring accessories for repairing and maintaining
equipment, packaging services and materials and chemicals
raw materials from SXPGC and/or its subsidiaries for a period
of three years from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2018 (the
“SXPGC Agreement”). The Company and SXPGC and HHC
entered into an agreement on 22 October 2018 for renewing
the Agreement which was entered into on 29 October 2015.
(the “Renewed Agreement”) The Renewed Agreement will
last for a period of another three years commencing from
1 January 2019 to 31 December 2021. In relation to the
Renewed Agreement, the annual cap for the year 2019 is
RMB140,000,000. The actual amount incurred in 2019 was
approximately RMB29,548,422.99. Currently, SXPGC is
a wholly-owned subsidiary of HHC. HHC holds and owns
32.94% of the total issued share capital of the Company and is
currently the largest shareholder and a substantial shareholder
of the Company. HHC is a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules. SXPGC, being an associate of HHC (as
defined under the Listing Rules) is also a connected person of
the Company. As a result, the transactions under the SXPGC
Agreement and the Renewed Agreement constitute continuing
connected transactions. The same has been disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 29 October 2015 and 22
October 2018.
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Report of The Board of Directors (continued)

Others (Continued)

Connected transactions subject to annual reporting
requirement under the Listing Rules (Continued)

1.

@

Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

On 7 December 1996, SXPGC, the previous controlling
shareholder of the Company, granted the Company the
exclusive right to use the Trademark (the “Trademark Licence
Agreement”) for its existing and future products in and outside
the PRC at an initial annual fee of RMB600,000, increasing
at the rate of an additional RMB100,000 per year until the
annual fee reaches the cap of RMB1,100,000. Thereafter, the
annual fee shall remain at the level of RMB1,100,000 until the
agreement is terminated. On 23 March 2012, the Company
and SXPGC entered into the Supplemental Trademark Licence
Agreement which amends and supplements the Trademark
Licence Agreement. Pursuant to the Supplemental Trademark
Licence Agreement, the annual licence fee for the Company
to use the Trademark is RMB10,000,000 for the period
between 1 April 2012 to 31 December 2014. Other terms of
the Trademark Licence Agreement remained unchanged. On
27 October 2014, the Company and SXPGC entered into the
2014 Supplemental Trademark Licence Agreement. Pursuant
to the 2014 Supplemental Trademark Licence Agreement,
the annual licence fees payable by the Company for using the
Trademark are RMB10,000,000 for each of 2015, 2016 and
2017 and the annual licence fees shall be paid by the Company
to SXPGC on or before 30 June of each of 2015, 2016 and
2017. Other terms of the Trademark Licence Agreement
remain unchanged. The Company and SXPGC entered into a
supplemental agreement on 30 October 2017 for extending the
use of the trademark under the Trademark Licence Agreement.
Save for the trademark fee payable on or before 30 June 2018,
2019 and 2020, other terms of the abovementioned trademark
licensing arrangements remain unchanged. The Company paid
the 2019 annual fee of RMB10,000,000 in accordance with
the Supplemental Trademark Licence Agreement. Currently,
SXPGC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of HHC. HHC holds
32.94% of the total issued share capital of the Company
and is the largest shareholder and a substantial shareholder
of the Company. Accordingly, SXPGC, being an associate
of HHC, is a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules. Therefore, the transactions contemplated under
the Trademark Licence Agreement constitute continuing
connected transactions. In relation to the above continuing
connected transaction, the Company issued announcements
on 28 October 2009, 23 March 2012, 27 October 2014 and 30
October 2017.
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Report of The Board of Directors (continued)
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Others (Continued)

Connected transactions subject to annual reporting
requirement under the Listing Rules (Continued)

1.

®)

Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

On 29 October 2015, the Company and Shandong Hualu-
Hengsheng Chemical Co., Ltd (“Hualu Hengsheng”) entered
into an agreement pursuant to which the Company and/or its
subsidiaries purchase certain chemical products from Hualu
Hengsheng and/or its subsidiaries (the “Hualu Hengsheng
Agreement”). The Hualu Hengsheng Agreement is for a
term commencing from the date when approval thereof has
been obtained both at the extraordinary general meeting of
the Company and at Hualu Hengsheng’s board meeting (or
shareholders’ meeting) and ending on 31 December 2018. The
Hualu Hengsheng Agreement is terminable by either party with
a three months’ prior written notice. An agreement to increase
the annual cap for the year 2018 was signed on 19 April 2018.
The Company and Hualu Hengsheng entered into an agreement
on 22 October 2018 for renewing the Hualu Hengsheng
Agreement which was entered into on 29 October 2015. The
renewed Hualu Hengsheng Agreement will last for a period of
another three years commencing from 1 January 2019 to 31
December 2021. The annual cap for the Hualu Hengsheng
Agreement for 2019 is increased to RMB310,000,000. The
actual amount incurred in 2019 under the Hualu Hengsheng
Agreement was RMB139,107,784.76. HHC holds 100% equity
interest of Shandong Hualu Hengsheng Group Company
Limited. Shandong Hualu Hengsheng Group Company
Limited holds 32.19% of the total issued share capital of Hualu
Hengsheng and is the largest shareholder thereof. HHC holds
32.94% of the total issued share capital of the Company
and is the largest shareholder and a substantial shareholder
of the Company. Accordingly, Hualu Hengsheng, being an
associate of HHC, is a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules and the transactions contemplated
under the Hualu Hengsheng Agreement constitute continuing
connected transactions. The same has been disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 20 April 2018 and 22
October 2018.
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Report of The Board of Directors (continued)

(=) H iR (48) 3. Others (Continued)
FRtam SR RER SR Confirmation from the auditors in respect of the above
connected transactions
RARKFEMEARE FlliFERE The auditors of the Company have examined the above continuing
X5 WIRE(EB ETRADFE14A.56 connected transactions, and provided a letter to the Board under
BRESgRMHERLT TIREHE Rule 14A.56 of Hong Kong Listing Rules stating that:
PK :
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o The auditors did not notice any matter which caused them to
believe that the above transactions had not been approved by
the Board of the Company;

o In respect of transactions for provision of goods or services by
the Group, the auditors did not notice any matter which caused
them to believe that the above transactions had not been
conducted in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group;

o The auditors did not notice any matter which caused them to
believe that the above transactions had not been conducted
in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions; and

o The auditors did not notice any matter which caused them to
believe that the amounts of such transactions had exceeded
the Group’s annual cap of transactions for the year ended
31 December 2019. The disclosed related party transactions
with associates in the auditors’ report were not continuing
connected transactions or connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. All the transactions mentioned
in this section were connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions as defined by Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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Report of The Board of Directors (continued)
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3.

Others (Continued)

2.

Connected Transactions

On 20 December 2018, for the purposes of further
enhancement of competitiveness and reducing continuing
connected transactions, the Company entered into an equity
transfer agreement with SXPGC, the Company’s previous
controlling shareholder, to acquire 30% equity interest of
Cansheng Pharmaceutical (Zibo) Co., LTD (previously known as
Sinochem DSM Pharmaceuticals (Zibo) Co., LTD. ) with a listing
price of RMB63,030,660. On 20 February 2019, the above
transaction was considered and approved at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company. The above transaction was
officially completed and took effect on 25 February 2019.

On 11 October 2019, for the purposes of resources
consolidation and further enhancement of competitiveness,
the Company entered into an equity transfer agreement with
Hualu Holdings Co., Ltd., being the Company’s controlling
shareholder, to acquire 33% equity interest of Wanbo Chemical
with a listing price of RMB19,441,686.

Please refer to relevant announcements dated 18 September
2019, 20 December 2018 and 11 October 2019 available at the
website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (www.
hkexnews.hk) as well as the circular dated 28 January 2019 for
details of the above-mentioned connected transactions.

The Directors (including the independent non-executive
Directors) confirmed that the abovementioned transactions
were carried out in the ordinary and usual course of the
Group’s business and on normal commercial terms, according
to the corresponding agreement of the relevant transaction,
and that the terms are fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the shareholders of the Company as a whole. The aggregate
amounts of the above transactions during the reporting period
did not exceed the respective annual caps approved by the
shareholders of the Company. The Company has conducted a
review of its continuing connected transactions and connected
transactions and confirmed that all such transactions had
complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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(=) HiE:HR (&) 3. Others (Continued)

2  HEXSH(E) 2. Connected Transactions (Continued)
B Auditors
RABRAEERFERB(PEIDE The accounts of the Company and the Group for this year prepared
S EADRENRE EREKPNE in accordance with PRC accounting standards have been audited by
AT RN B AS AT (R B & 5t A) i o ShineWing Certified Public Accountants (certified public accountants
in the PRC).

AT 20204 B FHAI AN A F2019 The Company intends to re-appoint ShineWing Certified Public
FEBEFRRAS FRFEEREKFA Accountants as auditors of the Company for the year 2020 at the
R BB AR QT 2020F EE T 2019 annual general meeting to be held in 2020.
o

FERED By order of the Board

EFER Chairman

RICE Zhang Daiming

el B el 1E Zibo, Shandong Province, PRC

202093 A20H 20 March 2020
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To All Shareholders:

In 2019, all members of the supervisory committee of the Company have
performed their duties in protecting the interests of the Company and its
shareholders in accordance with the requirements of the Company Law of
the PRC, the Company’s articles of association (the “Articles of Association”)
and the relevant PRC laws and regulations in an active, diligent and faithful
manner.

The Supervisory Committee has convened five meetings during the
reporting period:

1.

On 22 March 2019, the sixth meeting of the Ninth Supervisory
Committee was convened at the Company’s office, in which the
following resolutions were passed:

(1)  To consider and approve the report of the Supervisory
Committee for the year 2018;

(2) To consider and approve the annual report and results
announcement of 2018;

(8)  To consider and approve the audited financial report of 2018;
(4)  To consider and approve the resolution about writing off and
provision of assets impairment allowance of 2018;

(5) To consider and approve the resolution about related
transactions of 2018;

(6)  To consider and approve the self-assessment report of internal
control of 2018.

On 23 April 2019, the seventh meeting of the Ninth Supervisory

Committee was convened at the Company’s office, in which the

following resolutions were passed:

(1) To consider and approve the first quarterly report of 2019;

(2)  To consider and approve the resolution on the changes in
accounting policies;

On 19 August 2019, the eighth meeting of the Ninth Supervisory

Committee was convened at the Company’s office, in which the

following resolutions were passed:

(1) To consider and approve the interim report of 2019;

(2)  To consider and approve the resolution on the changes in
accounting policies;

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED / 2019 ANNUAL REPORT
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EEERE (A
Report of the Supervisory Committee (continued)

4, On 18 September 2019, the Company convened the first
extraordinary meeting 2019 of the ninth session of the Supervisory
Committee by written resolution, to approve the resolution about
related transactions of 33% equity interest of Shandong Xinhua
Wanbo Chemical Industry Co., Ltd..

5. On 28 October 2019, the ninth meeting of the Ninth Supervisory
Committee was convened at the Company’s office to approve the
third quarterly report of 2019.

Members of the Supervisory Committee attended the Board meetings of
the Company and exercised effective supervision as to whether business
decisions made by the Board of Directors were in compliance with the
laws and regulations of the PRC and the Articles of Association, and in
line with the development of the Company and also in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company. The Supervisory Committee considered that
the Board of Directors exercised its powers in accordance with the law.

In the opinion of the Supervisory Committee, the related transactions that
were conducted during the year were fair and reasonable.

The Supervisory Committee has carried out its duties diligently. The
Supervisory Committee has carefully reviewed the accounts and the Report
of the Directors to be submitted by the Board of Directors to the 2019
annual general meeting and has not found anything contained therein to
be questionable. In the opinion of the Supervisory Committee, the financial
report for the year 2019 reflects the true financial position and results of the
Company.

There were no major litigation matters in this year.
During the year, the Company maintained effective internal control over

financial reporting in all material respects in accordance with the Basic
Standards for Corporate Internal Control and other relevant provisions.

By order of the Supervisory Committee
Chairman of Supervisory Committee

Li Tianzhong

Zibo, Shandong Province, PRC

20 March 2020
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IMPORTANT ISSUES
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The Group has no material litigation or arbitration in which it was
involved or material litigation or arbitration which was pending or
threatened against the Group during the reporting period.

On 25 February 2019, the Company acquired 30% equity interest
of Centrient Pharmaceutical (Zibo) Co., LTD. with a listing price of
RMB63,030,660. On 11 October 2019, the Company acquired 33%
equity interest of Shandong Xinhua Wanbo Chemical Industry Co.,
Ltd. with a listing price of RMB19,441,686 and completed the change
registration.

Apart from the above transactions, the Group did not have any
material investment, acquisitions or any disposal of assets during the
reporting period.

In the reporting period, there was no trust or subcontracting of assets
between the Company and other companies.The lease of assets
between the Company and other companies is listed in item 13 and
10 under endnote VI to the Financial Statements.

During the reporting period, there was no significant guarantee and
undischarged significant guarantee made by the Company.

During the reporting period, there had been no investment made in
wealth management products by the Company.

During the reporting period, the Company, its directors and senior
management had not been subjected to the disciplinary measures of
regulatory authorities.

Disclosure of undertakings by the Company or its shareholders
holding more than 5% shares of the Company: Nil.

Undertakings made by shareholders when refinancing:

(1) The first phase of the Employee Stock Ownership Scheme of
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited undertook
that no transfer would be made within 36 months from the date
of listing of new shares issued in the non-public issuance of
Shares of the Company.

(2)  Shandong Ju Ying Industrial Fund Partnership (Limited
Partnership) undertook that no transfer would be made within
36 months from the date of listing of new shares issued in the
non-public issuance of Shares of the Company.

Connected transactions are as set out in endnote Xl to the Financial
Statements in this report.
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Important Issues (continued)

Auditors

The auditors of the Company and their remuneration are set out in the
section headed “Auditors’ remuneration” disclosed in the “Corporate
Governance and Internal Control Report”.

FBAHM EmARREERARET) 11, Information about shareholding in other listed companies (RMB)
BENFREE
E5RE BHER MRRERE  EEROFRMELA HXIREE REUER #aEn
Change of
Initial Proportion of Book value as Profit/loss shareholder’s
investment equity interest at the end of during this equity during
Stock Code  Stock Short Name amount in investee this period period this period
601601 PEAR
China Pacific Insurance 7,000,000.00 0.06% 189,200,000.00 5,000,000.00 39,992,500.00
601328 LB
BankComm 14,225,318.00 0.01% 46,274,096.00 2,465,760.00 (1,117,811.20)
st
Total 21,225,318.00 235,474,096.00 7,465,760.00 38,874,688.80
MEEEEFAN - BB - %S 12.  There was no activity about reception of research, communication or
L= interviews during the reporting period.
2018 F AN ZHtE BN T 2 E R 15D 13.  The progress of the 2018 A Share Option Incentive Plan

201812 A28 H AR A]2018F F —
FeRs IR A S « 20185 XAHX*E%‘J
fREARE « 20184F 5 — )XHAXLBRIILER
AEEH DB T2018FARMRE HME Y
BETE - AEARRIENEEEZ2018
FHEURGREEBETEIA2018F12 A
28AAETH  MFEIEMEMN1858H
B SR T1,6258 ) IRZE=EIRE - 2019
F1A9HARIEEBEEBHERT: A
2019-02€EF A 712018 AR NG Z Ef g
EET B TR TRAIRAE)

ZETBRME A B E R MR 14.

RMFE.38

WERBAGREFAIEEE(EI83% 15.

et - AR BB RAISTE EA0%H
KEINET73% MM - FERKR —ZHI TR
BBt

On 28 December 2018, the 2018 first extraordinary general meeting,
the 2018 second class meeting of the shareholders of A shares and
the 2018 second class meeting of the shareholders of H shares
considered and approved the 2018 A Share Option Incentive Plan;
on the same day, the ninth session of the Board and the 2018 eighth
extraordinary meeting of the Company determined 28 December
2018 as the grant date, granting 16.25 million share options to the
qualified 185 incentive objects. On 9 January 2019, the Company
published the Announcement on Completion of Registration of Grant
of 2018 A Share Option Incentive Plan of the Company numbered
2019-02 on the website of CNINFO.

For details of significant accounting policies and changes in
accounting estimation, please refer to Note 38 of the financial
statements.

During the reporting period, the Company purchased 33% of the
equity of Wanbo Chemical. After the transaction, the shareholding
of the Company increased from 40% to 73%, which constituted
business combination under common control.
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2019 % 1 B 1 BZE 2019 & 12 B 31 B | From January 1, 2019 to December 31, 2019
(RELEE(Y L EREFEREERHER AT | Prepared by: Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

(RESMRMERRFBIE AL - WUARBTIIR)

(Monetary unit for the notes to these Financial Statements is RMB unless otherwise stated)

Tl &

Auditor’s Report

feikpie

Sh[ new[nﬁ ShineWing

1ERPFDITITES AT | RS e | BRI +86(010)6554 2288

g ALK FAREY S telephone: +86(010)6554 2288

9/F, Block A, Fu Hua Mansion,
No. 8, Chaoyangmen Beidajie,

Dongcheng District, Beijing, fEF - +86(010)6554 7190
certified public accountants | 100027 PR.China facsimile: +86(010)6554 7190

XYZH/2020JNA50086 XYZH/2020JNA50086
WWRHFERERBERAT MR : To all the shareholders of Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Co.,

Ltd.
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SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED

We have audited the financial statements of Shandong Xinhua
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as “Xinhua
Pharmaceutical”), which comprise the consolidated and the parent
company’s balance sheet as at 31 December 2019, the consolidated
and the parent company’s income statement, the consolidated and
the parent company’s cash flow statement and the consolidated
and the parent company’s statement of changes in shareholders’
equity for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial
statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly,
in all material respects, the consolidated and the parent company’s
financial position as at 31 December 2019, the consolidated and
the parent company’s results of operations and cash flows for the
year then ended of Xinhua Pharmaceutical in accordance with the
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises (ASBE).

We conducted our audit in accordance with China Standards on
Auditing for Chinese Certified Public Accountants. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section
of our report. We are independent from Xinhua Pharmaceutical in
accordance with the Code of Ethics for Chinese Certified Public
Accountants, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
of the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit.
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As of December 31 2019,
as stated in “Note VI.2”7 of
Xinhua Pharmaceutical’s
consolidated financial
statements, the book balance
of Xinhua Pharmaceutical’s
accounts receivable was
RMB367,788,200.00 and
the provision of bad debts
was RMB58,480,700.00.
The assessment by Xinhua
pharmaceutical’s management
about Expected Credit Losses
(ECL) of accounts receivable
is relatively complicated. The
management is required to
assess and assume whether
credit impairment occurs in
accounts receivable. Given
that the amount of bad debt
provision has a significant impact
on the financial statements
as a whole which involves the
management estimation and
judgements on the future cash
flows, accordingly, we consider
the bad debt provisions of
accounts receivable to be a key
audit matter.
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Auditor’s Report (continued)

Key audit matters are those matters that we consider, in our
professional judgements, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as
a whole and, in forming our audit opinion thereon, and we do not
express a separate opinion on these matters.

1. Bad-debt provision for accounts receivable

Frt ey fEL

How the matter was addressed in the audit

BT EEEFOT ¢

We mainly performed the following audit procedures:

S g e 2 B (5 P ISR N 30 P R BR S B TR AR A N B4 I O _R R T AN B 7 T
BRUEETRHEFDAIR

To understand Xinhua Pharmaceutical’s credit policy, evaluate and
assesse the effectiveness of the design and implementation on the
internal control related to the managing of accounts receivable of
Xinhua Pharmaceutical;

BPIBIR T R E R SR B ARG E IR MG RE A ENEL ERAER
RERBUE & BBMRRNSIRNE - M aTEE R B S YRR E AR
B e AR B & ER M

To review the reasonableness of empirical data and key hypothesis
used in the calculation of historical credit loss by Xinhua
pharmaceutical’s management, thereby assessing the rationality of
the management’s assessment and identification of credit risk for
accounts receivable;

BEGTEERERBRRRRERBRRE - i 7B EHRHER
BERRRRAAERIE - SRS RUCRTEREGNIREKIERS
FAHEE BN EERHES S DL ;

To obtain the expected credit loss model of accounts receivable of
Xinhua Pharmaceutical, check the management’s assumptions and
calculations of expected credit losses, analyze and check whether
the accrual basis of bad debts provision for accounts receivable is
adequate and reasonable, and recalculate whether the amount of bad
debts was accurately accrued;

IR EE R LRI BR KA BRI R PS5 - W TIRUBR R K
BIEFF RARE R MBI - FHERYARTUEIREBHEN IR N
To evaluate the reasonableness of the provisions for bad debt of
accounts receivable by analyzing aging and customer credit situation
of Xinhua Pharmaceutical’s accounts receivable, perform the
procedures such as arranging confirmation for accounts receivables,
and inspect the payments received subsequent to the cut-off date of
the period; and

AT EE R ST IR [ W MR TR R RN SR B R BE
WIS P IR BESSRE °

To assess the appropriateness of the accounting treatment on the
bad debt provision of accounts receivables made by the management
of Xinhua Pharmaceutical and consider whether the presentation
and disclosures of related information in the financial statements are
appropriate.
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Auditor’s Report (continued)
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Key Audit Matter
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As of December 31, 2019, as
stated in Note VI.6 of Xinhua
Pharmaceutical’s consolidated
financial statements, the book
balance of inventories was
RMB1,217,354,300.00 and the
accrued provision for inventories
was RMB87,011,500.00. On the
balance sheet date, inventory was
measured by the lower of cost and
net realizable value, whether the
accrued provision of inventories was
sufficient should have a significant
impact on the financial statements.
Furthermore, the determination
of net realizable value required
management to make judgements
and estimations according to various
factors such as the purpose of
inventory- holding, estimated selling
price and cost of sales. Due to
the significant amount of inventory
and since the determination of net
realizable value required significant
judgement of management, we
consider the provision for inventory
to be a key audit matter.

2. Provision for inventory

ErtrpEER

How the matter was addressed in the audit

BN THEREEFAT

We mainly performed the following audit procedures:

—  ENEREE EREEERE A e R BB THET T AT - WAIGAE
BRI E T AL
To assess the design and operation of the internal controls related to the
provision of Xinhua Pharmaceutical’s inventories and test the operational
effectiveness of the relevant internal control;

-  HNEREEEERER  REFENEE  MARERBRBEER
To carry out the observation of inventory stocktaking, check the quant|t|es,
conditions and validity period of the inventories;

- %é%ﬁ%%ﬁ“%@*~§ﬁ%ﬁ@%’%@%@§mﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%
% BERBFEAENBIE
To perform an analytical review of the inventory with a longer storage age
and check whether this is near the validity period, having regard to the age of
Xinhua Pharmaceutical’s inventory and the validity period of products;

- HEFHENETER REAEVERFENRANESEE  BHE
BERRNBEEMAEY  AHESFERENRR :
For marketable finished goods, to inspect the reasonableness of the estimated
selling price in calculating the net realizable value, the estimated cost-of-sales
ratio and the tax rate, to make judgements on the risk of inventory provision;

- H¥5 %T%%?Kﬁfﬁfﬁmﬁﬁﬂ EAMEL S U R R
EmiEERHESER - HTEFNSEME
To analyze the reasonableness of storage age of raw materials with
significant closing balance and longer storage age, having regard to Xinhua
Pharmaceutical’s production and sales conditions of the corresponding
products;

-  ERNERETEREEGHER  ATFERENR - oMEEHREER
AHERERED
To obtain the work sheets of provision of inventories for Xinhua
Pharmaceutical, carry out tests on the provision of inventories, and analyze
whether the accrual of the provision of inventories is sufficient; and

-  AHMEEREEREUFEREERN SRR RARESENBRET
HFBRARERESIRE
To evaluate whether the management’s accounting treatment of the provision
of inventories and the presentation and disclosure of related information in
financial statements are appropriate.

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED 2019 ANNUAL REPORT



FEEEIRE (TR EIER)HH
iEEAE - Efif{s B8 iEHER
2019F FEHREFREMNEE - BEFE
RIS RR MBI TR RS o

BAEMBRRERNETERTRE
HifE8 BRI THEMEEERE
ATz 2R ZERE 4

BERPIEHBRERNET - RFINE
ERMEBEMESR - FUBET - ZE
HibfE 828 BB HR KB MEE
BETEEINBERFEERT Bk
FEUFFHEEREER °

ERBMBEATHIIE - WREMETE
HiEBFEEANER  RAAEERS
ZEE - fEEH 0 BAEEAEETR

B -

EEERRRRERGTENNRER
ST - ﬁﬁﬁ DR AR
FF BITAMG R LR AERES] - A
BRI FERR LR EREHN
EN - E

ERETBERRE - BEERENEH
FRBENFREERT - RERSERL
SHEEANEREQUER) - WERREL
ERR - BRIEBEEASBFENER
B RPBARIEEMIRERRE o

REEABEEENERENMBREER

1% o

2019 % 1 B 1 HZE 2019 % 12 B 31 B | From January 1, 2019 to December 31, 2019

¥ LEREERERHERAT | Prepared by: Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

(REA R ERR MRS BRI RSN - UARBTTIIR)

(Monetary unit for the notes to these Financial Statements is RMB unless otherwise stated)
FEarwE ()

Auditor’s Report (continued)

The management of Xinhua Pharmaceutical (hereinafter referred to as
the “Management”) is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report
of Xinhua Pharmaceutical for the year 2019, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our understanding of the situation in the
audit process or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of the other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

The Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements in accordance with the ASBE to achieve fair presentation;
and designing, implementing and maintaining internal control which
is necessary to enable that the financial statements are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management is responsible
for assessing Xinhua Pharmaceutical’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
Management either intends to liquidate Xinhua Pharmaceutical or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible to supervise Xinhua
Pharmaceutical’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Report (continued)
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SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with auditing standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are generally considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

During the course of audit in accordance with auditing standards, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism.
We also carry out the following work:

(1) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

(2)  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances.

(8) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Management.

(4)  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management’s use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
Xinhua Pharmaceutical’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements in accordance with
the auditing standards or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
we shall modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause Xinhua
Pharmaceutical to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Auditor’s Report (continued)

(5) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
financial statements, and also evaluate whether the financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

(6) Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within Xinhua Pharmaceutical to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of audit of the group.
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings etc., including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that
we have complied with those relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and related safeguards, where applicable.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation prohibited public disclosure
about the matter or when, in rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

{ERPHEHEAEHH (FHEESD)
FEIZ A A BMRE(REEBA)

FPEYEGEE AT - BRI

R Bedb
—O=-—O%F=A=+H

ShineWing Certified Public Accountants (special general partnership)
Chinese Certified Public Accountant: Kan Jingping (Project Partner)

Chinese Certified Public Accountant: Pan Sujiao

Registered in Beijing, China
20 March 2020
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

By : A\RKTT
Unit: RMB Yuan
HH Item Hist 20185 12A31H
Notes December 31, 2018
MDEE - Current assets:
E¥Ee Monetary funds 75 1 VI 786,208,204.24
RoUEHEE Trading financial assets
TEREE Derivative financial assets
e E R Notes receivable
JEIER 3R Accounts receivable N 2VI2 343,427 ,469.04
FEW R IE B & Receivables financing 75 3VI3 139,118,405.40
B FE Prepayments N4V 34,998,846.75
Hoh IR Other receivables N~ 5V5 35,221,033.13
Hep : fEAS Including: Interest receivable
JEUS A A Dividends receivable 78 5.2V1.5.2
e Inventories 75 6 VL6 968,468,493.29
EREE Contract assets
REGEEE Assets held for sale
—FERFHHIEREEE  Non-current assets due within one
year
HAimehE E Other current assets N TV 73,699,758.87
nHEESH Total current assets 2,381,142,210.72
ERBEE : Non-current assets:
ERERE Debt investment
HipEERE Other debt investment
KA Long-term accounts receivable
REIRERE Long-term equity investments 7N 8VI8
HipiEm TRIRE Other equity instrument investments 7N 9VI9 189,739,168.00
HidEngemaE Other non-current financial assets
REWEhE Investment properties 7N~ 10 V110 69,938,953.41
EEEE Fixed assets 75 11 VI 2,648,880,307.21
EEITRE Construction in progress 75 12 V112 253,211,929.16
EEMREMEE Productive biological assets
HREE Oil and gas assets
EREEE Right-of-use assets 75+ 13 VIL13
B EE Intangible assets 75 14 V114 337,385,100.71
L Development expenditure
Bl Goodwil 7S~ 15VI1.15
RUFEER Long-term deferred expenses
EEFSHEE Deferred income tax assets 75~ 16 VI.16 23,232,759.88
HipIEREEE Other non-current assets N A7 VT 48,977,003.81
ERBHEEST Total non-current assets 3,571,365,222.18
HEH Total assets 5,952,507,432.90
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EHEEAER (B)
Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)

Bfy : ARKETT

Unit: RMB Yuan

ltem Kzt 2018512 A31H
Notes December 31, 2018

Current liabilities:

Short-term borrowings 7N~ 18 V118 240,000,000.00
Trading financial liabilities
Derivative financial liabilities
Notes payable 7~ 19 V119 426,876,630.26
Accounts payable 73~ 20V1.20 465,124,561.16
Contract liabilities 7N 21 V21 230,893,077.98
Payroll payable 7N~ 22 V1.22 78,240,727.60
Taxes and surcharges payables 7N~ 23 V1.23 23,986,357.32
Other payables 7N > 24 V.24 288,930,473.43
Including: Interest payable 7N 241 V1.241 3,020,508.89
Dividends payable 7N 24.2V1.24.2 5,310,599.53

Liabilities held for sale
Non-current liabilities due within one

year 7N~ 25 V.25 606,637,247.96
Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities 2,360,689,075.71

Non-current liabilities:

Long-term loans 7N~ 26 VI.26 522,643,436.60

Lease liabilities 7N~ 27 V.27

Long-term payables 7N~ 28 V1.28 74,174,473.69

Deferred income 7~ 29 VI.29 145,507,239.52

Deferred income tax liabilities 7N+ 16 V.16 30,883,385.57

Other non-current liabilities 7~ 30 VI.30 3,561,500.00
Total non-current liabilities 776,770,035.38
Total liabilities 3,137,459,111.09
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EHEEARGR (B)
Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)

HE Item Kzt
Notes
FEEER : Shareholders’ equity:
PR Capital stock 7%+ 30 VI.30
BARRPTE Capital reserve 75~ 31 VI.31
BT Less: Treasury stock
Hibtra e Other comprehensive income 75+ 32 VI.32
BIEHE Special reserve 75 * 33 VI.33
BERATE Surplus reserve 7N~ 34 VI1.34
RO B Undistributed profits 7~ 35V1.35

BERBATIRRESEE Total equity attributable to the
shareholders of parent company

DYR R Minority shareholders’ interests
BRESSEH Total shareholders’ equity
REMERESEH Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED 2019 ANNUAL REPORT

Blr  ARMT
Unit: RMB Yuan

2018512 531H
December 31, 2018

621,859,447.00
637,949,9563.70

142,645,071.04
1,204,746.95
256,110,049.68
1,035,690,153.67

2,695,459,422.04

119,588,899.77

2,815,048,321.81

5,962,607,432.90
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BRAREEARER

Parent Company’s Balance Sheet

HisF
Notes

Item

Current assets:
Monetary funds
Trading financial assets
Derivative financial assets
Notes receivable
Accounts receivable
Receivables financing
Prepayments
Other receivables
Including: Interest receivable

Dividends receivable

Inventories
Contract assets
Assets held for sale
Non-current assets due within one year

+4 1 XV
+4+ - 2XVI.2

++ - 3XVI.3

+4 + 32XVIL32

Other current assets

Total current assets

Non-current assets:
Debt investment
Other debt investment
Long-term accounts receivable
Long-term equity investments
Other equity instrument investments
Other non-current financial assets
Investment properties
Fixed assets
Construction in progress
Productive biological assets
Oil and gas assets
Right-of-use assets
Intangible assets
Development expenditure
Goodwill
Long-term deferred expenses
Deferred income tax assets
Other non-current assets

+4+ - 4xvil4

Total non-current assets

Total assets

—=—

Bfy : ARKETT
Unit: RMB Yuan

2018512 531H
December 31, 2018

502,099,872.73

334,767,282.65
15,542,951.64
20,108,174.57
453,949,633.71

18,860,182.44
525,797,8565.92

52,5690,207.34

1,904,855,978.56

596,905,706.39
189,739,168.00

100,423,699.43
2,035,173,711.34
195,838,575.85

179,636,835.15

6,400,000.00

3,304,117,696.16

5,208,973,674.72
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Parent Company’s Balance Sheet (continued)
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SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED

Item

Current liabilities:
Short-term borrowings
Trading financial liabilities
Derivative financial liabilities
Notes payable
Accounts payable
Contract liabilities
Payroll payable
Taxes and surcharges payables
Other payables
Including: Interest payable

Dividends payable

Liabilities held for sale

HisF
Notes

Non-current liabilities due within one year

Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities:
Long-term loans
Lease liabilities
Long-term payables
Deferred income
Deferred income tax liabilities
Other non-current liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

2019 ANNUAL REPORT

Bfy : ARKETT
Unit: RMB Yuan

2018512 531H
December 31, 2018

235,000,000.00

413,234,812.17
316,471,770.67
42,928,191.14
67,671,188.05
9,972,709.04
243,643,120.39
3,020,508.89
5,310,599.53

606,637,247.96

1,935,559,039.42

522,643,436.60
74174,473.69
145,144,739.52

26,960,455.56
3,561,500.00

772,484,6056.37

2,708,043,644.79
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(Monetary unit for the notes to these Financial Statements is RMB unless otherwise stated)

BRAREERER (&)
Parent Company’s Balance Sheet (continued)

Bfy : ARKETT
Unit: RMB Yuan

HH Item Hist 2019%12A31H 20185 12A31H
Notes December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018

FEEEE Shareholders’ equity:
[N Capital stock 621,859,447.00 621,859,447.00

BRRE Capital reserve 672,137,151.96 664,453,337.87

B Less: Treasury stock

HAvgr e Wes Other comprehensive income 182,111,461.30 143,236,772.50

IR Special reserve

BEBHRAE Surplus reserve 272,695,588.94 249,856,062.61

ROBFE Undistributed profits 964,894,202.19 821,524,409.95
BRERSE Total shareholders’ equity 2,713,697,851.39 2,500,930,029.93
AEMBEREESMEE  Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 5,591,809,991.43 5,208,973,674.72
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(Monetary unit for the notes to these Financial Statements is RMB unless otherwise stated)

SHF AR

Consolidated Income Statement

&fy - ARET
Unit: RMB Yuan
HH Item ir7a 2018 &
Notes Previous period
— BRABA I. Gross revenue 5,244,643,562.09
Hep: &2 A Including: Operating revenue 7N~ 37 V1.37 5,244,643,562.09
. EREEE Il. Total operating cost 4,877,707,786.31
Hep: SRR Including: Operating cost 7N~ 37 V1,37 3,664,349,619.57
syl Taxes and surcharges 7%~ 38 V.38 63,033,006.48
HEEH Selling expenses 7% 39V1.39 656,478,951.06
EEBH Administration expenses 75 40 V140 272,194,282.07
HEER Research and development
expenses N 41 V141 186,975,801.38
BBER Financial expenses N 42 V142 34,676,125.75
H - FISER Including: Interest expenses 54,815,090.16
FEMA Interest income 3,680,820.50
in B iiss Add:  Otherincome 78~ 43 V143 21,165,013.23
& rzs GBARUAT- 57E 1) Investment income (losses to
be listed with “-) N 44 V144 7,154,674.51
Hep : $EEMEMALMEME  Including: Income from investment into
&la affilates and joint ventures
ERREBKGEKRA-5% Credit impairment loss (losses
$E5) to be listed with *-”) 7~ 45 V.45 224,673.05
BERERKBRUI-IF Assets impairment loss (losses
$E51) to be listed with “-") 78 46 V.46 -54,640,019.61
BEREWGEBRUT-IHR Gains from asset disposal
$E5) (losses to be listed with “-") 75 ~ 47 VI.47 3,733,547.43
= BEENESRL-IRAY) 1Il.Operating profits (losses to be listed
with “-”) 344,573,664.39
m: EEINIA Add: Non-operating income 7N 48V1.48 2,819,521.69
W BEI Less: Non-operating expenditure 7N~ 49 V149 15,065,682.26
0, F)E 4 (IR #LL-18RES) IV.Total profits (total loss to be listed
with “-”) 332,327,503.82
W FERER Less: Income tax expenses 75+ 50 V.50 51,900,683.50
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RBIEEN | \IRITERERHERAT | Prepared by: Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

(B RRMIEERRAS BIEBASN - A RBETIIR)

(Monetary unit for the notes to these Financial Statements is RMB unless otherwise stated)

ltem

V. Net profits (net loss to be listed with

u_n)
()  Classified by operation continuity

(1) Net profit from continued
operations (with “-" for net
loss)

(2) Net profit from discontinued
operations (with “-” for net
loss)

(I)  Classified by ownership

(1) Net profit attributable to
shareholders of parent
company (net loss to be
listed with “-")

(2) Minority interest (net loss to be
listed with “-")

VI Other comprehensive income net of

tax

Other comprehensive income (net of tax)

attributable to the owners of parent
company
() Other comprehensive income not
subject to reclassification to
profit or loss
1. Change in fair value of
other equity instrument
investments
(I}  Other comprehensive income to
be reclassified into profit or loss
1. Conversion difference of foreign
currency statement

Other comprehensive income (net of tax)

attributable to minority shareholders

Sk

BORER (&)

Consolidated Income Statement (continued)

it

Notes

7~ 51 V151

7~ 51 V51

Bfy : A\RKTT
Unit: RMB Yuan

2018

Previous period

280,426,820.32

280,426,820.32

255,314,454.86

25,112,365.46

-56,384,297.50

-56,740,335.03

-68,141,754.40

-68,141,7564.40
1,401,419.37
1,401,419.37

356,037.53
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(RESMRMERRFBIE AL - WUARBTIIR)

(Monetary unit for the notes to these Financial Statements is RMB unless otherwise stated)

BHFFIER (&)

Consolidated Income Statement (continued)

Bfy : A\RKTT

Unit: RMB Yuan

HH Item ir7a 2018 &

Notes Previous period

+t. FAkEHE VII. Total comprehensive income 224,042,522.82

FBEREARFER MG NG Total comprehensive income

k) attributable to the shareholders of

parent company 198,574,119.83

BRENVERROGANEEE  Total comprehensive income
attributable to the minority

shareholders 25,468,402.99
N BRES : VIII. Eamings per share:
(—) ERERET ) () Basic earmings per share T+ 2XIX.2 0.41
() BEsREEL ) (Il Diluted earnings per share T2 2XIX.2 0.4
INEBAER—IEH TN ESFH  HEHATE In 2019, there was business combination under common control. The
SR B IR HEAE A4,184,130.987T ° L4 merged party’s net profits before acquisition was RMB 4,184,130.98, and
WA G ERAFHEA4,366,966.937T ° net profits of the merged party in the last year was RMB 4,366,966.93.
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RBIEEN | \IRITERERHERAT | Prepared by: Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

(REA R ERR MRS BRI RSN - UARBTTIIR)

(Monetary unit for the notes to these Financial Statements is RMB unless otherwise stated)

ltem HH
— EEEA l. Operating revenue
B EERA Less: Operating costs

i KB Taxes and surcharges

HEER Selling expenses

ERER Administration expenses

HEER Research and development expenses

I%ER Financial expenses

H: FISER Including: Interest expenses

FIEHA Interest income
n - B Add: Other income
& W (B DA -5k 7)) Investment income (losses to be listed
with )
Heb: SRR Including: Income from investment
Eifi 54&@ into affiiates and joint
ventures
ERREBRRGEKRA-5% Credit impairment loss (losses to
tﬁ&l]) be listed with “-")
BERMEBRBRUA-IH Assets impairment loss (losses to
$83) be listed with “-)

BERENGEBRA-IH Gains from asset disposal (losses

1£51)) to be listed with *-")

. EEFIAERLL-15RET) I. Operating profits (losses to be listed

with “-7)
i EEINRA Add: Non-operating income
B EEINT Less: Non-operating expenditure

. Pl (FiREEL - [5RES]) 111 Total profit (with “-” for total loss)

B FTEHER Less: Income tax expenses

. BHEGBERLL-15RES) IV. Net profit (with “-” for net loss)
(=) BELEFHECFEEIN () Net profit from continued operations

-5 4E51) (with “-” for net loss)
(2) &L FFIEOFEEN (I) Nt profit from discontinued operations
[-52E71) (with “-” for net loss)

SENETFIDEES

Parent Company’s Income Statement

Bfy : A\RKTT
Unit: RMB Yuan

20185 E

Previous period

2,735,938,838.47
1,977,268,432.51
37,362,550.49
88,996,736.54
192,175,340.83
161,269,075.16
41,181,496.00
54,552,277.62
2,748,447.03
19,890,918.05

28,827,887.01

-34,050.25
-329,237.77
-49,736,147.80
4.371,177.71
240,709,804.14
1,907,967.26

13,086,102.86

229,531,668.54
21,541,163.24

207,990,505.30

207,990,5056.30
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2019 % | Year 2019
BB | \IRITERERHERAT | Prepared by: Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

(RESMRMERRFBIE AL - WUARBTIIR)

(Monetary unit for the notes to these Financial Statements is RMB unless otherwise stated)
(SEYNECIFIDEEE )

Parent Company’s Income Statement (continued)

Bfy : A\RKTT
Unit: RMB Yuan

ltem HH Vi3 20185 E
Notes Previous period
1. Bt ek anRg 38 V. Other comprehensive income net of tax -58,141,754.40
(—) THENEERSHNEME () Other comprehensive income not
Al subject to reclassification to profit
or loss -58,141,754.40
HiER TERERARE Change in fair value of other equity
23 instrument investments -58,141,754.40
(D) BEPEEBESNEMGS ()  Other comprehensive income to be
Wegs reclassified into profit or loss
INEB B RAITE E Conversion difference of foreign
currency statement
N BRkERHE V1. Total comprehensive income 149,848,750.90
t. SRKE : VII. Earnings per share
(—) EXxEkE ()  Basic eamings per share
(2) wESkkE (I)  Diluted earnings per share
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RBIEEN | \IRITERERHERAT | Prepared by: Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

(REA R ERR MRS BRI RSN - UARBTTIIR)

(Monetary unit for the notes to these Financial Statements is RMB unless otherwise stated)

FREMEBR

Consolldated Cash Flow Statement

Bl ARET
Unit: AMB Yuan
Item i 20185
Notes Previous year
I Cash flow from operating activities:
(Cash received from sales of goods or rendering
services 4,328,211,316.54
Refunds of taxes and levies 61,248,092.68
Other cash received from operating-related
activities 52 V152 83,983,408.99
Subtotal of cash outflows from operating
activities 4,473,442,818.21
Cash paid for goods purchased and labor services
received 2,426,369,434.98
Cash paid to and for employees 713,562,531.11
Cash paid for taxes and surcharges 249,850,568.75
Other cash paid related to operating activities N 52 V.52 759,753,182.99
Subtotal of cash outflows from operating
activities 4,149,535,717.83
Net cash flow from operating activities 323,907,100.38
Il. Cash flow generated from investing activities:
Cash received from retums on investments
Cash received from investment incomes 7,154,674 .51
Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets,
intangible assets and other long-term assets 6,797,076.81
Net cash received from disposal of subsidiaries
and other business entities
Other cash received related to investing activities
Subtotal of cash inflows from investing
activities 13,961,751.32

Cash paid for acquisitions of fixed assets,
intangible assets and other long-term assets 388,440,897.70
Cash paid for acquisitions of investments
Net cash paid for acquisitions of subsidiaries and
other business entities
Other cash paid related to investing activities N 52 V.52 6,400,000.00

Subtotal of cash outflow from investing
activities 394,840,897.70

Net cash flow from investing activities 380,889,146.38
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(RELEE(Y L EREFERERHER AT | Prepared by: Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

(RESMRMERRFBIE AL - WUARBTIIR)

(Monetary unit for the notes to these Financial Statements is RMB unless otherwise stated)

BOHEETRER ()

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continued)

B - ARET
Unit: AMB Yuan
| Item i3 20185
Notes Previous year
= BRTHELMBRRRE: lIl. Cash flows from financing activities:
Uil ol Cash received from investment absorption 46,942,796.00
B FRARKS SRR E Incluing; cash received from subsidiaries’
WEIRRE absorption of investments from
minority shareholders 46,942,796.00
BEEHIEINERE Cash received from loans 467,143 436.60
WEAtESEEHEENRE Other cash received relating to financing activities 75 * 52 V1.52 70,000,000.00
BRIBRRRA DA Subtotal of cash inflows from financing
activities 584,086,232.60
BREBMEZ MRS Cash paid for repayment of debts 272,837,507.11
AERF - FIBREAFIBAT Cash paid for distributing dividends and profits or
DR paying interest 104,051,726.50
A FRAR AR SRR Including; dividends and profits paid to minority
B ~ 7 shareholders by subsidiary 14,017,261.46
YREMREEEDERNR ¢ Other cash paid related to financing activities 7 52 V152 162,909,079.22
EEEDRRRY Subtotal of cash outflows from financing
activities 539,798,312.83
EEEDEENASRESE Net cash flows from financing activities 44,987 919.77
M. ExEHHALRALEREMM V. Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on
ne cash and cash equivalents 5,806,913.05
L. HERRESEMPEMEA V. Netincrease in cash and cash equivalents 6,887,213.18
m: BRe kRS EENHE Add: Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning
of the period 694,130,355.74
N HRFEREEGEEMBHA VI Cashand cash equivalents at the end of the
period 687,243,142.56
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HHUARBTHIR)

(Monetary unit for the notes to these Financial Statements is RMB unless otherwise stated)

BRARRERER

Parent Company’s Cash Flow Statement

et

Notes

Cash flow from operating activities:

Cash received from sales of goods or
rendering services

Refunds of taxes and levies

Other cash received from operating-related
activities

Subtotal of cash inflows from operating
activities

Cash paid for goods purchased and labor
services received

Cash paid to and for employees

Cash paid for taxes and surcharges

Other cash paid related to operating activities

Subtotal of cash outflows from
operating activities

Net cash flow from operating activities

Cash flow generated from investing
activities:

Cash received from redemption of
investments

Cash received from retumns on investments

Net cash received from disposal of fixed
assets, intangible assets and other long-
term assets

Net cash received from disposal of
subsidiaries and other business entities

Other cash received related to investing
activities

Subtotal of cash inflows from investing
activities

Cash paid for acquisitions of fixed assets,
intangible assets and long-term assets

Cash paid for acquisitions of investments

Net cash paid for acquisitions of subsidiaries
and other business entities

Other cash paid related to investing activities

Subtotal of cash outflow from investing
activities

Net cash flow from investing activities

—=—

By NRMT
Unit: RMB Yuan

20184

Previous year

2,147,716,132.76
43,851,065.20

33,676,158.47

2,225,243,356.43

1,099,744,450.18
446,385,362.15
72,437,585.68
324,636,026.00

1,943,203,424.01

282,039,932.42

9,838,388.01

5,783,604.89
7,539,637.21

20,000,000.00

43,161,630.11

295,669,027.26
90,302,324.08

67,400,